Nicasio School District Agenda ltem # ld__’F L(~
Since 1862

Board of Trustees

Michelle Rutledge, Board President ~ Elaine Doss, Trustee ~ Mark Burton, Trustee

AGENDA
Regular Meeting of the Nicasio School District Board of Trustees
Thursday, February 6, 2020 5pm

Nicasio School Library, 5555 Nicasio Valley Road, California

1. OPENING BUSINESS
a. Call to Order {Michelle Rutledge — Board President)
Roll Call
Patriotic Moment
Approval of Closed Session Agenda
Public Comment on Closed Session Topic(s)

®oooT

2. CLOSED SESSION
a. The following Closed Session item is listed below in compliance with Government Code 54957
of the Brown Act:
i. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT/EMPLOYMENT
b. Recess to Closed Session to consider and/or take action upon any item on the Closed Session
Agenda

3. Reconvene in OPEN SESSION
a. Adjourn Closed Session and Reconvene Open Session
b. Report Out Announcement of any reportable action take during Closed Session

4. Approval and Adoption of Open Session Agenda (Board President Rutledge)

5. Reports
a. Trustee/Superintendent Announcements (Trustees and Nancy Neu, Interim Superintendent)
b. Principal Announcements (Barbara Snekkevik, Principal)
c. Water System Updates
i. SWRCB Citation No. 02_18 19C_066 Disinfection Byproducts Maximum
Contaminant Level Violation for Third Quarter 2019 (interim Supt. Neu)
ii. Status of Water System Upgrade Project (Principal Snekkevik)

6. Public Comment
Public Comment is only for items not on the agenda. No formal action will be taken. Board members or district staff
may, but are not obligated to, briefly respond to statements made or question posed by the public about items not
appearing on the agenda. Designated amount of time to address the Board is limited to three minutes per individual.
Concerns about individual employees shall not be discussed in public at school board meetings. Please contact the
superintendent with specific concerns.

N

Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes: December 5, 2019 (Interim Supt. Neu)

b. Ratify Warrants Paid: December, 2019 (CBO Bonardi)

c. Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints {Interim Supt. Neu)

December 5, 2019
Board Agenda



d. 2019 SARC Report (Principal Snekkevik)
e. 2019-20 School Safety Plan Update (Principal Snekkevik)
f. Stephen Roatch Accountancy Corporation Contract for Y.E. June 30, 2020 (Year 2 of 3-year

contract)
g. Denial of Interdistrict Transfer Requests into NSD for 2019-20 (Interim Supt. Neu)
i. IDT# 19-20-23
ii. IDT#19-20-24
h. Acceptance of Interdistrict Transfer Requests into NSD for 2019-20 (Interim Supt. Neu)
i. IDT#19-20-25
8. Action

a. Consider Acceptance of 2019 Audit (CBO Bonardi) Discussion/Action

b. Consider Approval of 2020-21 Annual Calendar (interim Supt. Neu) Discussion/Action

¢. Consider Approval of Off-Site Instructional Location in the Event of a Campus Power Qutage
(Interim Supt. Nancy Neu) Discussion/Action

9. Correspondence
a. Re:2091-20 First Interim Review, Kate Lane, Assistant Superintendent, Marin County
Office of Education, January 14, 2020
b. RE: $500 Donation from Marin Cyclists, December 12, 2019

10. Conclusion
a. Agenda items for upcoming Board Agenda
b. Adjournment

If you need assistonce to access the Board meeting room or to otherwise participote ot the meeting, please submit a written request to Nicasio School District
Superintendent at P.O. Box 711, Nicasio, CA 94946 or office@nicasioschool.org. Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will better enable the District to
make reasonable accommodations in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

February 6, 2020
Board Agenda



’\/::v Agendaltem #5C) {2 Gl

cALIFORNIA Q g;RgE;AE;U;M:NFELD
Water Boards o/ o

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTEGTICN

State Water Resources Control Board
Division of Drinking Water

December 3, 2019 Water System No. 2100582

Mikki Mcintyre, Manager
Nicasio School

P.O. Box 711

Nicasio, CA 94946

CITATION NO. 02_18_19C_066
DISINFECTION BYPRODUCTS MAXIMUM CONTAMINANT LEVEL VIOLATION FOR
THIRD QUARTER 2019

Enclosed is Citation No. 02_18_19C_066 (hereinafter “Citation”), issued to the Nicasio
School (hereinafter “"System”), public water system. Please note that there are legally
enforceable deadlines associated with this Citation.

The System will be billed at the State Water Resources Control Board Division of Drinking
Water's (hereinafter “Division”) hourly rate for the time spent on issuing this order since
this is an enforcement action for noncompliance with state regulations. At this time, we
have spent approximately one hour on enforcement activities associated with this
violation. You will receive a bill sent from our Drinking Water Fee Branch in August of the
next fiscal year. This bill will contain fees for any enforcement time spent on the System
for the current fiscal year.

Any person who is aggrieved by a citation, order, or decision issued by the Division may
file a petition with the State Water Resources Control Board (hereinafter “State Water
Board") for reconsideration of the citation, order, or decision. Petitions must be received
by the State Water Board within 30 calendar days of the issuance of the citation, order,
or decision. The date of issuance is the date when the Division mails or serves a copy
of the citation, order, or decision, whichever occurs first. If the 30th day falls on a
Saturday, Sunday, or state holiday, the petition is due the following business day.
Petitions must be received by 5:00 p.m. Information regarding filing petitions may be
found at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/programs/petitions/index.shtmi

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact Marianne Watada of my
staff at (707) 676-2076.

E. Joaaquin Esquiver, cHalr | EILEEN SOBECK, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

50 D Street, Suite 200, Santa Rosa, CA 85404 | www.waterboards.ca.gov



Mikki Mclintyre -2- December 3, 2019

Sincerely,

.. Janice M. Dakley, P.E., Sonoma District Engineer
/ Division of Drinking Water
\\STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTR&L@j RD
~_
Enclosure: Citation No. 02_18_19C_066
CC (w/ Enclosures): Gary Mickelson, P.O. Box 2689, Petaluma, CA 94953

Certified Mail No. 7017 3040 0000 9763 4742

2100582/Compliance
02_18_19C_066_2100582_02.docx/MFW



®

COURT PAPER

10

"

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

STD. 113 (REV. 3-95)
55 0sP 0590192

Citation No. 02_18_19C_066

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD

DIVISION OF DRINKING WATER

Name of Public Water System: Nicasio School
Water System No: 2100582
To: Mikki Mcintyre, Manager
P.O. Box 711
Nicasio, CA 94946
Physical Location: 5555 Nicasio Valley Road, Nicasio, CA 94946

Issued: October xx, 2019

CITATION FOR NONCOMPLIANCE
WITH DISINFECTION BYPRODUCTS MAXIMUM CONTAMINANT LEVEL
THIRD QUARTER 2019

The California Health and Safety Code (hereinafter “CHSC"), Section 116650
authorizes the State Water Resources Control Board (hereinafter “State
Water Board”), to issue a citation to a public water system when the State
Water Board determines that the public water system has violated or is
violating the California Safe Drinking Water Act (hereinafter “California

SDWA”"), (CHSC, Division 104, Part 12, Chapter 4, commencing with Section



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19 |

21

®

COURT PAPER
STATE OF CALIFORNIA
STD. 113 (REV. 3-95)
53 osP 0590192

Citation No. 02_18_19C_066
116270), or any regulation, standard, permit, or order issued or adopted

thereunder.

The State Water Board, acting by and through its Division of Drinking Water
(hereinafter “Division”), and the Deputy Director for the Division, hereby
issues Citation No. 02_18_19C_066 (hereinafter “Citation”), pursuant to
Section 116650 of the CHSC to the Nicasio School public water system
(hereinafter “System”), for violation of California Code of Regulations

(hereinafter “CCR?”), Title 22, Sections 64533 and 64535.2.

STATEMENT OF FACTS
Nicasio School is classified as a nontransient-noncommunity water system
serving a population of 40 through approximately five service connections.

Nicasio School uses sodium hypochlorite for disinfection.

Section 64533 defines the Maximum Contaminant Level of HAA5 as 0.060
mg/L.. Section 64535.2 defines the computation of the LRAA and defines a

violation when the LRAA concentration exceeds the MCL.

The System was cited for a third quarter 2016 violation of the haloacetic acids
(9) (hereinafter “HAAS") Maximum Contaminant Level (hereinafter “MCL”) on

August 23, 2016. The System complied with the citation directives. The



10
11

12|

13
14
15‘
16
17
18
19
20|
21

22

231
|

24|
25
26 |
27
@ i
COURT PAPER
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

STD. 113 (REV. 3-85)
&35 osP o5 90192

Citation No. 02_18_19C_066

System was in compliance with the HAA5 locational running annual average

(hereinafter “LRAA”) MCL from fourth quarter 2016 through first quarter 2018,

The System was cited for a second quarter 2018 violation of the HAA5 MCL
on July 2, 2018. The System complied with the citation directives. The
System was in compliance with the HAA5 LRAA MCL from first quarter 2019

through second quarter 2019.

The Division received quarterly monitoring results for HAAS collected on July
11, 2019, at the monitoring location “DIST - HOSE BIB EAST END OF N.
BLDG", of 0.130 milligrams per liter (mg/L). A summary of the System’s last

four quarters of HAA5 monitoring results can be seen in Table 1.

Table 1 — Nicasio School HAAS Monitoring Results Summary from
“DIST - HOSE BIB EAST END OF N. BLDG”

Sample Date HAAS Result (mg/L)
7/11/2019 0.130
4/4/2019 0.056
1/10/2019 0.041
10/4/2018 0.034

The LRAA of HAAS for the Third quarter 2019 was calculated as 0.065 mg/L.

DETERMINATIONS
The Division has determined that the System is in violation of Title 22, CCR,

Sections 64533 and 64535.2.



®

COURT PAPER

10

1

12|
13
14.
15‘
16

17

18 |

19
20
21
22 l
23

24

25
26

27|

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

STD. 113 (REV. 3-95)
OSP 0590192

Citation No. 02_18_19C_066

The HAAS LRAA for third quarter 2019 was calculated as 0.065 mg/L which
exceeds the HAA5 MCL of 0.060 mg/L. Therefore, the System violated the

HAAS MCL contained in Section 64533 and 64535.2 in third quarter of 2019.

DIRECTIVES

Nicasio School is hereby directed to take the following actions:

1. Comply with Sections 64533 and 64535.2, Title 22, CCR in all future

monitoring periods.

2. On or before December 31, 2019, notify éII persons served by the
System of the water quality violations in conformance with Title 22,
Sections 64463.4 and 64465. The Public Notification Template in
Appendix 1 may be used to fulfill this directive. The public notification
and Compliance Certification shall be performed quarterly until the

System is no longer in violation of the HAA5 MCL.

A notification template that has been translated to Spanish can be
found at the following website:
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/certlic/drinkingwater/

Notices.html



171
18

19

20
21
22
23

24

25|
26 |
27

®

COURT PAPER
STATE OF CALIFORNIA
STD. 113 (REV. 3-95)

&8 OsP 05 90192

Citation No. 02_18_19C_066

Additionally, the System is required to report this MCL violation in its
2019 Consumer Confidence Report, completed and distributed to its
customers by July 1, 2020. A copy of the completed 2019 Consumer

Confidence Report is due to the Division by October 1, 2020.

3. The System shall conduct an operational evaluation in conformance
with Title 22, Section 64534.2(d)(6). The System shall complete and
submit Appendix 2: Operational Evaluation Reporting Form to the

Division on or before January 17, 2020.

4. The System shall complete the Compliance Certification in Appendix
3. Submit it with a copy of the public notification to the Division on or

before January 17, 2020.

All submittals required by this Citation shall be electronically submitted to the
State Water Board at the following address. The subject line for all electronic
submittals corresponding to this Citation shall include the following

information: Water System name and number, citation number and title of the

document being submitted.

Janice M. Oakley, P.E., Sonoma District Engineer

dwpdist18@waterboards.ca.gov




11@
12
13
14
15 |
16

17 |

18|
19|
20 |

21

®

COURT PAPER
STATE OF CALIFORNIA
STD. 113 (REV. 3.95)

OSP 05 90192

Citation No. 02_18_19C_066

The State Water Board reserves the right to make such modifications to this
Citation as it may deem necessary to protect public health and safety. Such
modifications may be issued as amendments to this Citation and shall be

effective upon issuance.

Nothing in this Citation relieves the System of its obligation to meet the
requirements of the California SDWA (CHSC, Division 104, Part 12, Chapter
4, commencing with Section 116270, or any regulation, standard, permit or

order issued or adopted thereunder.

PARTIES BOUND
This Citation shall apply to and be binding upon the System, its owners,
officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, successors, and

assignees.

SEVERABILITY
The directives of this Citation are severable, and the System shall comply with

each provision thereof notwithstanding the effectiveness of any provision.

FURTHER ENFORCEMENT ACTION
The California SDWA authorizes the State Water Board to: issue a citation or
order with assessment of administrative penalties to a public water system for

violation or continued violation of the requirements of the California SDWA or



COURT PAPER

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

S$TD. 113 (REV. 3-95)
&5 0sP 05 90192

5

“‘ ~— - S

Citation No. 02_18_19C_066
any regulation, permit, standard, citation, or order issued or adopted
thereunder including, but not limited to, failure to correct a violation identified
in a citation or compliance order. The California SDWA also authorizes the
State Water Board to take action to suspend or revoke a permit that has been
issued to a public water system if the public water system has violated
applicable law or regulations or has failed to comply with an order of the State
Water Board, and to petition the superior court to take various enforcement
measures against a public water system that has failed to comply with an
order of the State Water Board. The State Water Board does not waive any

further enforcement action by issuance of this Citation.

Y M@z A Qecember3 2019

Janice M. akley, P.E., Sonoma Distric\l Engineer Date
Division of Drinking Water -

STATE WATER RESOURCEE"'CONTROL BOARD

— —

Appendices (3):

1. Public Notification Template

2. Operational Evaluation Reporting Form

3. Compliance Certification

2100582/Compliance
02_18_18C_066_2100582_02.docx/MFW



Appendix 1. Public Notification Template

INFORMATION ABOUT YOUR DRINKING WATER
Este aviso contiene lnformamon muy |mportante sobre su agua potable por favor lea el
aviso en espariol si va aqui incluido. Si el aviso en espariol no va incluido aqui, contacte
al sistema de agua para pedir una copia.

Nicasio School has levels of Haloacetic Acids (5)
Above Drinking Water Standards

Our water system recently failed a drinking water standard. Although this is not an
emergency, as our customers, you have a right to know what you should do, what
happened, and what we are doing to correct this situation

We routinely monitor for the presence of drinking water contaminants. Testing results we
received on [Insert the date the water system received the results] show that our system
exceeds the standard, or maximum contaminant level (MCL), for haloacetic acids (5)
during the third quarter of 2019. The MCL standards for haloacetic acids (5) are 0.060
milligrams per liter (mg/L). The average level of haloacetic acids (5) for fourth quarter
2018 was 0.065 mg/L.

What should | do?

o You do not need to use an alternative (e.g. , bottled) water supply.
This is not an immediate risk. If it had been, you would have been notified
immediately. However, some people who drink water containing haloacetic acids
in excess of the MCL over many years may have an increased risk of getting
cancer.

o If you have other health issues concerning the consumption of this water, you may
wish to consult your doctor.

What happened? What was done?

[Describe corrective
action].

We anticipate resolving the problem within

For more information, please contact Mikki Mcintyre at (415) 662-2184 or at the
following mailing address: P.O. Box 711, Nicasio, CA 94946

Please share this information with all the other people who drink this water, especially
those who may not have received this notice directly (for example, people in apartments,
nursing homes, schools, and businesses). You can do this by posting this public notice
in a public place or distributing copies by hand or mail.



APPENDIX 1. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION TEMPLATE
FOR CITATION NO. 02_18_19C_066

Secondary Notification Requirements
Upon receipt of notification from a person operating a public water system, the following
notification must be given within 10 days [Health and Safety Code Section 116450(9)]:
» SCHOOLS: Must notify school employees, students, and parents (if the students
are minors).
e RESIDENTIAL RENTAL PROPERTY OWNERS OR MANAGERS (including
nursing homes and care facilities): Must notify tenants.

e BUSINESS PROPERTY OWNERS, MANAGERS, OR OPERATORS: Must notify
employees of businesses located on the property.

This notice is being sent to you by Nicasio School.

State Water System ID#: 2100582 . Date distributed:




APPENDIX 3. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION

Citation Number 02_18_19C_066
Name of Water System: Nicasio School

System Number: 2100582

| certify that the users of the water supplied by this water system were notified of the Maximum
Contaminant Level violation of Title 22, California Code of Regulations (CCR), Section 64533,
for the compliance period of third quarter 2019 and that the following actions, as directed in
02_18_19C_066 have been completed.

Reaguired Action Date Completed

(Citation Directive 2) Public Notification — mail or direct
delivery to each customer; and use one of the listed methods | /2 |
to reach persons not likely to be reach by malil or direct "Q ec. >y o 7
delivery.

(Citation Directive 3) Complete and submit Operational

Evaluation Reporting Form, ‘Q e /f, F0 lﬁ

Ronko anac MV‘“”\—) @ec 14,809

Signature of Water System Representative Date

Attach a copy of the notice posted in the system and a copy published via other
notification methods.

THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED AND RETURNED TO THE DIVISION NO LATER THAN
JANUARY 17, 2020

Disclosure: Be advised that Section 116725 and 116730 of the California Health and Safety Code states
that any person who knowingly makes any false statement on any report or document submitted for the
purpose of compliance with the attached order may be liable for a clvil penalty not to exceed five thousand
dollars ($5,000) for each separate violation for each day that violation continues. In addition, the violators
may be prosecuted in ¢riminal court and upon conviction, be punished by a fine of not more than $25,000
for each day of violation, or be imprisoned in county jail not to exceed one year, or by both the fine and
Imprisonment.




Operational Evaluation Reporting Form Page 1 of 2

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

A. Facility Information

Facility Name: Nicasio School PWSID: 2100582
Facility Address: 5555 Nicasio Valley Rd
City: Nicasio State: CA 94946

B. Report Prepared by:

(Print): Gary Mickelson Date prepared:  12/10/19
(Signature):

Contact Telephone Number;  707-762-1473

Il. MONITORING RESULTS

A. Provide the Compliance Monitoring Site(s) where the OEL was Exceeded.

Hose bib, East end of
Note: The site name or number should correspond fo a site in your Stage 2 DBPR compliance monitoring plan.

B. Monitoring Results for the Site(s) Identified in Il.A (inciude duplicate pages if there was more than
One exceedance)

1. Check TTHM or HAAS to indicate which result caused the OEL 7 TTHM Bl HAAS
exceedance,

2. Enter your results for TTHM or HAAS (whichever you checked above).

Quarter
Results from . Operational
Prior Quarter's Current .
Two Quarters Results Quarter Evaluation Value
Ago
A B c | D= (AsB+2*C))4

Date sample was
collected
TTHM (mg/L) ‘
HAAS5 (mg/L) 0.041 0.056 0.065

Note: The operational evaluation value is calculated by summing the two previous quarters of TTHM or HAA5
values plus twice the current quarter value, divided by four. If the value exceeds 0.080 mg/L for TTHM or 0.060
mg/L for HAAS, an OEL exceedance has occurred.

C. Has an OEL exceedance occurred at this location in the past? [ Yes } OnNo

If NO, proceed to item D. If YES, when did
exceedance occur?

Was the cause determined for the previous exceedance(s)? Mvyes |ONo

Are the previous evaluations/determinations applicable to the current OEL Yes | [INo
exceedance?




Distribution System Evaluation Checklist Page 1 of 2

System Name: Nicasio School 2100582
Checklist Completed by: Gary Mickelson - Date:  12/10/19
A. Do you have disinfectant residual or temperature data for the monitoring
location where you experienced the OEL exceedance? D'Yes No

If NO, proceed to item B. If YES, answer the following questions for the period in which
an OEL exceedance occurred:

Yes No
O 0 Was the water temperature higher than normal for that time of the year at that
‘ location?
O [ Wasthe disinfectant residual lower than normal for that time of the year at that
location?
0 [ Wasthedisinfectant residual higher than normal for that time of the year at that
location?
B. Do you have maintenance records available for the time period just prior to the
OEL exceedance? [dYes [INo
If NO, proceed to item C. If YES, answer the following questions:
Yes No

(W] Did any line breaks or replacements oceur in the vicinity of the exceedance?

a Were any storage tanks or reservoirs taken off-line and cleaned?

| [l  Did flushing or other hydraulic disturbances (e.g., fires) occur in the vicinity of
the exceedance?

O Were any valves operated in the vicinity of the OEL exceedances?

C. Ifyour systemis metered, do you have access to historical records showing

water use at individual service connections? Yes  [INo
If NO, proceed to item D. If YES, was overall water use in your system [ Yes & No
unusually low, indicating higher than normal water age?
D. Do you have high-volume customers in your system (e.g., an industrial
processing plant)? OYes MENo
If NO, proceed to item E. If YES, was there a change in water use by a
high-volume customer? DYes [No

E. Is there a finished water storage facility hydraulically upstream from the D Yes BINo
monitoring location where you experienced the OEL exceedance?

if NO, proceed to item F. If YES, review storage facility operations and water quality

data to answer the following questions for the period in which the OEL exceedance

occurred:

Yes No

00 O wasa disinfectant residual detected in the stored water or at the tank outlet?
O O bpo you know of any mixing problems with the tank or reservoir?

O O Doesthe facility operate in “last in-first out” mode?

O DO Was the tank or reservoir drawn down more than usual prior to OEL

exceedance, indicating a possible discharge of stagnant water?
O [ Wasthere achange in water level fluctuations that would have resulted in

increased water age within the tank or reservoir?




Distribution System Evaluation Checklist Page 2 of 2
F. Does your system practice booster chiorination? OvYes No

If NO, proceed to item G. If YES, was there an increase in booster
chlorination feed rates? Dlves [INo

G. Did you have customer complaints in the vicinity of the OEL exceedance? O Yes No
If NO, proceed to item H. If YES, explain.

H.  pig concern about complying with a rule other than Stage 2 DBPR, such as the [ Yes
Lead and Copper rule, the TCR, or any other rule constrain your options to
reduce the DBP levels at this site? For example, are you limited by the need to
maintain a detectable disinfectant residual in your ability to control DBP levels
in the distribution system?

If NO, proceed to item I. If YES, explain below and consult EPA’s Simultaneous
Compliance Guidance Manual for alternative compliance approaches.

¥ No

. Conclusion
Did the distribution system cause or contribute to the OEL exceedance(s)?
[1 Possibly

If NO, proceed to evaluations of treatment systems and source water. If YES or
POSSIBLY, explain below.

The water system has 20,000 gallons of storage and the school was closed at the time that the
sample was drawn. There was little to no water usage at the water System at the time of sampling,




Operational Evaluation Reporting Form Page 2 of 2

lll. OPERATIONAL EVALUATION FINDINGS

A. Did the State allow you to limit the scope of the operational evaluation? O Yes [ No

If NO, proceed to item B. If YES, attach written correspondence from the State.

Yes [dNo
B. Did the distribution system cause or contribute to your OEL exceedance(s)?
[ Possibly
If NO, proceed to item C. If YES or POSSIBLY, explain (attach additional pages if

necessary):
The school has 20,000 gallons of storage and the school only uses 100-250 gallons per day.

[ Yes No
C. Did the treatment system cause or contribute to your OEL exceedance(s)?
[ Possibly
If NO, proceed to item D. If YES or POSSIBLY, explain (attach additional pages if
necessary):
bute t OEL d ? ik
. Di ater quality cause or contribute to you exceedance(s
D. Did source water q ity cause or con e to your ceedance(s) & Possibly
If NO, proceed to item E. if YES or POSSIBLY, explain (attach additionail pages if

necessary);
The well only has a 22’ seal.

E. Attach all supporting operational or other data that support the determination of the cause(s)
of your OEL exceedance(s).

F. Ifyou are unable to determine the causé(s) of the OEL exceedance(s), list the steps that you
can use to better identify the cause(s) in the future (attach additional pages if necessary):
The school only uses 100-250 gallons of water per day.

G. List steps that could be considered to minimize future OEL exceedances (attach additional
pages if necessary)
The school has applied for a grant to make changes to their treatment procedures.

H.  Total Number of Pages Submitted, Including Attachments and Checklists: 2

_——




Source Water Evaluation Checklist Page 1 of 2

1 NO DATA AVAILABLE

System Name: Nicasio School 2100582

Checklist Completed by: Gary Mickelson Date:  12/10/19

A. Do you have source water temperature data? Cyes [ONo
If NO, proceed to item B. If YES, was the source water temperature
high? ’ Ovyes [INo

If NO, proceed to item B. If YES, answer the following questions for the time period
prior to the OEL exceedance.
Yes No

(W] B Was the raw water storage time longer than usual?

(| Did you place another water source on-line?
O B Wereriverireservoir flow rates lower than usual? If yes, indicate the location of
lower flow rates and the anticipated impact on the OEL exceedance.

0 Did point or non-point sources in the watershed contribute to the OEL
exceedance?’

B. Do you have data that characterizes organic matter in your source water (e.g., BlYes [INo
TOC, DOC, SUVA, color, THM formation potential)?

:roh:r?u'a :)?roceed to item C. If YES, were these values higher than [ ves No

if NO, proceed to item C. If YES, answer the following Questions for the time period

prior to the OEL exceedance.

Yes No

O O bid heavy rainfall or snowmelt occur in the watershed?

0 [ Didyou place another water source on-line?

0 DO Didlake or reservoir turnover occur?

O [0  Did point or non-point sources in the watershed contribute to the OEL
exceedance?

O O Dpidan algal bloom occur in the source water?

] [J Ifalgal blooms were present, were appropriate algae control measures
employed (e.g. addition of copper suifate)?

00 O Did ataste and odor incident oceur?

C. Do you have source water bromide data? O ves No
If NO, proceed to item D. If YES, were the bromide levels higher or
lower than normal? Oves DONo

If NO, proceed to item D. If YES, answer the following questions for the time period
prior to the OEL exceedance.

Yes No

O [ Has saltwater intrusion occurred?

] O Are you experiencing a long-term drought?

00 O Did heavy rainfall or snowmelt oceur in the watershed?
a O obid you place another water source on-line?

O O Are you aware of any industrial spills in the watershed?




Source Water Evaluation Checklist Page 2 of 2

D. Do you have source water turbidity or particle count data? Myes [ONo
If NO, proceed to item E. If YES, were the turbldity values or particle
counts higher than normal? LI ves No

If NO, proceed to item E. if YES, answer the following questions for the time period
prior to the OEL exceedance.

Yes No

o | O Did lake or reservoir turnover occur?
(] O bid heavy rainfall or snowmelt occur in the watershed?

0 O Did logging, fires, or landslides occur in the watershed?

O O Were riverireservoir flow rates higher than normal?

E.  Doyou have source water pH or alkalinity data? MyYes [ONo

If NO, proceed to item F. If YES, was the pH or alkalinity different from [ Yes No
normal values?

If NO, proceed to item F. If YES, answer the following questions for the time period
prior to the OEL exceedance.

Yes No

(| O Wastherean algal bloom in the source water?

O O Ifalgal blooms were present were algae control measures employed?
O O Did heavy rainfall or snowmelt oceur in the watershed?

0 O Hasthe PWS experienced diurnal pH changes in source water?

F. Conclusion

O vYes B No

Did source water quality factors contribute to your OEL exceedance?
[ Possibly

If YES or POSSIBLY, explain below.




Treatment Process Evaluation Checklist Page 1of 4
[JNO DATA AVAILABLE

Facility Name: Nicasio School

Checklist Completed by: Gary Mickelson Date:  12/10/19

A.  Review finished water data for the time period prior to the OEL exceedance(s) and compare to
historical finished water data using the following questions:

Were DBP precursors (TOC, DOC, SUVA, bromide, etc.) higher than normal? [JYes [FINo

Was finished water pH higher or lower than normai? Oyes MNo
Was the finished water temperature higher than normal? Cyes MNo
Was finished water turbidity higher than normal? OvYes M No
Was the disinfectant concentration leaving the plant(s) higher than normai? O yes 4 No
Were finished water TTHM/HAAS levels higher than normal? Yes [INo

Were operational and water quality data available to the system operator for ¥ Yes [INo
effective decision making?

B. Does the treatment process include predisinfection? MyYes [JINo

If NO, proceed to item C. If YES, answer the following questions for the period in which
an OEL exceedance occurred:

Yes No
M O  Wasdisinfected raw water stored for an unusually long time?
[0 Were treatment plant flows lower than normal?
%} O were treatment plant flows equally distributed among different trains?
O Were water temperatures high or warmer than usual?
O B were chiorine feed rates outside the normal range?
M [ wasa disinfectant residual present in the treatment train following predisinfection?
O B Wereonline instruments utilized for process control?
[0 M Did you switch to free chiorine as the oxidant?
(| Was there a recent change (or addition) of pre-oxidant?
O ¥ Did you change the location of the predisinfection application?
C. Does your treatment process include presedimentation? Ovyes [¥ No

If NO, proceed to item D. If YES, answer the following questions for the period in which
an OEL exceedance occurred:

Yes No

O O Wereflows low?

O O wWereflows high?

O DO Wereonline instruments utilized for process control?

O O wes sludge removed from the presedimentation basin?

O DO was sludge allowed to accumulate for an excessively long time?
O O bo you add a coagulant to your presedimentation basin?

0O DO was there a problem with the coagulant feed?




Treatment Process Evaluation Checklist Page 2 of 4

D. Does your treatment process include coagulation and/or flocculation? OYes MNo

If NO, proceed to item E. If YES, answer the following questions for the period in which
an OEL exceedance occurred:

Yes

O

O00 OooOonoao

No
O

OO0 OoOo o

Were there any feed pump failures or were feed pumps operating at improper feed
rates?

Were chemical feed systems controlled by flow pacing?
Were there changes in coagulation practices or the feed point?

Did you change the type or manufacturer of the coagulant?

Do you suspect that the coagulant in use at the time of the OEL exceedance did
not meet industry standards?

Did the pH or alkalinity change at the point of coagulant addition?
Were there broken or plugged mixers?

Were flow rates above the design rate or was there short-circuiting?

E. Does your treatment process include sedimentation or clarification? Oves MHENo

If NO, proceed to item F. If YES, answer the following questions for the period in which
an OEL exceedance occurred:

Yes

O

O oOon

0

No
O

OO0

O

Were there changes in plant flow rate that may have resulted in a decrease in
settling time or carry-over of process solids?

Were settied water turbidities higher than normal?
Was there any disruption in the sludge blanket that may have resulted in carryover
to the point of disinfection?

Was there any maintenance in the basin that may have stirred sludge from the
bottom of the basin and caused it to carry over to the point of disinfectant
addition?

Was sludge aliowed to accumulate for an excessively long time or was there a
malfunction in the sludge removal equipment?




Treatment Process Evaluation Checklist Page 3 of 4
F. Does your treatment process include filtration? Yes [ONo

If NO, proceed to item G, if YES, answer the following questions for the period in which
an OEL exceedance occurred:

Yes No

m] Was there an increase In individual or combined filter effluent turbidity or particle
counts?

O Was there an increase in turbidity or particle loading onto the filters?

0 Was there an increase in flow onto the filters or malfunction of the rate of flow
controllers?

0 g  Were any filters taken off-line for an extended period of time that caused the other
filters to operate near maximum design capacity and creating the conditions for
possible breakthrough?

O B Were any filters operated beyond their normal filter run time?

m| [ Were there any unusual spikes in individual filter effluent turbidity (which may

indicate particulate or colloidal TOC breakthrough) in the days leading to the
excursion?

O Were all filters run in a filter-to-waste mode during initial filter ripening?

(H [0 If GAC filters are used, is it possible the adsorptive capacity of the GAC bed was
reached before reactivation occurred (leave blank if not applicable)?

I [0  [f biological filtration is used, were there any process upsets that may have
resulted in the breakthrough of TOC (leave blank if not applicable)?

G. Does your treatment process include primary disinfection by injecting chlorine
prior to a clearwell? Oves No

If NO, proceed to item H. If YES, answer the following questions for the period in which
an OEL exceedance occurred:

Yes No

) | Was there a sudden increase in the amount of chiorine fed or an increase in the
chlorine residual?

(] [0 Was there an increase in clearwell holding time?
O [ Wasthe plant shut down or were plant flows low?
(| O Wastherean increase in clearwell water temperature?
O [ Didyou switch to free chiorine recently as the primary disinfectant?
O O wasthe inactivation of Giardia and/or viruses exceptionally high?
O [ Was there achange in the mixing strategy (i.e. mixers not used, adjustment of
tank level)? '
H. Does your plant recycle spent filter backwash or other streams? Oves HMENo

If NO, proceed to item I. If YES, answer the following questions for the period in which
an OEL exceedance occurred:
Yes No
0 [1 Didachange in the recycle stream quality contribute to increased DBP precursor
loading that was not addressed by treatment plant processes?

O [ Did arecycle event result in flows in excess of typical or design flows?




Treatment Process Evaluation Checklist Page 4 of 4

I. Do you inject a disinfectant after your clearwell to maintain a distribution
system residual? - O Yes No
If NO, proceed to item J. If YES, answer the following questions for the period in which
an OEL exceedance occurred:

Yes No
O O Was there a sudden increase in the amount of chiorine fed?

0 O  Was there a switch from chloramines to free chlorine for a burnout period?
O 0o i using chloramines, was the chlorine to ammonia ratio in the proper range?

(] O Wastherea problem with either chlorine or ammonia mixing?

J. Did concern about complying with a rule other than Stage 2 DBPR, such as the [ Yes BN
Lead and Copper rule, the LT2ESWTR, or any other rule constrain your options 0
to reduce the DBP levels at this site? For example, are you limited by other
treatment targets/requirements in your ability to control precursors in
coagulation/flocculation?

If NO, proceed to item K. If YES, explain below and consult EPA’s Simultaneous
Compliance Guidance Manual for alternative compliance approaches.

K. Conclusion

. o . Clves No
Did treatment factors and/or variations in the plant performance contribute to the

OEL exceedance(s)? ] Possibly

If YES or POSSIBLY, explain below.




“Este aviso contlene |nforma0|on muy |mportante sobre su agua potable por favor Iea eI awso ‘
en espafiol si va aqui incluido. Si el aviso en espafiol no va incluido aqui, contacte al sistema de
agua para pedir una copia.

NICASIO SCHOOL has levels of Haloacetic Acids
Above Drinking Water Standards

Our water system recently failed a drinking water standard. Although this is not an emergency,
as our customers, you have a right to know what you should do, what happened, and what we
are doing to correct this situation.

We routinely monitor for the presence of drinking water contaminants. Testing results we received
on July 11, 2019 show that our system exceeded the standard, or maximum contaminant level
(MCL), for Haloacetic Acids. The MCL standards for Haloacetic Acids are 60 ug/L. The average
level of Haloacetic Acids over the first three quarters of 2019 was 65 ug/L.

What should | do?

. You do not need to use an alternative (e.g. bottied) water supply.

e This is not an immediate risk. If it had been, you would have been notified immediately.
However, some people who drink water containing halocetic acids in excess of the MCL
over many years may have an increased risk of getting cancer.

o If you have other health issues concerning the consumption of this water, you may wish
to consult your doctor.

What happened? What was done?

To protect drinking water from disease-causing organisms, a disinfectant is added to drinking
water. However, disinfection byproducts can form when organic-rich water is disinfected. A
major challenge is how to control and limit risks from pathogens, maintain sufficient chiorine
levels to help remove iron and manganese, and minimize disinfection byproduct formation at the
same time. Disinfection byproducts tend to be highest during periods of long detention times in
storage tanks As a result of the disinfection process, we have exceeded the MCL level of HAAS5.

Nicasio School has applied for state funding to upgrade the district’s water treatment
system as recommended by state engineers. These upgrades, once funding is secured
and they are completed, will address the problem indentified in this citation. Those
upgrades include new multimedia filters, a new transfer pump on the suction lines from
the old cement tanks, new filters on the existing poly tank, and relocation of the existing
booster pumps to the discharge of the existing poly tank.

We anticipate resolving the problem as soon as the state grant is approved.

For more information, please contact Barbara Snekkevik at 415-662-2184 or at the following
mailing address: P.O. Box 711, Nicasio, CA 94946.

Please share this information with all the other people who drink this water, especially those who
may not have received this notice directly (for example, people in apartments, nursing homes,
schools, and businesses). You can do this by posting this notice in a public place or distributing
copies by hand or mail.

Secondary Notification Requirements
Upon receipt of notification from a person operating a public water system, the following
notification must be given within 10 days [Health and Safety Code Section 116450(g)):
e« SCHOOLS: Must notify school employees, students, and parents (if the students are
minors).



e RESIDENTIAL RENTAL PROPERTY OWNERS OR MANAGERS (including nursing
homes and care facilities): Must notify tenants.

» BUSINESS PROPERTY OWNERS, MANAGERS, OR OPERATORS: Must notify
employees of businesses located on the property.
This notice is being sent to you by the Nicasio School water system.

State Water System |D#: 2100582 Date distributed: December 12, 2019.



L INFORMACION IMPORTANTE SOBRE SUAGUA POTABLE (i "

Este aviso contiene informacién muy importante sobre su agua potable, por favor léalo bien.

El agua de La Escuela Nicasio tiene niveles de Acidos Haloacéticos que exceden
el Estandar para Agua Potable

Recientemente se determiné que nuestro sistema de agua estaba en exceso del estandar para
un contaminante. Aunque esto no es una emergencia, usted como nuestro cliente, tiene el
derecho de saber qué debe hacer, qué pas6, y qué estamos haciendo para corregir esta
situacion.

Hacemos monitoreo rutinariamente para detectar la presencia de contaminantes en el agua
potable. Los resultados de las pruebas que recibimos en 11 de julio 2019 muestran que nuestro
sistema de agua excede el estandar, o nivel maximo de contaminantes (MCL), para Acidos
Haloacéticos. El estandar o MCL para Acidos Haloacéticos es 60 microgramos por litro (ug/L). El
nivel promedio de Acidos Haloacéticos para primeros tres trimestres del afio de 2019 fue 65ug/L].

¢ Qué debe hacer usted?

o Usted no necesita usar agua emboteliada u ofra alternativa de suministro de agua.

. Este no es un riesgo inmediato. Si lo hubiera sido, usted hubiera sido notificado de
inmediato. No obstante, puede aumentar el riesgo de tener cancer para algunas personas
que a lo largo de muchos afios usan agua que contiene acidos haloacéticos en exceso
del nivel maximo de contaminantes (MCL),

o Si tiene otros problemas de salud respecto al consumo de esta agua, tal vez usted deba
consultar con su doctor.

¢Qué pas6? ;Qué se hizo al respecto?
Tratamiento del agua para beber.

Para proteger el agua que usamos para beber de organismos causantes de enfermedades, se
anade un desinfectante al agua potable. Sin embargo, entitis biolégicas pueden formarse en el
agua desinfectada. Un obstaculos mayor esta en el cémo controlar y limitar el riesgos de
patégenos, mantener suficiente nivel de cloro para remover hierro y magnesio y, al mismo
tiempo, minimizar la formacién de bioproductos. Bioproductos debido a desinfectantes tienden
a aumentar en periodos largos de encierro en tanques de almacenaje. Como resultado del
proceso de desinfeccién, hemos exedido el MCL (Nivel Maximo de Contaminacién) de HAAS
(Acido Haloacético 5).

La Escuela Nicasio ha solicitado el financiaminento estatal para modernizar el sistema de
tratamiento de agua del distrito, bajo la recomendacién por ingenieros estatales. Esta
modernizacién, una vez que el financiamiento es seguro y el trabajo completado, permitira
atender el problema identificado en este citatorio. Esta modernizacién incluye la instalacién de
nuevos filtros multimedia, un nueva bomba de transferencia en las lineas de succién desde los
tanques de cemento viejos, nuevos filtros en el actual tanque de polietireno y la reubicacion de
las bombas de refuerzo existentes para la descarga del tanque de polietireno existente.

Anticipamos resolver el problema tan pronto como el financiamiento estatal es aprobado.

Para mas informacién, contacte a Barbara Snekkevik al (415) 662-2184 o a la siguiente direccién
postal: PO Box 711, Nicasio, CA 94946.

Por favor comparta esta informacién con todas las demdas personas que tomen de esta agua,
especialmente aquellos que no hayan recibido éste aviso directamente (por ejemplo, las
personas en apartamentos, asilos, escuelas, y negocios). Puede hacerlo poniendo este aviso en
un lugar publico o distribuyendo copias en persona o por correo.



Requisitos de Notificacion Secundaria
Al recibir la notificacién de alguien que opere un sistema de agua publico, se debe dar la
siguiente notificacién dentro de 10 dias conforme a la Seccién 116450(g) del Codigo de Salud y
Seguridad:
» ESCUELAS: Deben notificar a los empleados de la escuela, estudiantes, y a los padres
(si los estudiantes son menores).
» DUENOS O GERENTES DE PROPIEDAD PARA ALQUILER RESIDENCIAL (incluyendo
asilos e instituciones de cuidado): Deben notificar a sus inquilinos.
+ DUENOS DE PROPIEDAD DE NEGOCIOS, GERENTES, U OPERADORES: Deben
notificar a los empleados de los negocios situados en la propiedad.

Este aviso esta siendo enviado por el sistema de agua La Escuela Nicasio.
Nam. de Identificacién del Sistema Estatal de Agua: 2100582

Fecha de distribucién: December 12, 2019.



Nicasio School District  Agenda Item # 7 d
Since 1862

Board of Trustees

Michelle Rutledge, Board President ~ Elaine Doss, Trustee ~ Mark Burton, Trustee

MINUTES
Annual Organizational Meeting of the Nicasio School District Board of Trustees
Thursday, December 5, 2019 5pm

Nicasio School Library, 5555 Nicasio Valley Road, California

1. OPENING BUSINESS

a. Callto Orderat5:02pm

b. Roll Call Present: Trustees Elaine Doss and Mark Burton Late arrival: Trustee Michelle
Rutledge Also in attendance: Interim Superintendent Nancy Neu, Principal Barbara
Snekkevik, and District Secretary/Office Manager Mikki Mcintyre

c. Patriotic Moment recognizing the historic significance of the impeachment hearings with
the hope that students are learning about the Constitutional process and what the
founding fathers intended.

d. Approval of Closed Session Agenda
Action: M/S: Doss/Burton to approve and adopt Closed Session Agenda Vote: 2/0
Ayes: Doss and Burton; Noes: None

e. Public Comment on Closed Session Topic(s) There was no public comment.

2. CLOSED SESSION
a. The following Closed Session item is listed below in compliance with Government Code
#54957 of the Brown Act:
e PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT/EMPLOYMENT
b. Recess to Closed Session to consider and/or take action upon any item on the Closed Session
Agenda at 5:11pm

3. Reconvene in OPEN SESSION
a. Adjourn Closed Session and Reconvene Open Session at 5:15pm
b. Report Out Announcement of any reportable action take during Closed Session There was
no reportable action.

4. Approval and Adoption of Open Session Agenda
Action: M/S: Doss/Burton to approve and adopt Open Session Agenda Vote: 2/0 Ayes: Doss
and Burton; Noes: None

5. Reports
a. Trustee/Superintendent Announcements

¢ Interim Supt. Neu reported a countywide effort to help high school students develop their
voices and network with each other regarding issues of equity. Countywide discussions
have also focused on building “makeup” days into school calendars due to school closures
resulting from power outages and other causes. Interim Supt. Neu advised that the District
adjust its calendar accordingly, being mindful of aligning with schools countywide. A
trustee reported discussions with a local business owner about the possibility of providing
space in his emergency generator-powered facility for academic instruction during power

December 5, 2019
Board Minutes



outages at the school. He said the owner is receptive to the idea and would only charge the
District a minimal facility use fee. Interim Supt. Neu said MCOE Superintendent Mary Jane
Burke is supportive of the concept. The District would provide an insurance rider. Interim
Supt. Neu added that a revised annual calendar that includes makeup days will still be
brought to the Board as an action item.

Principal Announcements Principal Snekkevik provided the following report:

e Events & Activities: Spirit Day, Patriot’s Day (Nov. 8), Principal’s Chat (Nov. 8),
Parent/Teacher Conferences (Dec. 4-6)

o Student Updates & Achievements: Trimester 1 ended (Nov. 15), 6/7/8 Field Trip to
Lagunitas School, guest speaker Michael Pritchard (Nov. 22), Canned Food Drive for San
Geronimo Valley Community Center, School Assembly (Dec. 4), December Life Skill:
Respect, One Warm Coat Drive (Dec. 2- Jan. 17)

o Staff Updates: Workshops: Developing Expert Language Learners (Day 2) attended by
Damena Ware (Nov. 20) & EL Reading/Writing Workshop attended by Ellian Klein (Dec. 3)

e Site Updates: Annual Kitchen Inspection (Dec. 3),

Upcoming Events: Winter Holiday Program (Dec. 19), All-school waffle breakfast and
Pajama Day (Dec. 20), Teacher Work Day (Jan. 6), Principal’s Chat (Jan. 16)

4, Governance
a.

Annual Organizational Meeting of the Board of Trustees in accordance with Ed. Code #35143
e Election of Officers to the Board of Trustees
Action: M/S: Doss/Burton to maintain status quo of trustee duties: Michelle Rutledge,
President; Elaine Doss, Clerk; and Mark Burton, MCSBA Representative Vote: 2/0 Ayes: Doss,
Burton; Noes: None
¢ Establish Regular Board of Trustees Meeting Schedule
Action: M/S: Doss/Burton to approve 2020-21 Regular Board of Trustees Meeting Schedule
with the modification of scheduling a morning Board workshop in early Fall, 2020. Vote: 3/0
Ayes: Doss, Burton, Rutledge; Noes: None

5. Public Comment

a.

An audience member said it sounds like the district doesn’t have any issues.

6. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes: November 7, 2019

b. Ratify Warrants Paid: November, 2019

¢. Request for Allowance of Attendance Because of Emergency Conditions

d. Personnel Action
Action: M/S: Doss/Burton to approve Consent Agenda Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Doss, Burton,
Rutledge; Noes: None

7. Action
a. Consider Approval of 2019-20 First Interim Report Discussion: CBO Bonardi presented

December 5, 2019
Board Minutes

her report, summarizing that the budget is doing well right now. Property taxes were
approximately 1% higher than anticipated. There was little change in state and federal
revenue. Local revenue rose by $14,000, thanks to additional N.S. Foundation funding.
The $98,550 budget increase is mostly due to salary and benefits increases. Most of the
$71,000 deficit is due to one-time expenditures. The Board continues to maintain two
special reserves for uncertainties, including special education. The two-year out budget



proposal is currently looking healthy, although some one-time expenses, such as science
curriculum, are still ahead.

Action: M/S: Doss/Burton to approve 2019-20 First Interim Report Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Doss,
Burton, Rutledge; Noes: None

b. Consider Approval of Contract with Omni Financial Group for Third Party Administrative
Services Effective January 1, 2020 Discussion: CBO Bonardi confirmed that Omni Financial
Group will not charge employees for making contributions to their 403(b) retirement
accounts.

Action: M/S: Doss/Burton to approve Contract with Omni Financial Group for Third Party
Administrative Services Effective January 1, 2020 Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Doss, Burton, Rutledge;
Noes: None

c. Consider Approval of Capacities for Interdistrict Attendance into Nicasio School District
for 2020-21 Discussion: Interim Supt. Neu recommended increasing classroom capacity
from 16 to 18 for the Gr. 3-5 classroom. She said doing so will allow a natural progression of
current Gr. 2 Interdistrict transfer (IDT) students into the Gr. 3-5 classroom next year. Doing
so will prevent the loss of those students and help build enroliment. She also advised that the
Board consider future revision to BP/AR 5117 as it relates to classroom and grade-level
targets.
Action: M/S: Doss/Burton to approve change in classroom capacity of Gr. 3-5 from 16 to
18 for Interdistrict attendance into Nicasio School District for 2020-21 Vote: 3/0 Ayes:
Doss, Burton, Rutledge; Noes: None

8. Correspondence
a. Re: League Ballot Measure Endorsements, Ann Wakeley and Ann Batman, Co-Presidents,
League of Women Voters of Marin County, Nov. 10, 2019

9. Conclusion
a. Agenda items for upcoming Board Agenda
o Safety Plan Update
¢ Williams Quarterly Report
¢ 20-21 Annual Calendar
e Audit
o Closed Session
o SARC Report

b. Adjournment
Action: M/S: Dass/Burton to adjourn meeting at 6:08pm Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Doss, Rutledge,
Burton; Noes: None

Respectfully Submitted,

Mikki Mcintyre

] Unadopted [ Adopted

Elaine Doss, Board Clerk

December 5, 2019
Board Minutes



Agenda ltem # 7b
Nicasio School District

Since 1862

Board of Trustees
Michelle Rutledge, Board President ~ Elaine Doss, Trustee ~ Mark Burton, Trustee

To: Nicasio School District Board of Trustees
From: Margie Bonardi, Interim CBO

Date: Feb 6, 2020

Re: Approval of Warrants

Objective: To approve monthly warrants

Background: Warrants are processed monthly and reflect expenditures for Nicasio School and
District. May warrants include: employee payroll, district operations, safety, instructional
materials, supplies, and state and county required expenditures.

Funding Source/Cost: LCFF Funds/ through January 2020 Total for all batches: $ 54,260.20
Batches: 16 through 21, 2019-20

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of Warrants.

5555 Nicasio Valley Road / P.O. Box 711, Nicasio, CA 94946
& 415.662.2184 / B 415.662.2250 / www.nicasioschool.org




LO %S T00Z98EETEGE

907 LL TOOEYBEETERE

10°¢€8 T0008EBFEB8E

11°8 T006LE8BV688E

008 T0076SPE6BBE

CEELS

cETEL TOOPLBIELOTT

L6°T6L'ITS

00°SetT 0LEDOC

007 00T 03%€00¢

00°SLE ¢9€£00¢

L6°Z6T'91 67£00¢

00°00Ss

007008 6T0C AON Y6TTSSTO0CE

€5°ZE6S

£5°¢2¢€6 SPLISEC

€T 1h¥S

e 1Y ¢68016€10000

§¢'es

T4 DEVHD HONUNIJ ¥-Z7GZTJd ANI

LNNOWY NOIXLAI¥OSAA
WON INNODOY

1 qD¥d  02/L2/T0

WON ¥4V

000-000-000-00T8-0000-00"00€Y-0-0000-T0

000-000-000-00T8-0000-00"00€¥-0-0000-TO

000-000-000-00€8-0000-00"00€%-0-0000-T0

000-000-000-0028-0000-00"00€%-0-0000-T0

000~000~000-0028~-0000-00"00£%-0-0000-10

TYL0L ENVINVM
020~-000-000-0T0T-0TTT~-00"00€F-0-00€2-T0

1 S8ETO0Z-0d

T €€£1002-0d

ONI NOILVYONdE TTIH MYADOW

IY10L INTIEYM
000-000-000-0T0T-0TTIT-00"0025-0-0000-10

000-000-000-0T0OT-CTTIT-00"0025-0-0000-T0

000-000-000~0TOT-QTTT-00"0025-0-0000-10

000-000~-000-002L~-0000-00"0F85-0-0000-T0

d3d 40 421440 ALNNOD NIYUVIW

IYIOL LNVIUYM
000-000-000-0TOT-0TT1-00"0F65-0-22€6-T0

TYLIOL LNVIUYM
000-000-000-0T0OT-TS¥T-00"00€VP-0-02€6-T0

TYIOL LNTIUIM
000~-000-000-00LZ2-0000-00"0L65-0~-0000-10

TYLOL LNVIUYM
000-000-000-00T8-0000-00"019G6-0-0000-T0

LOdaq dADTIA0 /L00000 80825202

T Z2y1002-04
/610000 L08CSZOC

T LPTI002-04

1 9%T1002-0d

T 701002-0d

1 920002-04
/671100 908Z520¢

T ¢k000¢-0d
OZNI /6¥PT00 G08ZSZ0Z

T 9€T002-0d
STYTHILVW I¥V MOITd /6%0T00 ¥082S520¢

=1 §00002-04
L3L¥ /896000 €£082GZ0T

S20002-Ad
SLNZY VYIS TTY /98€T00 <€08BCSZOC

NT HONTEHAET #0034

ddd LDV DOT DNAA TY¥0D 0§ I0dO & O83¥ dd
AdAL LISO44d

6T10Z/€0/2T QELVA SINVYYYM ¥HOJ
HILSIDEY INYAHYM TV IDYIWAOD
uoTyEoNPE JO A0TIF0 AJuUnod uTIeR

(LINEEM) FWYN

aNNd TYHddINED

dAAY/A00NTA  INVIIYM

10 * annd

6T/%0/2T 492 9100 :HOLVY
LOIYLSIA TOOHODS OISYIIN T£0 :IDIMISIA

90700°1 0SZAdY



%00 05023
kOO.m
%00'$
00" 0FG 1026

x00°0bG°02Z$
x00"$
«00°%
=00 0bS‘0Z%

x00°0%G 0%
00" %
«00°$
x00°0pS°0Z%

s LNAOWY ‘I¥LOL 0T SSINHWAYd TYLOL

sLAd A0 INAOWY ‘IVLIOL ¢} SQALYYANTD I4d TYICL

*HOY J0 LINAOWY TIYILOL 0 SQALYYANTD HOV TYLIOL
$SMDOHEHD A0 LNAOWV TYLIOL ot SSADEHD 40 JAGWAN TVLOL xxx STYLOL LOIULSIQ xx»

S LNOOWY 'I¥LOL 0T SSLNIWAYd TVLIOL

Ldd 0 LNOOWY "IYLOL Q SQALYHENAD LAd TYIOL

*HOY 40 INNOWY TYILOL 0 OALYYENED HOV TVICL
SSMOEHD J0 INAOWY TYLOL 0T $SMOIHD 40 ¥IGWNN TYIOL ¥xx STYLOL HOLVE *¥¥

*LNDOWY TYLOL 0T *SLNIWAYd TYLOL

Ldd A0 INAOWY TIVYLOL 0 SUALYHENYED 149 TYICL

*HOY 40 INNOWY TVYLOL 0 JALYYENED HOV TVIOL
SSMOEHD JO LNNOWY TYLOL 0T SSMOEHD J0 YEIWAN TYIOL xxx STYLOL ANDA  xxx

T2°2€S TYLOL LNYTIEYM
IXANAS WIS TYdIDNIEd 000-000-000-00L2-0000-00"00€F-0-0000-T0 9¢000¢-Ad
ATAIMMENS VIVaIvVd /8TVT00 11825202
00°0GLs TYIOL LNVIMVM
0070SL LNIWAYd 6702 d3LOLI0O 000-000-000-0TOT-0TTI-00"0¥85~0-0000~T0 1 8€£000¢2-04
ODXTIS /092100 0182520¢
66°66S TYIOL LNTRAYM
66766 60C06TTET 000-000-000-00€8-0000-00"0295-0-0000-T0 T ¥€0002-04d
NIMOLINOW WIV¥TIV dANO NOILIOILOHEd /¥0ZT00 608Z5Z0¢C
09°G16s TYLOL LNTIUYM
¥ ot T00596860€0F 000-000-000-0TOT-0TTT-00"00EFP-0-00TT-T0 T
T1°LS T00596860€0F 000-000-000-00L2~0000-00"00€FP-0~0000~-T0 'T €¥1002-0d
€87 0€€E TOO0BTOETEGE 000-000-000-0018-0000-00"00€P-0-0000-TC 'T
L0602 TOOT9BEETERE 000-000~000-00T8-0000-00"00EF-0-0000-TC "T
LNOOWY NCILdTID8dd dMO ILO¥ D07 DNNA TV0D OS LL€E0 A OSHEY 4 NT  JONIHMIITE #03d
WAON LNNODDY WON vavy IdAL L1s0ddd (LINEY) dIWYN ¥aa¥/90aNda  INYE¥YM
aNOd TYIENID 0 ¢ aNna
6T/70/2T a9 9100 *HOLVH
6T10¢/€0/2T QUIVA SINVEIYM ¥Od LOIYISIQ TOOHDS OISVOIN T€0 :LDINLSIA
HALSIOHE LNVIYYM TYIDYIWWOD
4 dov¥d 0Z/L2/70 uctieonpg Jo 827330 Ajunod utaeyn 907001 0SZXdY



+80"€0T'9¢ T INNOWY TYLOL L ISINIWAY TYIOL
%»00'$ $1dE 40 INNOWY TYIOL 0 TQAIYIANTD 149 TYIOL
»00°$ THOY 40 INNOWV TVLIOL 0 PQALVEANED HOV TYLOL
»80°€0T*9% {SMOFHO A0 INNOWY TYIOL L $SMDFHD A0 ¥EIWON TYILOL yxy STYIOL IOTUISIA sxx
80 €0T 9% P INNOWY TYLOL L tSINFHWAYA TYIOL
+00'$ 1149 A0 INNOWY TY¥IOL 0 PQALVIANTD 149 TYI0L
%00 ¢ THOV J0 INNOWY TVIOL 0 tQILYIANTO HOV TV1OL
+80°€0T 9% $SMOWHD A0 INAOWY TYIOL L {SMOTHD 40 YIIWON TYIOL xxx STYIOL HOLIVE P
x80°€0T’9¢ t INNOWY TYIOL L ISINEWAYd TYICL
*»00° 8 $Ldd 0 INNOWY TYIOL 0 TQEIYIANTD 143 TYLOL
*00°$ tHOY I0 INNOWY TY1OL 0 PAALVIANED HOV TYIOL
x80°€0T 9% ISMOEHD A0 INQOWY TYIOL L $SMOEHD A0 YHIWNN TYIOL ¥y STYIOL ANNA sxx
00" 00G‘E$ TYLOL INVEYYM
00°00S‘¢c €4 ONITIE SSAUD0Yd 000-000-000-T6TL-0000~00"6085-0-0000-T0 "T  0%0002-0d
¥0D ADNYINNOIOY HOLVOM NAHAALS /S8TT00 LBSESZOT
00°00%$ TYI0L INYIHYM
00°00% INIWAYA 6102 OIQ 000-000-000-0018-0000-00"0¥85-0-0000-T0 ‘T  9€0002-0d
YNVATYS TOVH /ZLZT00 98GE€S202
66°90T$ TYLOL INVINYM
66°90T €PEBGITET 000-000-000-00€8-0000-00"0295-0-0000-T0 "T  $£0002-0d
NIYOLINOW WMY'TY ANO NOILOALO¥A /b0ZT00 SBSESZOZ
€T 668$ TYIOL INTINYM
GE" 12 9-0LBZLIVIGE 000-000-000-0028-0000-00"0T55-0-0000-T0 "T
8L°LZ8 P-£9€69.9158 000-000-000-00¢8-0000-00"0155-0-0000-10 "T  T€000g-0d
T35 594 /210000 ¥#85£520¢
2T L6ES TYLOL LNYIIYM
PSTILT 100967891907 000-000-000-0T0T-0TTT-00 00€p~0-00TT~T0 'C
[AR 1 T0096789T90F 000-000-000-00€L-0000-00"00£F-0-0000-T0 "€
PSILT T0096¥89T90% 000-000-000-00£2-0000-00"00€F=~0=-0000-T0 T  8FT00C-04
104d3a FITAI0 /L00000 £85£5202
00°68L$ TYIOL INVIEYM
00°G8L 96£00¢ ANI 000-000-000-0T0T-0TTT-00"0%¥25-0-0000-T0 "T  LET00Z-0d
ad A0 ADIIA0 AINNOD NI¥YH /6FTT00 Z8SEGZ0T
pL B9 TYIOL INVIHYM
pL B9 SATITAANS GWIFH AYFTIVE ¥ 000-000-000-0T0T-0TIT-00"00£F-0-6TE6-T0 LZ000Z-Ad
AMITIVE HOITY /ZEVTO0  186£5202
LNNOWY NOIIATYOSHU J¥9 IOV 00T ONAA I¥09 OS LME0 X OSHEY a4 NI AONIYHATd  403d
WON INNODIY WON ¥EY 4dAL IIS043d (LIWTI) TWYN YAAY/HOANIA  INVIUYM
aNnd TYYENID 10 ¢ aNna
6T/11/2T A9 LT00 ‘HOLVE
6102/11/2T QALYA SINVYIYM ¥0d LOIMISIA TTOOHDS OISYOIN T€0 :10IMISIQ
YALSIDAY INVINYM TYIDNANWOD
T F9¥d uoTiednpd JO @5TIJ0 AjuUnoD uTIey 90°00°T  0GZAdY






[t a8 %%
207 €E

68°6E1S
68°6€T

¥0° 586 1S
PL 66

0€°S8F ‘T

LE600'TS
LET600'T

00°006%
007008

TE"08T TS
T€E08T°T

pE°59%
re 69

TS 6LLTS
1S°6LLT

T go¥d  02/Le/10

JIALNIOW W dWIdd

SYHIWAOS 3 ¥04 LITHED M

NOISIA

JdSIvAa

NI-S909€T0

d6TTSSTO0CE

£EGFSI8YEDT

SHUDIAYAS HOIAAQ0 GWIHY

£70¥69660€

WYXYE ADOTOHLAW MNITHED

NOILAIYOSHA
WON LNOOJDY WON v9¥

6102/81/27T QALVA SLNVYYYM d04
WILSIOET INVIIYM TYIDHdIWWOD

TYLOL LNVIEYM

6T1/81/2T 49 8T00

uoTIESNPE JO 90TIIO AJUNO) UTIEH

LOTALSTIA TOOHDS OISYDIN T€0

90°00°1

0rEVSZ0Z

6€E€VS202

8EERSCOC

LEEDPSTOC

9€ERST0T

SEEVGTOT

FEEPSTOC

€EERST0T

ZEEPSTOT

LNTEIYM

000-000-000-00LZ-0000-00"00€F=~0~0000-T0 62000Z-Ad
HHAINIOW ATTIEHOIW /08TT00
TYLOL LNVEHYM
000-000-000-0000-0000-00"8256-0-0000-T0 2€0002-Ad
FONVINSNI STOOHOS NIAYHW /92000
TYLOL LNVINVM
000-000-000-0000-0000-00"6256-0~-0000-T0
000-000~-000-0000-0000-00"9¢56-0-0000-10 0€£0002-nd
dd 40 F0IJ40 XINAOD NIYVW /61100
TYLOL INVIIYM
000-000-000-00¢8-0000-00"5€55-0-0000-T0 °T LT0002-04d
TTdM 3 JWNd S,NOd 3 X¥gir /08000
TYLOL LNVIIYM
000-000-000-0T0T-0TTT-00"0¥65-0-2CE6-T10 "1 Z70002-04
OANI /6b¥100
IYLOL LNVIIYM
000-000-000-00L2-0000-00"0T¥¥-0-0000-T0 "T 0FT00C-0d
dT ONILINIYW ITAJ /€26000
TYLOL LNYISYM
000-000-000-00L2-0000-00°0965-0-0000-T0 T£0002-Ad
IQIYNOd HIOUYW /91v100
TYLOL LNVIIYM
000-000-000-0028-0000-00"5055~-0-000C-T0 "I r0000Z-0d
SYDITYINY /226000
TYLOL LNYHIYM
000-S¥€~-000-0[0T-0TTI-00 00€F-0-00TT-T0 8¢000¢-Ad
ANOVAT TYDISSYID NYDIHAWY /190000
d¥9 LOY DOT ONAJ TY0D 0§ I0dO X 2839 dd NI HONIUEITY #0ad
HdAL 1IS0ddd (LIWHY) HWYN ¥dd¥/J900NIA
dNNI TYIANED 10

: aNnJg
SHOLYd
¢ LOIMLSIA

0GZAdY



25 LY6'6S
«00°s
+00°'$
«ZGL¥6 65

¥ZSTLY6 63
*OO.W
x00°S
»ZGL¥6 ‘68

x2S LY6'6S
*00°5
«00°$
»ZGTLV6 65

00°0GLS
00°0SL

70°00LS
¥0°00L

00" 0€T’28
00°0£T ‘2

4 a5vd

fLAd
*HOY
$SMOEHD

ERACICS
tHOY
< SHDOTEHD

LA
+HOY
$SMOEHD

: LNOOWY TYLOL
A0 LNNOWY TYLOL
J0 LNNOWY TYLIOL
J0 LNOOWY 'TVLOL

: LNNOWY TV¥LOL
J0 LNNOWY T¥LOL
A0 LNNOWY TYLOL
40 INAOWY TY¥LOL

+ LNNOWV TV.ILOL
A0 LNACWY TYILIOL
A0 LNACWY TYLOL
40 ILNNOWY T¥ILOL

6102 HIIWIAON

ONIMO HLNOW dd dN¥ 6102 AON

6T0C JdHIWIAON

NOILdTYOSHA

WON  LNODOY

02/L2/T0

WON ¥EY

S SLNEWAYG
S0ALYEINED IdF
QALYYANTD HOY

< SADOUHD J0 ¥IIWAN

P SINAWAYA
“QALYIINTD LA
SQELVEENTED HOV

*SHOEHD A0 ¥HIWNN

* SLNIWAYJ
FQALYEEANTD 14"
+QALYHENAD HOY

SSUOFEHD J0 dIEWNN

TYLOL INYIAYM

TYLOL INWIHYM

TYLOL LNYIYYM

AdAL LISOddd

6T02/8T/2T d3ALVA SINVIIYM ¥O3

WILSIDEE INYIYYM IYIDUIWWOD
uorTyeonpg JO 85TIF0 AIUno) uTIeR

TYLOL
TYIOL
TYIOL
TYIOL

IYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL
IYLOL

TYLOL
TYLOL
TYL0L
TYLOL

000~000-000-0TOT-0LTT-00"0¥BS-0-00C0-T0

000-000-000-0028-0000-00"0555-0-0000-T0

000-L0L-000-009€~-0LLS-00"0¥BG-0-00569-T0

*xx STYIOL IOIYISIQ xxx

+xx STYLOL HOLVH

*xx

xxr STYLOL AN xxx
"1 8€000¢-04d
QDXTIS /092100 EFEPSCOZ
‘T GE£0002-04d
A20TO0HY /120000 ZPEPGZOZ
T 0€0002-04d
IXVIL A¥Yd HLYON /EZETO0 TPEPSEOT

NT HONIIHATT
(LINTT)

felckt

ANNJ TYIENTD

90°00°1T

HAYN  9daY/¥OdNIA

10 *
61/81/2T a9 8100
LOIYLSIA TOOHDS OISYDIN TE€0

ddd LDOVY 207 DNNA TY¥O0D OS ILdOo X JSHY ad

LNYIIYM
anNna

“HOLYd

s LOIYISIq

06CAdY



KT TTV 7S
x00° %
*oo-m
9T TTV ‘78

¥9T TIV ‘%S
*»00°3
*00°$
«9T 1TV ‘¥s

«9T TITV ‘%3
x00°$
x00°$
«9T TTP'¥s

T1°89G°15
TI°896 1

S0°BLG'ZS
S0°8LS'T

00°'592$
007592

T a9vd

S Ldd
-HOVY
< SMOEHD

s Ldd
SHOY
s SMOAHD

LA
SHOY
+SMOHHD

o]
i(e]
40

40
40
J0

40
40
Jd0

¢ LNIOWY
LNDOWY
LNNOWY
LNOOWY

< LNOQOWY
LNNOWY
LNOOWY
LNNOWY

< LNOQOWY
LNOOWY
LNOOWY
LNNOWY

TYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL

TY¥I0L
TYL0L
TYLOL
TYLOL

TYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL

NI-9G8LETO ANT

0T6680M ANI

€0€¢C6

#

NOILAI¥DSAA
WAN INNOJDV

02/Le/10

WAN ¥dY

[t}

*SINIHAYI
SQULVEENTD Id43
AdLYYANTD HOY

$SMOFHD A0 JIEWAN

Mmoom

P SLNIWAYA
QILVYENED I4d
QULYEENTD HOV

SSMDOYHD 40 dIEWNN

Mmoo oM

+ SINIWXYd
SUELVEENED LAd
POALYIEANTD HOY

SSMOHURD A0 dHEGHWAON

Mmoo om

TYLOL LNYAEVM

000~000-000-00¢8-0000-00"5€55-0~-0000-T0

TTIM 3 dWNd S.NOT 3 AWyupL

TYIOL INTIUYM

000-000-000-0710T-0TTIT-00 0TFP-0-0E8G-T0

TYLOL LNVIIYM

000-000-000-00T8-0000-0070T95-0~-0000-T0

NI TVLIW LIFHS 2

d¥d 10V DOT OJNNJ T¥0D 0§ ILLg0o A DOS3Y dd  NT  IONIYIITH

HddAL LIS0ddd

20Z2/80/70 QIILVA SINYIHVM ¥04
HALSIDEY INVEEVYM TYIDMIWWOD
uoTIRONPH JO SITIFO AIUNCD UTIER

TYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL

TYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL

TYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL

‘T

T

T

xxx STYLOL LOTYLSIA sxx

xxx STYLOL HOLYE

EE R

»xx STVLOL aNDd v xx
LT0002-0d
/L08000 €6566202
TST00eg-04d
INIRNATAOD MAD /CZOTTIO0 25556520¢C
G6T00C-04d
ONILYHH OJddYY /2CPT100 18G654¢0¢

#034d

(LINEY) FIWYN ¥JAAY/YOdNEIA  INYTIUYM

NN TYIENdD 10 3 aNnd
0Z02/80/7T0 49 6100 :HOILVY

LOI¥LSIQ TOOHDS OISYOIN TE€0 :LDIMISIA

9070071 0SZA4Y



G8°F1

06°vEL

9€°¢8%
¢9° LY

vl vE

88°19%%
88°19%

96°0265%
967028

oo-ozs
0o-oz

SZT9V1s
SZ79%1

oo vees
00°vee

91°68%
91768

697,983
69°L98

T 4ovd

9-0L82L9796F

P-£9€59L9168

TOOLBEGTESTY

T00V29LTIOPTY

TO0S990T0TTT

020z NYC

6GT00C Od

SINIdd ZHAVHD N

6T0Z ‘1€ 2Ha OL T IDO

6890pOM

GOL6VOVTO000

6C68Cr00TE

NOIIJITMISAC
WON IN{ODDY

0z/Le/10

WON ¥dv

000-000~000-00Z8-0000-00"0T55-0~-0000-T0

000-000-000-0028-0000-00°01S5-0-0000-T0O

TYLOL INVIIYM
000-000-000-0T0T-0TTI-00"00€¥-0-62€6-TO

000-000-000-00L2-0000-00"00E¥-0-0000-T0

TYLOL INVIIYM
020-000-000-0T0T-0TTT-00"00EFP-0-6TE6-TO

—

"1 T£000¢~0d

% 9 d

‘1 FST002-04

‘T €51T002-0d

1043dd EDILI0

T ¢9100¢-0d

ONI NOILWONdd TIIH MYIOOW

TYLOL INWRIYM
000-000-000-0000~0000-00"8256-0-0000~-T0

PE000Z-Ad

AONYYNSNI STOOHDS NIYUYW

TYLOL LNTIEVM
000-000-000-00TL-0000-00"T285-0-0000-10

€€0002-Ad

A0I440 S§,ddTHHIHS ALNNOD NIYVW

TYLOL INTIYYM
000-000~000-00L2-0000-00"0¥85-0-0000-T0

"TYLOL LNTIYYM
000-000-000-0T0T-0TTT-00"0T?P¥-0-0€85-10

ONI

TYLOL LNYIIYM
000-000-000-00,2-0000~00"0L65-0-0000-T0

TYLOL LNVIIVM
000-000-000-00¢8-0000-00"9055-0-0000-10

AdXL 1Is0ddd

0Z02/ST/T0 dALYA SINYIEYM ¥MOJ
FILSIONIY INTIEIYM TY IDIIWHWOD
UOT3EONPE JO @DTJIQ A3Uno) uTIen

T 0T000€¢-0a

SNOILNTOS ¥ NOD

T 15100¢-04

INIWNIIAOD MAD

T G00002-0d

L3LY

T v0000Z-04

SYOTYINY

NT HONIZIITd

/270000 0FZ95202Z
/L00000 6EZ95Z0T
/610000 8€£Z9520C
/9LT000 LETIYSTOT
/STET00 9€TISTOT
/GEET00 §E€295202
/C9TTI00 FEEC9520C
/895000 €€£29520T
/226000 Z€29520C

‘449 LOY DOT JNNd 'TY0D 0§ ILd0 A OSEY a4

(LINIY) HWYN Jad¥/d0aNEA  INVIEYM

aNNd TYEANID

10 - aNQJd

0Z/GT/T0 49 0200 *HOLVE
LOI¥LSIAO TOCHDS OISYIIN T€0 :IDI¥LSIA

9070071 0SZAIY



TYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL
‘I¥LOL

TYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL

TYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL

WON vdY

0¢0-000-000-0T0T-0TT1-00"00€¥-0-8CEE-TO

000-SFPE-000-0TOT-0TTT-00"618S5-0-GTE6-T0

000~000-000-00¢8~-0000-00"0555-0-0000-T0

000-000-000-00£8-~0000-00"0295-0-0000-T0

a0

€T : SLNAWAYd
0 SAFLVEIANTD Lad
0 SQILYYENTD HOY
€T SSYMOFHD 40 HAIWAN
€T : SLNIWAVE
0 CQYLYYANED LAF
0 QALYAANTD HOVY
€T $SMOWUHD J0 YHEAWNN
€T s SLNIWAYA
0 COALYYINTD L33
0 JALYYEANED HOY
€1 S SHOEHD A0 MIIWAN

TYLOL LNVIIYM

TYLOL INYIIYM

TYLOL LNYIEVM

TYLOL LNTIEYM

NIYOLINOW WEVYIY ENO NOILOALOYI

TYLOL LNYMEYM

HdAL LISOdEd

0202/S1/10 QILVd SINVIIYM dOJ

*¥8°00Z'%$ T LNDOWY
+00°3% 1149 30 LNAOWY
00" % CHOY J0 INAOWY
+b87002°F$ SSMOEHD 40 INNOWY
«¥8°00Z'%S + INNOWY
00°% 1149 A0 INNOWY
£00°¢ SHOY 40 INAOWY
*$8°002'pS $SMOHHD J0 INAOWY
«78700C'F$ : INNOWY
%00°% t1A3 A0 INNOWY
%00°¢ THOV 40 INAOWY
«¥8°00Z %S ISMOFHD A0 LNNOWY
8L 168Z%

BL"TGZ STYTIALYW WYIO0dd
00°02€$

00°02¢ 400 AONYTVE
20°05€ES

207 06¢ 8T6ZELTT 4 TIId
66°90T$

66°90T 8ZZ¥81IZET
SLT6FLS

LNOOWY NOILdINDSHA

WON INAODIY

z gO¥d  0Z/L2/T0

FULSIDEY LNVIUYM TYIOYHAWOD
uoT1EDNPH JO 90TFJ0 Ajunod utien

TYLOL
TYLOL
TYILOL
TYIOL

TYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL
TYIOL

TYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL

TTINS ¥OINOW

HONVY HAQITS

2920710049

(LIWEA)

yxx STYIOL IOTHILSIA xx=x

+xx STYLOL HOLVE

RS

xxx STYICL ANOT xxx

SE000Z~Ad

6£T00C-0d

SE€000Z2-0d

¥£000¢-04

AONHIIIAA #034d
HWYN  9dAY/90dNIA  INTIIYM

ANNA TYIINID

/882700 ¥Fe95eoe

/09PT00 £7Z95¢0¢

/TE0000 Z¥Z9SC02

/P0ZT00  1¥e295202

LoV D071 ONNA TY09 08 L0400 A OSdd dd NI

10 ¢ anNnd

0Z/S9T/10 dD 0200 :HOLVE

LOIY¥ISIA TOOHIS OISWOIN T€0 *IJIYLSIA

907001 0S2AdvY



T

L8°8S

92°T6$
[4 2Nt

L9°LT

L1728

00°GET’'TS
00°S€1’C

?0°G68G 1S
vL 66

0E£°G8% ‘T

96127 ‘TS
95°T¢R ‘1

00° 0053
007005

9679213
96°9¢1

v L8S
¥ L8

b€ 8ESS
FPE 8ES

q0¥d

9-0L8CLOV96T 000-000-000-0028-0000-00"0T65-0-0000-T0 T 1€0002-04d

3 94d /ZT0000 BO9LSZOC

TYLOL INVIYYM

T00587G8862Y 000-000-000-00¢8-0000-00"00€¥-0-0000-7T0 T G91002-04d
TOOT96TV V62T 020-000-000-0TO0T-0TTTI-00"C0E¥-0-02E6-T0 T £9T00¢-0d
TOOLOBT8LSZY 000-000-000-0T0T-0TTI~-00"C0EY-0-00TT-TO0 T 9S6T1002-04d
L0ddd 901440 /100000 £0945¢02

AYLOL INVIIVM
HOIOANI 6102 YAGWADAA 000-L0L-000-009€-0LLS=-00"0F85-0-0069-T0 T 0€0002-0d

IXYL A¥d HILION /ECETO0 909L820C

TYLOL - LNVIITM

NOISIA 000-000-000-0000-0000-00"6256-0-0000-T0
JASIVA 000-000-000-0000-0000-00"9€56-0-0000-T0 9€000Z-Ad
dd A0 FDIIJ0 ALNNOD NIUYW /6PTTO0 50945207

TYIOL INIIYM
NI-€818£10 000-000-000-0028-0000-00"S£55~0~0000~T0 T L1000Z-04d

TTdM % JdWOd S.NOQ 3 Z3ddr /L08000 ¥09LGZ0C

TYIOL LNYYHVM
0202 N¥L D6TTIGSTO0CE ANI 000-000-000-0TOT-0TTI~00"0b65-0-C2E6~T0 "1 Z¥0002-0d

OANI /6VPTO0  £09L520¢

TYLOL LNYHEVM
IAYNOY W dWIFA 000-000-000-00€L-0000-00"00EF~0~0000~T0 6€0002-Ad

IAQYVYNOE HdIDYVH /9TPTO0  203L520¢

TYLIOL INYIYYM
TE96TPT0000 000-000-000-00LZ-0000~00"0L6S-0-0000-T0 T §0000¢-04

L3LY /896000 T09.5202

TYLOL LNYIIYM

8LBOSKFTOTE ANI 000-000-000-0028-0000-00"50G5-0-0000-T0 T ¥0000¢-0d
SYOTHANY /226000 009LS20¢C
NOTILATYDSAA d¥0 IOV D0 DNNJ 'I¥0D 0SS L0dO X JSdM dd NI HONIIRATH #0039
WON LNAODOY WON ¥dY HddAL LISOdEA (LINIY) FWYN MAAY/900NIA  INYHEVYM
aNNd TYIEINED 10 * aNna
d9 02/%C/T0 1200 *HOLVd
0202/6¢/10 AALY] SILNYIdYM ¥0OJ LOTYLSIA TOOHIS OISWIIN TE€0 :IOIVLISIA

UALSIOEY INVEUYM TYIDIAWNOD
02/1€/10 UOT]EDNPE JO 92TFIO AJUNO)H UTIBRR 307001 082A4dvY



«6Z2°LS0“6%
%00'$
x00°s
+62°L50'6%

«6C"LS0'6S
x00°$
*OD-W
x6Z LG0'6%

«6C°LS0'6%
+00°8
007 ¢
*6Z2°LS0°6$

4

00°205¢
007208

x4

S9

6€"

9¢"

TEL
TEL

‘68
z8

$

$

00°0SLS$
00°0GL

00°00%¢
00°00%

TO"T9LS
PT"20L

aovd

LSIA TOOHDS OISYDIN €£€2h6 AU IO

0zZ/TE€/10

< LNOOWY TYLOL PT *SINIWAYd
‘Ldd A0 LNNOWY ‘IVLOL 0 SUALVYUINED T4

“HOY J0 LNNOWY TYLOL 0 SOALYHENTD HOY
SSYMDEHD J0 INNOWY TTYLOL P SSMOAHD A0 WHIWNAN
S LNNOWY TYLOL T P SINHWAYL

sL4Ad A0 LNAOWY TYLOL 0 ‘JALYYINED 14"
‘HOY 40 INNOWY TYLOL 0 SQALYIENID HOV
SSUOEHD 40 LNNOWY TYLOL PT S GHDOIHD d0 YIEGWNN
S LNNOWY TYLOL P ‘P SINIWAYL

Ldd 0 INNOWY TYIOL 0 JALYHEANTD 1d4dF
*HOY J0 INNOWY TYIOL 0 CJALYEEINYED HOY
SSHOEHD 40 LNNOWY TYLOL PT SSMOUHD 4O MHEIWNN

TYLOL LNTIUYM
E6FPZ0T-HS ANT

TYLOL INVIHYM

TYLCL LNYIdVM
HAIATANANS 9 dWIET

MIAZAMANS 9 dWIFY

TYLOL LNVAYYM
IOIOANI 6T0Z Y3IFWADAA

TYIOL LNYIAYM
LNIWAYd 0202 A¥YVANYL

TYLOL LNVIEYM

TYIOL
TYLOL
TYLOL
TYLOL

TY¥LOL
TYIOL
T¥LCL
TYLOL

TYIOL
TYLOL

TYLOL
TYLOL

d0I44d

v

¥xx STYLOL LOTHLSIA xx»

xx» STYLOL HOLVG

#xx STYLOL

000-000~000~-0028-0000-00"6€£85-0~-0000~-1T0 "1 800002-04d

O ONILNNODOV d2dMS

000-000-000-0000~0000-00"ST56-0-0000-10 8£000¢-Ad

INGOJIITYD 40 HILIVLS

000-000-000-0T0T-0TTI-00"0F85-0-GTE6-TO

000-000-000-00L2-0000-00"00€¥-0-0000-10 LEO00CZ-Ad

ATADAINS VIVdavd

000-000-000-0T0T-0TTI-00"0¥85-0-0000-T0 °T 8€£0002-0d

OD2ATIS

000-000-000-0018-0000-00"0¥85-0~0000-T0 T 9€000¢-0d

YNVATVS Tavd

*xx

ANOJ ¥ xx

/E0ET00 €19L5202
/%Z0000 219L6202
/B8TPTO0 TT9LS202
/092700 0T9LS20T
/2LZT00  603L520¢C

#0034

¥-€9€£G69.9168 000-000-000-0028-0000-00"0155-0-0000-T0 T
NOILITEOSHAT ddd LOY DOT ONOA T¥0D 0§ LLdO A OS§EY 44 NT  JIONTIHINY
WON LNOODOY WON ¥dY ddAL LISCddd

0202/6¢/10 dALVYd SINVIHYM ¥0J
HALSTOHT LNTIHYM TYIDEHWNOD
uoTIeSNPE IO SVTIIFO AIUNOD UTIBW

(LINEY) HEWYN  Nad¥/¥0dNIA

aNQJ TYVJANIO 0
49 02/%¥2/10 1200
LOTILSIA TOOHDS OISYOIN 1€

90°00°1

INVIITM
: aNna
SHOLVY

SLOIYLSIA

0SZAa¥Y



Agenda ltem # Z
Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints

[Education Code Section 35186]
Fiscal Year 2019-20

Nicasio School District
Mikki Mcintyre
Office Manager/District Secretary

District:

Person completing this form:

Title:

Quarterly Report Submission Date: I:l July 2019 (4/1/19 to 6/30/19)

(check one) [] October 2019 (7/1/19 to 9/30/19)
January 2020 (10/1/19 to 12/31/19)
[] April 2020 (1/1/20 to 3/31/20)

February 6, 2020

Date for information to be reported publicly at governing board meeting:

Please check the box that applies:
No complaints were filed with any school in the district during the quarter indicated above.

Complaints were filed with schools in the district during the quarter indicated above. The
following chart summarizes the nature and resolution of these complaints.

General Subject Area  Total # of Complaints # Resolved # Unresolved

Textbooks and 0
Instructional Materials

Teacher Vacancy or |0
Misassignment

Facilities Conditions

Totals

Nancy Neu, Interim Superintendent

Name of District Superintendent Signature of District Superintendent

Form Edited 3/26/19



‘Agenda item # 70/
Nicasio School |
School Accountability Report Card

Reported Using Data from the 2018-19 School Year
Published During 2019-20

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to publish a School Accountability Report
Card (SARC). The SARC contains information about the condition and performance of each California public school. Under
the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and
Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with
specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data
reported in the SARC.

¢ For more information about SARC requirements, see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/.

e For more information about the LCFF or LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/.

* For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community members should contact the school
principal or the district office.

DataQuest

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at https://dg.cde.ca.gov/dataguest/ that
contains additional information about this school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically,
DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test data, enroliment, high school graduates,
dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English learners).

Internet Access

Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly accessible (e.g., the California State
Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis.
Other use restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation may be used (depending
on availability), the types of software programs available on a workstation, and the ability to print documents.

About This School

School Contact Information (School Year 2019-20)

Entity _ _Contact Information
School Name Nicasio School
Street 5555 Nicasio Valley Rd.
giy, State, Zip Nicasio, CA 94946
Phone Number 415.662.2184
Principal Barbara Snekkevik
Email Address bsnekkevik@nicasioschool.org
Website http://www.nicasioschool.org/

County-District-School (CDS) Code 21654096024483

2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Nicasio School Page 1 of 14



Entity . - Contact Information >
District Name Nicasio School District
Phone Number 415.662.2184
Superintendent Nancy Neu
Email Address nneu@marinschools.org
Website http://www.nicasioschool.org/

School Description and Mission Statement (School Year 2019-20)

OVERVIEW

Nicasio School serves approximately 40 students in grades TK-8. Students learn in multi-grade classrooms with highly
skilled teachers and support staff who prepare them for transition to high school and life outside of Nicasio's rural
community. While many graduating 8th graders attend Sir Francis Drake High School in San Anselmo, many others attend
private high schools in Marin County and San Francisco.

Nestled in the heart of Marin County, California, Nicasio School is one of the few remaining single-school public school
districts in Marin. The district itself was established in 1862 with the first Nicasio schoolhouse constructed in 1867.

Nicasio School has changed dramatically since the late 1800s. Thanks to voters supporting a $2.4 million school bond in
1999, today's campus is comprised of modern, state-of-the-art facilities. In addition to large classrooms, students at
Nicasio School have access to the school's library, art room, up-to-date technology, and a multi-purpose room equipped
with a stage and full kitchen. The Nicasio School Foundation supplies funds to provide a number of enrichment programs
school-wide including visual arts and Spanish, in addition to supporting required curriculum, such as physical education.
Having the advantage of a rural environment, students also enjoy working in the school’s organic garden with support
from their teachers along with parent and community volunteers.

VISION STATEMENT

Nicasio School prepares students to excel in high school and in life by attracting and maintaining outstanding teachers
who deliver a stimulating curriculum through innovative instructional methods. Working with parents and the community,
we support all students in reaching their full potential academically, physically, and emotionally by providing a safe and
nurturing environment.

MISSION STATEMENT

Benefiting from its unique rural setting, strong sense of community and distinguished history, Nicasio School will educate
children to value learning, act with integrity, live a healthful life, and participate as responsible citizens both globally and
locally.

2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Nicasio School Page 2 of 14



Student Enrollment by Grade Level (School Year 2018-19)

___ Grade Level
Kindergarten

Grade 1

Grade 2

Grade 3

Grade 4

Grade 5

Grade 6

Grade 7

Grade 8

Total Enroflment

Student Enroliment by Group (School Year 2018-19)
Student Group
Asian
Filipino
Hispanic or Latino
White
Two or More Races
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged
English Learners
Students with Disabilities

Homeless

A. Conditions of Learning

State Priority: Basic

Number of Students

Percent of Total Enrollment

2.6
2.6
53.8
33.3
7.7
25.6
33.3
12.8

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic (Priority 1):
» Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they

are teaching;

¢ Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and

e School facilities are maintained in good repair

Teacher Credentials

Teachers

With Full Credential
Without Full Credential

School School

Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence (with full credential)

2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Nicasio School

3
0
0

zo17-1sj[ 2018-19

4

School
2019-20

4

0
0

District
2019-20

4

0
0

Page 3 of 14



Teacher Misassignments and Vacant Teacher Positions

Indicator 2017-18 | 201819 = 2019-20
Misassignments of Teachers of English Learners 0 0 0
Total Teacher Misassignments* 0 0 0
Vacant Teacher Positions 0 0 0

Note: “Misassignments” refers to the number of positions filled by teachers who lack legal authorization to teach that grade level, subject area, student group, etc.
*Total Teacher Misassignments includes the number of Misassignments of Teachers of English Learners.

Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials (School Year 2019-20)

Year and month in which data were collected: December 2019

|
i Textbooks and Other Instructional } i AR I i

Subject . - Recent Lacking Own
Materials/year of Adoption Adoption? Assigned Copy
Reading/Language Arts Grades K-5: Reading Wonders, McGraw Hill, Yes 0.0%

© 2014, 2017

These materials were selected from the most
recent list of standards-based materials
adopted by the State Board of Education
(SBE) in November 2015.

Grades 6-8: Study Sync, McGraw Hill, Board
adopted November 2019; Literature Units of
Study (teacher-developed)

Grades K-8: Lucy Calkin's Units of Study in
Opinion/Argument, Information, and
Narrative Writing, Heinemann © 2014*

Mathematics Grades K-5: My Math, California Edition, Mc- Yes 0.0%
Graw Hill © 2013 Grades 6-8: Glencoe Math
Course 1, 2 and 3, Mc-Graw Hill © 2015

These materials were selected from the most
recent list of standards-based materials
adopted by the State Board of Education
(SBE) in January 2014.

Science Grades K-5: Full Option Science System No 0.0%
(FOSS), California Edition, Delta Education ©
2007 Grades 6-8: Focus on Earth, Life and
Physical Science, CPO Science © 2007

During 2019-20, the district is piloting
adoption options based on the updated list
of standards-based materials for adoption
released by the State Board of Education
(SBE) in November 2018.

2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Nicasio School Page 4 of 14



Subject

History-Social Science

Foreign Language

From Most  Percent Students
Recent | Lacking Own
Adoption?  Assigned Copy_

Textbooks and Other Instructional
Materials/year of Adoption

Grades K-5: Scott Foresman History-Social No 0.0%
Science for California, Pearson Scott

Foresman, © 2006

Grades 6-8: History Alive!, TCI, © 2002

These textbook programs are included on
the most recent adoption list for California.
How ever, the versions used at the district
are prior copyright editions. The content
standards for history-social science in
California did not change between editions.
As such, the district did not see a benefit to
spending limited funds on purchasing a
newer edition when the prior edition is
already aligned to current learning standards
and is meeting the needs of teachers and
students.

Teachers received training in the updated
History-Social Science Framework updated
by CDE in 2016. The district will investigate
purchasing updated core and supplemental
material based on the requirements of the
updated Framework.

Grades 6-8: ¢Asi se dice? Spanish (CA) Levels Yes 0.0%
1A and 1B, McGraw Hill, © 2016

The district purchased updated textbooks in
December 2018.

school Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements (Most Recent Year)

The administrative team ensures that the school’s facilities are clean, safe, an
Annually, a facility inspection is conducted by the administrative team using a
State of California Office of Public School Construction. in addition, a represent
walk-through each spring and provides his/her findings to the district office.
completes an annual inspection. From these three reports, the administrative te

items.

Much of the Nicasio School campus was constructed in 2000 with pre-existing buildings receiving a full remodel at the

same time. As such, the various buildings are in good condition both inside and out.

Recent facility improvements include:

« Installation of new school signage
o Resurfacing of school parking lot
» Improvements/maintenance made to school field (seeding, composting)

2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Nicasio School P

d in good working order on a regular basis.
facility survey template developed by the
ative from Keenan Insurance completes a
The Marin County Fire Department also
am develops and prioritizes a list of action



School Facility Good Repair Status (Most Recent Year)
Using the most recently collected FIT data (or equivalent), provide the following:
s Determination of repair status for systems listed

* Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair

¢ The year and month in which the data were collected

¢ The overall rating

Year and month of the most recent FIT report: January 2020

System Inspected
Systems: Gas Leaks,
Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer
Interior: Interior Surfaces
Cleanliness: Overall Cleanliness,
Pest/ Vermin Infestation
Electrical: Electrical
Restrooms/Fountains: Restrooms,
Sinks/ Fountains

Safety: Fire Safety, Hazardous
Materials

Structural: Structural Damage,
Roofs

External: Playground/School
Grounds, Windows/
Doors/Gates/Fences

Overall Rating

2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Nicasio School

Exemplary

Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned

Page 6 of 14



B. Pupil Outcomes

State Priority: Pupil Achievement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement (Priority 4):

» Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System, which
includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general education population and the
California Alternate Assessments [CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three
through eight and grade eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items
are aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for
students with the most significant cognitive disabilities); and

* The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to
the University of California and the California State University, or career technical education sequences or programs
of study.

CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard

School School District District |  State State

Suplect 2017-18 201819  2017-18  2018-19 201718  2018-19
English Language Arts/Literacy
Erales 38 and 11) 50 70 50 70 50 50
Mathematics 46 57 46 57 38 39

(grades 3-8 and 11)

Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical
accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the
total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard
(i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate} on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments.

CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2018-19)

Student Group Em::-:l,ltr:nlen t l\.ll_:r;:::r :‘:‘;‘::t Pel:‘lietnt Fl’\::;e::
- Tested  Exceeded

All Students 24 23 95.83 4.17 69.57
Male - - - - --
Female 15 14 93.33 6.67 85.71
Black or African American
American Indian or Alaska Native
Asian -- - -- - -
Filipino
Hispanic or Latino -- -- -- - -
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander
White 11 11 100.00 0.00 72,73

2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Nicasio School Page 7 of 14



Student Group

Two or More Races
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged
English Learners

Students with Disabilities

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services

Foster Youth

Homeless

Total
Enroliment

Number
Tested

Percent
Tested

!
1

Percent
Not
Tested

5

Percent
Met or
Exceeded

Note: ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of
students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved

Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments.

Note: Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical

accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Note: The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, the number of students tested
is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement level percentages are calculated using only students who received

scores.

CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group

Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2018-19)

Student Group

All Students

Male

Female

Black or African American
American Indian or Alaska Native
Asian

Filipino

Hispanic or Latino

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander
White

Two or More Races
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged
English Learners

Students with Disabilities

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services

2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Nicasio School

Total
Enroliment

24

15

Number
Tested

23

14

Percent
Tested

95.83

93.33

Percent
Not
Tested

4.17

6.67

Percent
Met or
Exceeded

56.52

64.29

Page 8 of 14



Percent Percent
Not Met or
Tested Exceeded

Total Number Percent i
i Enroliment Tested Tested

Student Group

Foster Youth

Homeless

Note: Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total
number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e.,
achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments.

Note: Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical
accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Note: The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, the number of students tested
is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement level percentages are calculated using only students who received
scores.

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students

Grades Five, Eight, and Ten

Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard

School | School District District State i State
2017-18  2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19
Science (grades 5, 8 and high school) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data.

Subject

Note: This is a placeholder for the California Science Test (CAST) which was administered operationally during the 2018-19 school year. However, these data are not
available for inclusion in the 2018-19 SARC posting due February 1, 2020. These data will be included in the 2019-20 SARC posting due February 1, 2021.

State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8):

e  Pupil outcomes in the subject areas of physical education.

California Physical Fitness Test Results (School Year 2018-19)

Percentage of Students Percentage of Students Percentage of Students
Grade Level Meeting Four of Six Meeting Five of Six Meeting Six of Six
Fitness Standards . Fitness Standards __Fitness Standards
5 - - -
7 - - -

Note: Percentages are not calculated and double dashes {--) appear in the table when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of
students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Nicasio School Page 9 of 14



C. Engagement

State Priority: Parental Involvement
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement (Priority 3):

e Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and each school site.
Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2019-20)

Nicasio School provides for the involvement of parents and community through a variety of opportunities. Parents are
provided with opportunities to sign up for various volunteer jobs at the start of each school year, which include assisting
in classrooms, the office, campus grounds, and on field trips. Principal's Chats are held monthly and provide a forum for
parents to gain information about academic and extracurricular programs and events, as well as encourage community-
building and family engagement. Parents also volunteer through Parent Club and Nicasio School Foundation
(www.nicasioschoolfoundation.org), which sponsors several fundraising activities throughout the year. Funds raised
provide a number of enrichment programs school-wide including visual arts, performing arts and Spanish in addition to
supporting required curriculum, such as physical education. Supplemental supplies and materials as well as campus
maintenance are also generously donated by parents in the community.

Parents are invited and encouraged to participate in a school climate survey on an annual basis. In addition, a Parent
Advisory Committee is formed annually to provide feedbak for the development of the Local Control Accountability Plan
(LCAP). Their input provides the administrative team and school board with valuable information that helps drive decisions
related to curriculum, enrichment programs, student support programs, issues related to school climate, school grounds,
etc.

Critical information is communicated to parents in a variety of ways such as school and district electronic newsletters
(print versions available as necessary), website postings, email, text messages and telephone (voicemail). Our school
parent liaison facilitates the inclusion of our Spanish-speaking families through outreach and as well as providing all school
communication in Spanish.

State Priority: School Climate
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School Climate (Priority 6):

¢ Pupil suspension rates;
*  Pupil expulsion rates; and

e Other local measures on the sense of safety.

Suspensions and Expulsions

Rate School School School District District District State State State
2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
Suspensions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.6 35 3.5
Expulsions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1

2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Nicasio School Page 10 of 14



School Safety Plan (School Year 2019-20)

In September 2019, a staff review of the Nicasio School District Comprehensive School Safety Plan was conducted and
reported to the Marin County Board of Education. The comprehensive Nicasio School Emergency Management Plan is a
personalized version of the plan developed by Marin County Office of Education. This plan, which addresses mitigation,
preparedness, and response and recovery is located in the school office and available to all teachers and staff as a
resource. This plan was reviewed with school faculty in August 2019 and October 2019.

In the 2017-18 school year, Nicasio School adopted a new Emergency Communication System, School Messenger, that
allows school administration to rapidly communicate with staff and families in the event of an emergency via phone call,
text message and email. This system is tested annually in October. In addition, Nicasio School District has been included
in the county-wide Marin Emergency Radio Authority network. The district has purchased and been trained in the
operation of the disaster radio and participates in regularly scheduled drills.

Emergency backpacks and 72-hour shelter-in-place kits are located throughout the campus in: all classrooms, the library,
the multi-purpose room and the school office. Each emergency backpack comes equipped with: a first aid kit, first aid
procedures, the master schedule, student roster, an emergency contact tree, and directions for emergency situations (fire,
earthquake, lockdown, etc.).

At the start of each school year, emergency backpacks are inspected and updated. Periodic updates are made throughout
the year with changes in student enrollment, the master schedule, etc.

All doors throughout the campus have been equipped with interior lockdown levers that allow teachers and staff to secure
themselves inside the buildings behind locked doors without having to step outside to lock them.

Emergency drills (fire, earthquake, lockdown, emergency student release) are practiced by teachers, staff and students on
a monthly basis. Local law enforcement is invited to participate in drills and provide feedback. Parents are included
annually in an emergency student release drill. Teachers and staff review and update procedures and outcomes from
practice drills during monthly staff meetings.

Teachers and staff receive CPR and First Aid training on a biennial basis and were last trained in October 2018.

D. Other SARC Information
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the state priorities for LCFF.
Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Elementary)

12016-17 E 2016-1712016-17 12016-17 2017-18, 2017-182017-182017-18 j 2018-19,2018-19'2018-19:2018-19.
‘Average #of ' #of @ #of ;Averagei #of . #of ' #Hof 'Average #of : #of ! #of

?.::Ie Class .Classes*iclasses*;Classes*n Class I‘Classes**Classes*TCIasses*g Class ECIasses""Classes*fCIasses*i
Size Size . Size Size Size . Size Size ; Size Size ! Size Size Size
1-20 | 21-32 33+ 1-20 2132 | 33+ i 1-20 21-32 33+
K 15 1
5 15 1 14 1 15 1
Other** 13 1 15 1

*Number of classes indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).
** “Other” category is for multi-grade level classes.

2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Nicasio School Page 11 of 14



Ratio of Academic Counselors to Pupils (School Year 2018-19)
Title Ratio

Academic Counselors* .0
*One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time.

Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2018-19) -
Number of FTE*

-Title Assigned to School

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development)
Library Media Teacher (Librarian)

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)

Psychologist

Social Worker

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)

*One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time.

Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries (Fiscal Year 2017-18)

Total Expenditures ; Expenditures Average
Level Expenditures |  Per Pupil Per Pupil Teacher
j Per Pupil (Restricted)  (Unrestricted) Salary
School Site 18,992 8,612 10,380 79,975
District N/A N/A 14,650 $73,215.00
Percent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A -34.1 8.8
State N/A N/A $7,506.64 $64,941.00
Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A 32.1 20.7

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data.

The California Department of Education issued guidance to LEAs on August 1, 2018, regarding how to calculate school-level per-pupil expenditures that will be
reported on 2018-19 report cards.

2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Nicasio School Page 12 of 14



Types of Services Funded (Fiscal Year 2018-19)

All student programs and services take place within the regular school day. General education services are provided to
students in grades TK-8. In addition to providing academic curriculum in all core subject areas, enrichment classes such
as visual arts, Spanish and physical education are offered weekly and are generously funded by the Nicasio School
Foundation.

Special education services (resource specialist, speech and language specialist, psychologist) are supported on the school’s
campus by part-time personnel assigned by the Marin County Office of Education. The district also contracts with outside
agencies/individuals for additional services in counseling and occupational therapy as needed. For students who have
special needs that exceed the available services/programs provided on campus, the district arranges for the appropriate
placement, services, and transportation to other schools (public and non public) outside the district.

Students designated as English Language Learners receive integrated English language instruction from their classroom
teacher during the school day as well as designated English language instruction as part of the school's Learning Center
program.

Teacher and Administrative Salaries (Fiscal Year 2017-18)
State Average

Category Ditrct For Districts
{ Amount
oy __InSame Category
Beginning Teacher Salary $54,159 $45,252
Mid-Range Teacher Salary $79,082 $65,210
Highest Teacher Salary $96,413 $84,472
Average Principal Salary (Elementary) $108,669 $107,614
Average Principal Salary (Middle) S0 $112,242
Average Principal Salary (High) $0 S
Superintendent Salary S0 $124,686
Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries 23% 31%
Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries 6% 7%

For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE Certificated Salaries & Benefits web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/.

2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Nicasio School Page 13 of 14



Professional Development (Most Recent Three Years)
Measure 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 3 3 3

Teachers and staff participate in professional development activities primarily by three methods:

1) Off campus workshops, conferences, etc.The majority of off-campus opportunities take place at or through Marin
County Office of Education. The focus of these workshops depends on the individual areas of interest and need of teachers
and staff, which are determined by surveys, observations, and performance evaluations and state adoption cycles.

2) On campus workshops scheduled during the District's three annual professional development days. Workshops
generally focus on curriculum/instruction, social/emotional learning for students and emergency/safety preparedness.
Some workshops are organized and presented by employees while others are led by outside organizations (e.g.,
Restorative Practices, on-line learning and digital resources). in addition, the district's Data Inquiry Team meets three
times per year (Fall, Winter, Spring) to analyze student achievement data, with a focus on reading benchmark assessment
results.

3) Weekly Professional Learning Community (PLC) meetings on campus. Certificated teachers meet weekly as a group to
focus on curriculum, instruction, and data analysis with particular focus on intervention strategies for struggling students.

The primary areas of focus for staff development are:

e Curriculum development/state adoption cycle e Intervention strategies for students at risk
e Instructional practices with emphasis on English e Emergency preparedness and safety
Language Learners e Equity and family engagement

e Social/Emotional learning for students

During implementation of new professional development concepts, teachers and staff are supported through
peer/colleague collaboration, teacher-principal meetings, and student performance data.

New teachers are provided continuous support through the Marin County New Teacher Induction Program. One teacher
participated in 2018-19 and 2019-20 school year.

2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for Nicasio School Page 14 of 14



Agenda ltem #~Z€:

Nicasio School District
Comprehensive School Safety Plan

2019-20

February 2020

o



What is a safe school?
“Safe schools are orderly and purposeful places where students and staff are free to learn and teach without the
threat of physical and psychological harm. They are characterized by:
Sensitivity and respect for all individuals (including those of other cultural and ethnic backgrounds);
An environment of nonviolence;
Clear behavioral expectations;
Disciplinary policies that are consistently and fairly administered;
Students’ affiliation and bonding to the school;
Support and recognition for positive behavior; and
e A sense of community on the school campus.
Safe schools also are characterized by proactive security procedures, established emergency response plans, timely
maintenance, cleanliness, and a nice appearance of the campus and classrooms.”
Taken from “Safe Schools: A Planning Guide for Action”
California State Department of Education

Table of Contents

Comprehensive School Safety Plan Requirement, Process and Timeline.................................... 2
Plans, Procedures and Agency Board POIICY.... ..........coooiiii i e 3
Marin County Office of Education Programs and Designated School Sites ..............ccccooooiiiiiinn. 6
o 1 D PR TTTN 7

e Annual Update/Evaluation FOrm..............oviiiiiiii e e, 8-9

Annual Update/Evaluation SUmMmary..............c.coooiiiii i e e e e 10-12




Comprehensive School Safety Plan
Requirement, Process and Timeline 2019-20

Requirement:

SB 187: Comprehensive School Safety Plan

¢ School sites develop a Comprehensive School Safety Plan relevant to the needs and resources of the
school district.

¢ Small school districts with an ADA of 2,501 units may develop a district wide Comprehensive School

Safety Plan that is applicable to each school site.

Plans must be adopted by September 1, 1998.

Comprehensive School Safety Plans must be evaluated and amended as needed on an annual basis.

Comprehensive School Safety Plans must be reviewed with school site staff annually.

School sites should complete an annual update/evaluation of a Comprehensive School Safety Plan.

School sites develop an Action Plan to remedy safety concerns identified.

L R JBK R K J

Process and Timeline:

Nicasio School District designee will review the plan’s strengths and weaknesses with their staff and
community members on an annual basis. Changes and additions to the plan are to be implemented on the
following timeline:

+ By September 25, 2019

Nicasio School District designee reviewed the School Safety Plan and received input from staff to
complete the Annual Update/Evaluation Form.

¢+ By October 31, 2019

Action Plans are developed to address any additional safety concerns described in the Annual
Update/Evaluations and corrective action taken to make needed changes.

¢+ By November 22, 2019
Implementation of any site specific needs and action plans are completed.

Plans, Procedures and Agency Board Policy to
Support the Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Child Abuse Reporting Procedures

All school staff actively monitor the safety and welfare of all students. Staff understand their responsibility
as childcare custodians and immediately report all cases of known and suspected child abuse. To assure
that school staff have adequate training, newly hired teachers sign a statement indicating their completion
of child abuse training as part of their employment requirement. School administrators, teachers,
classroom assistants, and other classified school employees participate in annual training in child abuse
identification and reporting procedures as a part of yearly mandated topics in-service. Written descriptions
of reporting requirements and disclosure of employee confidentiality rights are also provided as part of the




training and included in all employee handbooks. Considerable effort is made to maintain the
confidentiality of the student and employee in all cases of child abuse reporting.

References: Board Policy 4150 Child and Dependent Adult Abuse
Administrative Regulations and Procedures Child and Dependent Adult Abuse
Child Abuse and Dependent Adult Abuse Reporting Requirements

Disaster Procedures, Routine and Emergency

The Nicasio School Emergency Management Plan provides a framework for protecting students, staff, and
school facilities and describes the responsibilities of staff members for a wide range of emergency and
disaster situations. In the event of a widespread emergency, it is recognized that availabie government
resources may be unable to respond to all requests for assistance. This plan assumes the common
standard that a school or classroom site must be self-sufficient for 72 hours.

References: Nicasio School Emergency Management Plan, developed in 2010 and updated annually

Policies Regarding Actions Which Would Lead to Suspension and/or Expulsion

Nicasio School District Special Education programs have policies in place that follow education code
mandates regarding suspension and/or expulsion. These procedures ensure that school administrators,
resource specialists, psychologists, Special Education and regular education, as well as other school staff,
understand the laws that pertain to both regular and Special Education students. A student who has not
been expelled and is in need of an educational alternative may access MCOE programs through a district
and/or county referral process.

References: Board Policy 5144 Expulsion
Administrative Regulations and Procedures Appeals from Expulsion
Marin Countywide Plan for Expelled Youth

Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils

Each fall, and throughout the school year, as appropriate, and pursuant to Education Code 49079, all
Nicasio School District Special Education staff are provided with a list of enrolled students who have,
sometime within the past three years, engaged in or been reasonably suspected of having engaged in one
or more activities leading to suspension or expulsion. The following procedure is used in notifying
teachers:

1. Lists are provided to each teacher using a memo format. All teachers sign the memo indicating
their receipt of the notification.

2. Teachers are advised that by law this information is to be received in confidence and is not to
be disseminated to any other person.

3. All signed notification memos are to be returned and filed at the Nicasio School District Office.

California Education Code 48900 identifies acts that make a student eligible for suspension/expulsion.
These acts include:

Causing/threatening physical injury to another person;

Using physical force or violence;

Sale or possession of firearms/weapons;

Use, sale or furnishing of controlled substances, alcohol or intoxicants;
Possession, sale or furnishing of drug paraphilia; and

Committing of crimes such as robbery, vandalism, extortion, or theft.



Education Code 48900.2 through 48900.7 identifies additional acts such as sexual harassment, hate
violence, harassment, threats or intimidation of school personnel or pupils; and terroristic threats against
school officials or school property, or both.

Ongoing throughout the school year, teachers follow guidelines described in the Behavioral Incidents
Memo to assure the safety of both staff and students in dealing with behavioral incidents.

References: Board Policy 4160 Assault by Pupil Against School Employee
Teacher Notification Memos
Behavioral Incidents Memo and Report Form
California Education Code 48900 and 48900.2 through 48900.7

Sexual and Gender-Based Harassment Policies

Sexual and/or gender-based harassment of any student or employee by another person is prohibited. The
Nicasio School District Policy prohibits sexual and gender-based harassment of employees and students
per Board Policy 4219.11. Copies of the sexual and gender-based harassment policies are available online
and can be accessed by employees. Students are directed to immediately report incidents of sexual or
gender-based harassment to a teacher or program administrator. All reports are thoroughly investigated in
a timely manner. A school administrator will determine an appropriate course of action for each complaint.

Actions may include the following:

1. Student counseling and education, when appropriate.

2. Parent notification, when appropriate.

3. Avreport to the police or Child Protective Services, as appropriate or required by law.

4. Student disciplinary actions may include suspension, placing on a behavior contract, other
appropriate means of corrections, or a recommendation for expulsion.

Employees, students, and/or their parents can use the Nicasio School District Complaint Procedure Board
Policy 1312 to file a formal complaint of sexual or gender-based harassment. Our sexual and gender-
based harassment policies inform students and parents of their right to use this process. Each complaint of
sexual or gender based-harassment shall be promptly investigated in a way that respects the privacy of all
parties concerned.

References: Board Policy 4219 Freedom from Sexual Harassment
Administrative Regulations and Procedures Freedom from Sexual Harassment
Uniform Complaint Procedures Board Policy 1312

School-Wide Dress Code

The governing board acknowledges that students have the right to express their uniqueness and
individuality by means of their dress. Restrictions on freedom of student dress will be imposed whenever
the mode of dress in question is:

1. Unsafe either for the student or those around the student.
2. Disruptive of school operations and the education process in general.
3. Contrary to law.

References: Nicasio School District Parent-Student Handbook



Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils

Nicasio School District provides certificated and classified staff supervision of students to ensure safety at
all times during school hours. Consideration is taken to provide adequate supervision before school, at
recess, lunch, and leaving school grounds, especially for severely handicapped students entering and
exiting buildings and busses. Fire drill procedures are followed.

References: Fire, Earthquake, Intruder Drill Plans/School Maps

Rules and Procedures on School Discipline

Nicasio School District students are expected to follow school rules and procedures. These rules and
procedures are designed to encourage appropriate behavior to maximize student learning and social
development.

References: Board Policy 5144 Student Discipline
Nicasio School District Parent-Student Handbook

Coordination with Local Fire Department

Nicasio School District is working in collaboration with Marin County Fire Department to review and update
safety plan procedures, and will share any future updates annually (or as needed) with the Fire
Department, as well as law enforcement and other first responders.

References: 2019-20 Emergency Contact List, including Marin County Fire contact information

Procedures for Tactical Responses

Nicasio School District is working with local law enforcement agencies to review emergency response
procedures, including law enforcement’s tactical response to criminal incidents, and procedures related to
individuals with guns on school campuses and at school related functions, procedures to prepare for active
shooters or other armed assailants, based on the specific needs and context of our school and community.

References: 2019-20 Emergency Contact List, including Marin Sheriff SRO contact information

Nicasio School District
Programs for Special Education

The Nicasio School District exists to provide leadership and service as a community asset that earns and
enjoys the respect and support of our students, parents and community taxpayers. The Nicasio School
District also coordinates and manages the following student programs:

Special Education

Special Education meets the individual needs of students as required by federal law. The scope of service
includes providing services for students with disabilities ages 5 to 14. Services are determined based on
Individual Education Plans such as psychology, hearing impairment, speech and language, and
occupational therapy.




Attachment 1:  Annual Update/Evaluation Form



Nicasio School District
Comprehensive School Safety Plan

2019-20 Annual Update/Evaluation

School Site: Nicasio School

1. Describe the changes needed to the implementation of the plan to enhance school safety.
NONE

2. Describe any support needed from MCOE to further implement school safety at your site(s). NONE

3. List any specific modifications to the school safety plan needed for your site in any of the following
areas:

Child Abuse Reporting Procedures- none

Disaster Procedures- none

Policies/Actions Leading to Suspension and/or Expulsion- none

Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils- - none

Sexual Harassment Policy- none

School-wide Dress Code- none

Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils- none

SQ ™mp RS DTw

Rules and Procedures on School Discipline- none
NONE



Verification Form

On October 2, 2019 | met with my staff(s), reviewed the components of the Nicasio School District Comprehensive
Date

Safety Plan, and updated the school safety plan binder with any policies and procedures specific to the programs |
supervise.

Ravoopor Suexenk  Roakor &v\.t..--’é?’@tx/k_,‘

Print Name Signature

0. % 220"\ P 1'V\u\owq
Date Title




Marin County School District and Charter School
Annual Comprehensive School Safety Plan Report to the
Marin County Office of Education

Compliance Audit and Confirmation

As instructed by the State Superintendent of Public Instruction and the California Department of Education with regard
Comprehensive School Safety Plans (defined in Education Code 32280-32288), a state compliance audit requirement will
begin in the 2018-19 school year. Local school districts must approve safety plans for all schools in its district by March 1
of each year. School safety plans are mandatory and help ensure that schools are as prepared as possible for
emergencies and maintain safe and secure learning environments. School safety plans must present clear policies to
address hate crimes, acts of violence, and their perpetrators. Comprehensive school safety plans must also include a
discrimination and harassment policy.

A February 1, 2018 letter from the California Department of Education to all County and District Superintendents and
Charter School Administrators titled Comprehensive School Safety Plans: Annual School Safety Plan Update Reminder
and New Guidance. A copy of this letter can be found on the Letters Web page. As instructed, County Offices of
Education must notify the CDE by October 15, 2019, if any schools in its jurisdiction have not complied with safety plan
requirements.

This form is to be submitted by school districts and charter schools in Marin County, to the the Marin County Office of
Education by October 1, 2019 confirming compliance with Comprehensive School Safety Plan Requirements.

School District or Charter School: N\ tas\o S ool b\ <hna ot

Schools within our jurisdiction in compliance with all Schools needing to take additional steps to be in
requirements compliance (please include additional information
regarding steps to be taken and timeline)

N\ casw Schusol

N . _
Pavloowas e [Rraiviapad _ Bohomvt S quUAM) 22619
Print School District Representative / Title L Signature N\ Date
Please complete, sign and forward this form by email or fax to:

Attn: Ken Lippi, Assistant Superintendent, Marin County Office of Education
Email: klippi@marinschools.org or Fax: (415) 491-6621




610z Buudg ‘Aeang sjew|D juspniig

"AldIE} SIUOPNIS 11313 [OOYDS SIL} I8 S19YoRa) 8] 4O IUNog "JoOUoS SIY3 JO Hed B WE | 3Y1| (334 | JO WNOYD

8 9 14 Z 0

9 14 2 3]

swn
81 JO ISOLL 'SBA

suI
B} JO IS0 'SR

SWN A1 JO [|B 'SAA

Ul 31 40 |2 'S4

sauIpaWog

jooyos siy3 Jo Led e we | 3| 1394 |

SaWBWOS

‘Aijey S)uapnIs 1821} 0005 SILY 1B SI9YJBa) 3t L

‘Aj11e} S1USPN1S 1891 |00YDS SIU1 1B Siayoeal sy) "|ooYy9s siyl Jo Ued e e | 81| (994 |
‘Jooyss s 18 5q 0] Addey we | Jo wnon ‘Jooyos siy) 1e 3|doad 03 3s0[9 1834 | O UNOD

9 ¥ z 0 8 9 14 Z 0

aumn J9A3U 'ON

BU1 JO 1SOLU ‘SBA
awn
S 4O 150 'SBA

BW BUL JO [|B SBA

3UI} 841 JO [[e ‘SBA

‘jooyos siy) 1. 2q o) Addey we |

sSswnawos

‘fooyas siy) e ajdoad o} aso|o (23} |

salnawoes

‘looyas siyl 1e aq 03 Addey we | "looyos siyl 1e ejdoad 01 3s0|0 99 |

(sasuodsal [ejo} 1) ajewl|D |o0YDS a4 S)Nsay ASAING JUapnIS 6102



610z Buudg ‘Aening ajewid Juspnis

Mmouy 03 196 01 0B UE S)BU J§BIS |004OS 1210 PUB SI9Y0B2} AW 4O 1UN0D 'qo[ poob B Op UBD | 1RY1 8A31|3Q RIS [00YDS JALI0 PUR SIaYIRAL A 10 JUNCD

oL 8 9 ¥ [4 g

9 14 4 [t}

auwn

sum
31 0 150U 'SAA

By} JO 1SOW 'S3A

3L} B} O [je ‘oA SWIL 3Y1JO |jB ‘SIA

sawawog
SHUHIBWOS

QAB1{OY 44815 [00YOS JAYIO pue S1ayoes) AN

ue el JjBIS [00YOS JaYL0 pue Siayoeal AW

‘ol

SUl MO poob e op uea | 1By} 8ABI{2q J1B1S |OOYIS JaY10 pue sIayoea] AW

0} 106 01 110}}a Uk e [je1s [00YDS J3Ylo pue sisyoes) AN

*Ap1) pue UBS|D A|{BNSN St j00YoS AW 4O WNOD "looy0s AW Ul 9JBS [93) | JO WNOD

14 Z a g 9 4 2 0

s}
A4} JO 1oL ‘'SDA

s
2} 1O 10U ‘SBA

aLUN BY JO |je 'SBA aU1} 343 4O fle ‘s3A

'{ooyos Aul Uf 3)BS 23 |

SIWALIOS

‘Api pue ueago Ajlensn s) jooyos AW

SBWNAWOS

"Api pue ues|o Ajjensn s| |0oyos AN "|ooyos AW uj ajes (884 |



610¢ Buuds “Aening sjew|D juspnis

‘Aes o) Buiyiewos
"SS800NS B 8q DARY | UBYM ‘1889 Aw op 0} “alay) Jou ‘qol poob 2 op =
M | JBY) SeAsI|eq oym aul 0} SUB)SI) oYM B Sjuem SABMIE OUM  Wj UBYM SBIJOU OUM | UBUM B Si9} OUm  JNoge sased Ajjess oym

ot

sniy Ao Il Snpuyonw Ausid [ enyemu v M enujeleioN I

*"}INPE 13410 SWOS 10 Joyoes) e S| alayl '|ooyds Aw 1y



Nicasio School Emergency Planning Calendar

 RESPONSIBLE

ties Hazard Aesnt—o -

PRINCIPAL or 0 School Facili August
(buildings, grounds, evacuation routes, shut-off valves)
DESIGNEE o Review School Emergency Management Plan August
o Update School Emergency Team Assignments August
o Staff Skills Survey for new teachers August
o0 New assignments as needed Ongoing
o Staff orientation of School Emergency Management Plan | August
o Plan annual training schedule August
o0 Update resource agreements and contacts August
o Parent Back to School Night: Emergency Plan September
o Fire Drill September
o Staff meeting: Review Emergency Preparedness October
o Earthquake Drill October
o CPR/ First Aid training (due zn 2020) October
o Fire Drill October
o Fire Drill November
o Lockdown/ Emergency Student Release Drill November
o Fire Drill December
o Lockdown Drill December
o Lockdown Drill January
o Fire Drill January
o Fire Drifl February
o Earthguake Drill March
o Fire Drill March
o Lockdown Drill April
o Fire Drill April
o Fire Drill May
o Earthguake Dril} May
o Fire Drill Jun
o0 Review drill assessment Jun
o Distribute emetgency catds/ student release procedures ul
OFFICE to families e P oy
MANAGER o Update classroom emergency binders (rosters, etc.) September
o Conduct facility hazard assessment August
o Replenish emergency supply cache and classroom duffles | September
o Family preparedness materials to parents Ongoing
o0 Check fire extinguishers, batteries Ongoing
o Review equipment needs Ongoing
o Update school maps and site plans Ongoing
o Preparedness tips in E-Blasts to Families Ongoing
TEACHERS o Staff Orientation of School Emergency Management August
Plan
o CPR/ First Aid training October
o Staff development emergency training October




NICASIO SCHOOL
INCIDENT RESPONSE FLOW CHART

Nicasio School
Incident Commander =
Principal Barbara Snekkevik
Netarmines need ta activate Command Post

U

Notifies emergency services (fire, police)
Calls 911
(From cell ohone call 472-0911 for medical aide)

i

Public_: Incident Commander activates
!nformatlon/ Incident Command Post,
Liaison Officer assembles Command Staff
[

-

Notifies District Superintendent
Nancy Neu (415) 990-1492

U

District Emergency Operations Director
(Superintendent or Designee)
determines need to activate
Emergency Operations Center

U

Public <:| Activates Emergency Operations Center (EOC) :> aitti;Tg:gsis'f
Information/ Assembles Command Staff required

Liaison Officer

Notifies Operational Area =
Marin County Office of Education
that EOC has been
activated, and whether or not assistance
is requested at this time.




207 9-20

List
Mergenc) Contacltc-r-
Nicasio SCHOE, DISTR

(Al Qreg Co

ted.)
‘e NO
Unlesg Otherwise

s
SPonse Contact

11 anc
ial 7

E' a’m.
Phone e of FIE e
on ‘aseares

€s ar, e

Emergenc Y Re
C‘onlacf

Emergency

In

i n
211 pY
from CEly PHONE 4

104
10¢
Art Prep/Moker' Qce {B/o’g /q) 108
Panjsy, (B
SOUre Roorn /B/dg. lq)
Grodes é-7.8

109
/B/o’g. 1b)
Grodes 3-4.




Nicasio School
Campus Emergency “Quick Checklist”

Nicasio School has an Emergency Management Plan specific to this campus. You should be
thoroughly familiar with that plan. This checklist provides a quick synopsis of actions to take
and resources to contact in the event of an emergency.

ACTIONS TO TAKE:

O Instruct all students that they must remain together and follow directions from
teachers and staff.

3 Inthe event of a disaster that creates a dangerous condition outside the school
building, immediately instruct students within the building to “drop, cover & hold on.”

3 Inthe event of fire or other crisis situation that creates a dangerous condition inside
the school building, evacuate students to a safe exterior assembly area (designate @
leader fo escort students in a single file line). Be sure to close windows and doors,
and take emergency kit and walkie-talkie (turned on and set to Channel 5) with
you.

O Once students are gathered at assembly area (facing away from campus buildings),
take attendance and contact school administrator to report anyone who is missing.

O Remuain with your students and await further instructions.

O Take appropriate first aid action if needed.

O Stay calm and quiet. Reassure students that you will remain with them and that you
will do everything possible to ensure their safety.

3 coilow schooi's Emergency Management Plan.

DO NOT:

DO NOT leave your students.

DO NOT re-enter buildings or areas that have not officially been designated as safe.
DO NOT dismiss any students without complying with school’s sign-out procedures.
DO NOT allow use of phones or communications devices that might interfere with
emergency communications.

gooa

CONTACT:

1. Nicasio School Principal or administrator in charge:
a. Name: Barbara Snekkevik, Principal
b. Office/Ext: #102 (or #700 for Intercom)
c. Cell 415-497-1601
2. Nicasio School District Emergency Contact:
a. Name: Nancy Neu, Interim Superintendent
b. Cell: 415-990-1492

Please remember that during an emergency. cell phones may not work. Even if landlines work,
usage should be limited to keep lines open for emergency communications.

8/15/2019



0P PT-£T0T deln dseajay Juapnis AJNIDYINI\Bsea|ay u:mﬁzum/>u:wm,_mc._m/uw

‘awiubissp qof 1of woay unupy 03 Lodal I3l :5133IUNJOA/LDIS |PUCIUPPY . 1950[3 [bIpO3SN)
saljddng
Jasesiq
AR RN ARV ey S S ——
|
M _ uayol
8/t/o - S/v/E 2/ 4o
i
i
3bD1S HdN M
m JHOD Z/T/H
WYIL NINGY . YIYVY ATHINASSY
1
NOILV1S | IN3Aanis
TVIIAIN
% — swooiyiong
aiv 1sdid T,
wniioypny YdwW
%
3100 5/p/€ JOUUNY D:
N
m Q aspa|ay Jof painay) suapnis pajsanbay 19fo4
m — — — mmmwwm.\wf% = s1sanbay
35D3jay JUapms J0f vaty BUIIDAA U210,
| T1gvLIsvaTay R S DY N S 719V LSINDIY uwans

ISUEN

D34 pabubisap 42410 Jo (YdiN) wooy asodindninyy [0oyds oIspIIN ul BuiyIDg MOYIBNQ O

] de|A asea|ay 1uapnis Aduadiaw] o @



610Z/6/0T paiopdn

Jaulelueo) Jaisesiqg AHUNWWOD OISeaIN/sS01) pay
sa||ddng 493seS1q sndwe?)

sa)iddng aseajay Aduagiawd Juapnis

olpey [1ouno) s31sesiq OlsedIN/olpey VI

(213 12)UD|q [DWI3Y] ‘OIpDI “J2IDM “POOJ “13[101) JBUIBIUOY UMOPHIOT] AJuasiawy
(4030y114q1fa@ |bUIIXT parowoiny) A3V

(24B1ysolf ‘(z) sapjioi-anjom Ay pio 1s4f/Aouab1awa ‘Saunpa0.d [[Lip ‘3|NPaYds JaISOW 131504 JUSPMIS) Yoedydeg AduaBIaw]

:wm\m_i:

IRV
_
_
=
_
_

||
||
+ et
||
||

g =
peoy Asjjep oisesiN

i m — _ ystueds
/ (B
A

Aieagn

ddW

—— &j

i B

1

sa1jddng Aduadiaw3

TOOHJS OISYIIN




o e
e e i
o o o T O % T T

T 7 oewen g

21eAIIdE |1V SIYS)|

9q0J1s pue punos uidul pno|y
weje a4y 35aJeau |nd pue

TT6 |e1q 24y yo ased

N

AN

)

NV1d NOILVYNIVAI ADNIDHIINT TOOHIS OISVIIN

(dnyoeg)

g ealy AjquIassy oL

/

S13Yoea] JnoA 01 ualsy
sjuapnis moj|a) oA diay
dnou§/ssed snoA yum Aeis
shemjiepn uo Aels shemy
juny juoq Hjlem

adesn

"ON Suipjing

yied LIX3
elspAy au4
wuey iy
J9ysinduIxg auy

@ee‘[OO

puagal




,_ | ~ | _ln_.w i *_ _: I - /N\Qﬂ
T/fq _ _ _ i _ _ _ 4 | 5 '92JN0SY o —

1N T T ¥ R T I B ° 2 —— e L = 2 ysiueds UL

: _q1et - Aeaqnyp
¥ 2010 Alejjduy - _m% 10 90t L = 10T
€€t = .._ L A g0l
ERELIEEN % hE&®Exs 0 [ |
[ I szt
e 1 = S % || =
EERIREE | |
N T T V2 I

)
NN
'
5
7

e Tt ey o

I !

.
(UG

=] |

}
_
i
_
i
vow ,
:
]
|
I

P

12 Jeor

m_\/__OTm ANV SONIATING ‘A3X TO0HDS Mu_m<u_z



Nicasio School Integration
with
Nicasio (Community) Disaster Plan

As per the Nicasio Disaster Plan, Nicasio School has the following responsibiiities
for the preparation for and response to a community-wide disaster.

Non-Emergency

Review and update School Plan annually
Reappoint Division Leader/backup as needed

Maintain current student release and medical freatment permission slips

Hold annual meeting to review and brief all staff members on emergency plan
and their specific assignments within it

Annually conduct a school-wide emergency drill including staff, students and
other agencies

Annually inspect, inventory and replace itemns in classroom disaster packs
Annually inspect disaster supplies inventory

Emergency

Coordinate and supervise care of students and staff members

Provide emergency first aid

Conduct an inspection of entire facility for dangerous conditions

Report conditions and immediate or delayed requirements for Command

Center (Fire Station)
Ensure rapid and orderly dismissal of students to parents or designated alternates

Maintain written roster of students release, staff released and those remaining
Assist in preparation of designated classrooms for Shelter and/or Rally Point at the
school if required

Current Nicasio School Division Leader:

Name; Phone:
Appointment Date:

Backup Division Leader:

Name; Phone:

Appointment Date:

4/15/2011



STEPHEN ROATCH ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION Agenda ltem ﬁZf_

Certified Public Accountants Stephen Roatch - President
Habbas Nassar - Vice President

January 8, 2020

Management and Governing Board of
Nicasio School District

5555 Nicasio Valley Road

Nicasio, CA 94946

Year 2 of 3-year contract

This letter confirms that Nicasio School District has requested our firm to perform only the audit services
described in this letter and has not requested our firm to provide any specific internal control review or
fraud audit service. This letter also confirms our understanding of the terms and objectives of our audit
engagement and the nature and limitations of the services we will provide.

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Nicasio School District for
the year ended June 30, 2020. We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, including the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Nicasio School District as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2020. Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of
America provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion
and analysis (MD&A), to supplement Nicasio School District's basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Government
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our
engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to Nicasio School District's RSI in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures will
consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RS! is required by
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will
not be audited:

1. Management’s discussion and analysis

2. Budgetary comparison information

3. Schedules of the proportionate share of the net pension liabilities
4. Schedules of contributions

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies
Nicasio School District's financial statements. We will subject the supplementary information to the
auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, and we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole, in a report
combined with our auditor's report on the financial statements.

The Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis will not be subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we will not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.

P.O.Box2196 M Folsom, CA 95763-2196 M Phone (916) 966-3883 M Fax (916) 966-3815



__ ¥l s,

Management and Governing Board of
Nicasio School District

January 8, 2020

Page Two of Eight

Audit Objectives

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and
to report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when
considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Our audit will be conducted in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards for
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and the 2019-20 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Educational Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting, prescribed in the California Code of Regulations, Title 5, section 19810 and
following, and will include tests of the accounting records of Nicasio School District and other procedures
we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. We will issue a written report upon
completion of our audit of Nicasio School District’s financial statements. Our report will be addressed to
the Governing Board of Nicasio School District. We cannot provide assurance that unmodified opinions
will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions or add
emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will
discuss the reasons with you in advance. [f circumstances occur related to the condition of your records,
the availability of sufficient, appropriate audit evidence, or the existence of a significant risk of material
misstatement of the financial statements caused by error, fraudulent financial reporting, or
misappropriation of assets, which in our professional judgment prevent us from completing the audit or
forming an opinion on the financial statements, we retain the right to take any course of action permitted
by professional standards, including declining to express an opinion or issue a report, or withdrawing
from the engagement.

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial
statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by
Government Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will
include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing
of internal control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal
control and compliance. The paragraph will also state that the report is not suitable for any other
purpose. If during our audit we become aware that Nicasio School District is subject to an audit
requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to
management and those charged with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted auditing standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements.

Audit Procedures - General

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be
examined and the areas to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.



Management and Governing Board of
Nicasio School District

January 8, 2020

Page Three of Eight

Audit Procedures - General (Concluded)

We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting,
(3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to
the government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government. Because
the determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to
provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control,
and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material
misstatements may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and
performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws
or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, fraudulent financial
reporting, or misappropriation of assets that comes to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate
level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention,
unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material abuse that comes to our attention. Our responsibility
as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to later periods for which we
are not engaged as auditors.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the
accounts, and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of
receivables and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding
sources, creditors, and financial institutions, as applicable. We will request written representations from
your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding to this inquiry. At the
conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about your responsibilities
for the financial statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and
other responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards.

Audit Procedures - Internal Control

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including
internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to
design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to
test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and
fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements
resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an
opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control
issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will
communicate to management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that
are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing
Standards.



Management and Governing Board of
Nicasio School District

January 8, 2020

Page Four of Eight

Audit Procedures - Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we will perform tests of Nicasio School District's compliance with the provisions of
applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of our audit will
not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report
on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

Other Services

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements and related notes, management’s discussion and
analysis, budgetary comparison information, depreciation schedule, schedules of the proportionate share
of the net pension liabilities, schedules of contributions, and supplementary schedules and information
(nonaudit services), as applicable, of Nicasio School District’s in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles based on information provided by you. These nonaudit services do not constitute
an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards. We will perform the services in accordance with applicable
professional standards. The other services are limited to the financial statement services previously
defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or
take any action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities.

Management Responsibilities

Management is responsible for designing, implementing, establishing, and maintaining effective internal
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, including evaluating and monitoring ongoing
activities to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; following laws and regulations;
and ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and properly reported. Management
is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and application
of accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and all
accompanying information in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements.

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us
and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us
with (1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of
the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for
confirming to us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.



Management and Governing Board of
Nicasio School District

January 8, 2020

Page Five of Eight

Management Responsibilities (Concluded)

As part of our engagement, we may propose standard, adjusting, or correcting journal entries to your
financial statements. You are responsible for reviewing the entries and understanding the nature of any
proposed entries and the impact they have on the financial statements.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect
fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1)
management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud
could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of
your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in
communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are
responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with applicable laws, regulations,
contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that we
report.

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information, which we have been engaged
to report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to include our
report on the supplementary information in any document that contains and indicates that we have
reported on the supplementary information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements
with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes our report thereon. Your
responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are
responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe
the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with
GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior
period; and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the
measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report
copies of previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related
to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes
relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from
those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies. You are also responsible
for providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as
your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that
information.

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related
notes and any other nonaudit services (management'’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison
information, depreciation schedule, schedules of the proportionate share of the net pension liabilities,
schedules of contributions, and supplementary schedules and information, as applicable) we provide.
You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance with
preparation of the financial statements and related notes and any other nonaudit services we provided
and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements and related notes and any other
nonaudit services we provided prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further,
you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior
management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those
services; and accept responsibility for them.



Management and Governing Board of
Nicasio School District

January 8, 2020

Page Six of Eight

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

We will schedule the engagement based in part on deadlines, working conditions, and the availability of
your key personnel. We will plan the engagement based on the assumption that your personnel will
cooperate and provide assistance by performing tasks such as preparing requested schedules, retrieving
supporting documents, and preparing confirmations. If for whatever reason your personnel are
unavailable to provide the necessary assistance in a timely manner, it may substantially increase the
work we have to do to complete the engagement within the established deadlines, resulting in an
increase in fees over our original fee estimate.

You may request that we perform additional services not addressed in this engagement letter. If this
occurs, we will communicate with you regarding the scope of the additional services and the estimated
fees. We also may issue a separate engagement letter covering the additional services. In the absence
of any other written communication from us documenting such additional services, our services will
continue to be governed by the terms of this engagement letter.

In accordance with Education Code 41020, audit reports will be filed with the County Superintendent of
Schools, the California Department of Education, and the State Controller's Office by December 15%
following the close of the fiscal year. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and
confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Stephen Roatch Accountancy
Corporation and constitutes confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and
regulations, audit documentation and appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in
a timely manner to the State Controller's Office or its designee, Department of Education, a federal
agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of
a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will
notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under
the supervision of Stephen Roatch Accountancy Corporation personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we
may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may
intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other
governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of seven years after the
report release date or for any additional period requested by the State Controller's Office. If we are
aware that a federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the
party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

Habbas Nassar, Certified Public Accountant (CPA) is the engagement partner and is responsible for
supervising the engagement and signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them. Our
fee for these services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs. Our standard hourly
rates vary according to the degree of responsibility involved and the experience level of the personnel
assigned to your audit. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and
are payable on presentation. We agree that our all-inclusive fee will be $9,000 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2020. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the
assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant
additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur
the additional costs. An additional fee will be charged for attending meetings with the District's Board, if
deemed appropriate.



Management and Governing Board of
Nicasio School District

January 8, 2020

Page Seven of Eight

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other (Concluded)

Either party may terminate this agreement at any time for any reason, providing 30 days written notice is
given to the other party. It is understood that payment shall be made for services rendered to the point of
termination.

It is agreed that the District will withhold ten (10) percent of the audit fee until the State Controller certifies
that the report conforms to the reporting provisions of the 2019-20 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local
Educational Agencies and State Compliance Reporting.

In accordance with Education Code Section 14505, it is further agreed that the District will withhold fifty
(50) percent of the audit fee for any subsequent year of a multi-year contract if the prior year's audit
report was not certified as conforming to reporting provisions of the 2019-20 Guide for Annual Audits of
K-12 Local Educational Agencies and State Compliance Reporting.

The State Controller of California has required that all Districts and auditors contracting for multi-year
engagements include a stipulation that the contract is null and void if the auditor is declared ineligible to
perform LEA audits.

In the event that the GASB, FASB, AICPA, GAO, OMB, or the Education Audit Appeals Panel's Office
issues additional standards or audit procedures that require additional work during the audit period, we
will discuss these requirements with you before proceeding further. Before starting the additional work,
we will prepare an estimate of the time necessary, as well as the fee for performing the additional work.
Our fee for addressing the additional requirements will be our standard hourly rates for each person
involved in the additional work.

In connection with this engagement, we may communicate with you or others via email transmission. As
emails can be intercepted and read, disclosed, or otherwise used or communicated by an unintended
third party, or may not be delivered to each of the parties to whom they are directed and only to such
parties, we cannot guarantee or warrant that emails from us will be properly delivered and read only by
the addressee. Therefore, we specifically disclaim and waive any liability or responsibility whatsoever for
interception or unintentional disclosure of emails transmitted by us in connection with the performance of
this engagement. In that regard, you agree that we shall have no liability for any loss or damage to any
person or entity resulting from the use of email transmissions, including any consequential, incidental,
direct, indirect, or special damages, such as loss of revenues or anticipated profits, or disclosure or
communication of confidential or proprietary information.

With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements
published electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute
information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or to
consider the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original document.

In the event we are required to respond to a subpoena, court order or other legal process for the
production of documents and/or testimony relative to information we obtained and/or prepared during the
course of this engagement, you agree to compensate us at our applicable hourly rates, for the time we
expend in connection with such response, and to reimburse us for all of our out-of-pocket costs incurred
in that regard.



Management and Governing Board of
Nicasio School District

January 8, 2020

Page Eight of Eight

in the event that we are or may be obligated to pay any cost, settlement, judgment, fine, penalty, or
similar award or sanction as a result of a claim, investigation, or other proceeding instituted by any third
party, then to the extent that such obligation is or may be a direct or indirect result of your intentional or
knowing misrepresentation or provision to us of inaccurate or incomplete information in connection with
this engagement, and not any failure on our part to comply with professional standards, you agree to
indemnify us, defend us, and hold us harmless as against such obligations.

Government Auditing Standards require that we provide you with a copy of our most recent external peer
review report and any subsequent reports received during the contract period. We have attached a copy
of our latest external peer review report of our firm for your consideration and files. We are very pleased
to participate in this review program as continued evidence of our emphasis on providing Nicasio School
District, the highest quality audit.

This engagement letter is contractual in nature and includes all of the relevant terms that will govern the
engagement for which it has been prepared. The terms of this letter supersede any prior oral or written
representations or commitments by or between the parties. Our audit engagement ends on delivery of
our audit report. Any follow-up services that might be required will be a separate, new engagement. The
terms and conditions of that new engagement will be governed by a new, specific engagement letter for
that service. In the absence of any other written communication from us documenting such additional
services, our services will continue to be governed by the terms of this engagement letter.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Nicasio School District and believe this letter accurately
summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If, after full consideration, you agree that the

foregoing terms shall govern this engagement, please sign this letter in the spaces provided and return
the original signed letter to our office, keeping a fully-executed copy for your records.

Sincerely,
STEPHEN ROATCH ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Habbas Nassar, Certified Public Accountant
Vice President

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Nicasio School District.

Management - Approved by: Governing Board - Acknowledged by:
Name:
Title: Board President

Date:




Agenda ltem #_CQ_D_@

Nicasio School District

Since 1862

Board of Trustees
Michelle Rutledge, Board President ~ Elaine Doss, Trustee ~ Mark Burton, Trustee

To: Nicasio School District Board of Trustees
From: Margie Bonardi, Interim CBO

Date: February 6, 2020

Re: Acceptance of 2018-19 District Financial Audit
Objective:

To accept Nicasio School District's 2018-19 financial audit prepared by Stephen Roatch
Accountancy Corp. as legally required.

Background:
Stephen Roatch Accountancy Corporation was contracted to audit the financial statements of

the governmental activities and each major fund of the Nicasio School District, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2019. The completed audit was submitted to the State of California by
the legally required deadline of Dec. 15th. There was one, non material finding reported in the
2018-19 district audit.

Funding Source/Cost:
Contracted cost for the 2018-19 financial audit: $ 9,000
Funds paid from unrestricted general fund

Recommendation:
Accept the 2018-19 District Financial Audit. This item is presented to the Board for review only;
trustees do not take action on the Audit as it is a legal requirement fulfilled by the report itself.

5555 Nicasio Valley Road / P.O. Box 711, Nicasio, CA 94946
& 415.662.2184 / B 415.662.2250 / www.nicasioschool.org




Agenda Item #f_é_a_

NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
COUNTY OF MARIN
NICASIO, CALIFORNIA
AUDIT REPORT

JUNE 30, 2019






NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

JUNE 30, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditor's Report
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Basic Financial Statements:
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet - Governmental Fund

Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Governmental Fund

Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
to the Statement of Activities

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances - Budget and Actual - General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances - Budget and Actual - Deferred Maintenance Fund

Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability - CalSTRS
Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability - CalPERS
Schedule of Contributions - CalSTRS
Schedule of Contributions - CalPERS

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

14

15

16

17

18

19
20

47

48
49
50
51
52
53



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

JUNE 30, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONCLUDED)

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION

Organization/Board of Education/Administration
Schedule of Average Daily Attendance
Schedule of Instructional Time

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report
with Audited Financial Statements

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis
Notes to Supplementary Information

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTS SECTION

Independent Auditor's Report on State Compliance

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS SECTION

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs:

Section! - Summary of Auditor's Results
Sectionll - Financial Statement Findings
Section lll -  State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Schedule of Prior Year Recommendations

55
56
57

58
59
60

61

65

67
68
69
70



FINANCIAL SECTION






STEPHEN ROATCH ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Education
Nicasio Elementary School District
Nicasio, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each
major fund of Nicasio Elementary School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

1
P.O. Box 2196 / Folsom, CA 95763 / Phone (916) 966-3883 / Fax (916) 966-3815




Board of Education
Nicasio Elementary School District
Page Two

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of Nicasio
Elementary School District, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison information, schedules of the
proportionate share of the net pension liabilities, and schedules of contributions be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Nicasio Elementary School District's basic financial statements. The
supplementary information listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary information listed in the table of contents is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary
information listed in the table of contents is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

The Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.



Board of Education
Nicasio Elementary School District
Page Three

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 6, 2019 on our consideration of Nicasio Elementary School District's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Nicasio Elementary School District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Nicasio Elementary School District's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

STEPHEN ROATCH ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION
Certified Public Accountants
December 6, 2019



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

(PREPARED BY DISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

This section of Nicasio Elementary School District's annual financial report presents our
discussion and analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on
June 30, 2019. Please read it in conjunction with the Independent Auditor's Report presented on
pages 1 through 3, and the District’s financial statements, which immediately follow this section.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and
Statement of Activities, presented on pages 14 and 15, provide information about the activities of
the District as a whole and present a longer-term view of the District’s finances. The fund financial
statements for governmental activities, presented on pages 16 through 19, provide information
about how District services were financed in the short-term, and how much remains for future
spending. Fund financial statements also report the District's operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements by providing information about the District's most significant funds.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

> The District's financial status improved over the course of the year as total net position
increased 12.9%.

> On the Statement of Activities, total current year revenues exceeded total current year
expenses by $134,543.

> Capital assets, net of depreciation, decreased $81,101 due to the recognition of depreciation
expense.

» Total long-term liabilities decreased $71,632 due primarily to the payment on the District's
outstanding general obligation bonds.

> The District maintains sufficient reserves for a district its size. It meets the state required
minimum reserve of at least $67,000. During fiscal year 2018-19, total General Fund
expenditures totaled $1,063,486. At June 30, 2019, the District had available reserves of
$388,053, which represents a reserve of 36.5%.

THE FINANCIAL REPORT

The full annual financial report consists of three separate parts, including the basic financial
statements, supplementary information, and management’s discussion and analysis. The three
sections together provide a comprehensive overview of the District. The basic financial statements
are comprised of two kinds of statements that present financial information from different
perspectives, government-wide and funds.

> Government-wide financial statements, which comprise the first two statements, provide both
short-term and long-term information about the District’s overall financial position.

> Individual parts of the District, which are reported as fund financial statements comprise the
remaining statements. Basic services funding is described in the governmental funds
statements. These statements include short-term financing and identify the balance remaining
for future spending.

4



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

(PREPARED BY DISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

THE FINANCIAL REPORT (CONCLUDED)

Notes to the financials, which are included in the financial statements, provide more detailed data
and explain some of the information in the statements. The required supplementary information
provides further explanations and provides additional support for the financial statements. A
comparison of the District’s budget for the year is included.

Reporting the District as a Whole

The District as a whole is reported in the government-wide statements and uses accounting
methods similar to those used by companies in the private sector. All of the District's assets and
liabilities are included in the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Activities reports all of
the current year’s revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The District’s financial health (net position) can be measured by the difference between the
District's assets and liabilities.

> Increases or decreases in the net position of the District over time are indicators of
whether its financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

> Additional non-financial factors such as the condition of school buildings and other
facilities, and changes in the property tax base of the District need to be considered in
assessing the overall health of the District.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, all amounts presented represent
governmental activities, since the District does not provide any services that should be
categorized as business-type activities.

The basic services provided by the District, such as regular education, are included here, and
are primarily financed by property taxes and state formula aid. The District does not provide any
significant non-basic services.

Reporting the District's Most Significant Funds

The District's fund-based financial statements provide detailed information about the District's
most significant funds. Some funds are required to be established by State law and bond
covenants. However, the District may establish other funds as needed to control and manage
money for specific purposes.

Governmental Funds:

The major governmental funds of Nicasio Elementary School District are the General Fund,
Deferred Maintenance Fund, and Bond Interest and Redemption Fund. Governmental fund
reporting focuses on how money flows into and out of the funds and the balances that remain at
the end of the year. A modified accrual basis of accounting measures cash and all other financial
assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a
detailed short-term view of the District's operations and services. Governmental fund information
helps to determine the level of financial resources available in the near future to finance the
District's programs.

5



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

(PREPARED BY DISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

The District's net position increased from $1,041,568 at June 30, 2018, up to $1,176,111 at
June 30, 2019, an increase of 12.9%.

al
Comparative Statement of Net Position
Governmental Activities
2018 2019

Assets
Deposits and Investments $ 790,040 $ 815,775
Receivables 15,364 17,404
Capital Assets, net 2,642 978 2,561,877

Total Assets 3,448,382 3,395,056
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension Deferrals 213,199 255,854
Liabilities
Current 306,848 293,699
Long-Term 2,068,873 1,982,240

Total Liabilities 2,375,721 2,275,939
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension Deferrals 244,292 198,860
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,082,978 1,171,877
Restricted 245,019 250,758
Unrestricted (Deficit) (286,429) (246,524)

Total Net Position $ 1,041,568 §$ 1,176,111

Table includes financial data of the combined governmental funds

The unrestricted deficit balances, presented above, are a result of the requirement to record
liabilities and deferred outflows/inflows of resources in the financial statements to reflect the
District's proportionate share of items related to their participation in the CalSTRS and CalPERS
pension plans.



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

(PREPARED BY DISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

The District’s total current year revenues exceeded total current year expenses by $134,543.

Comparative Statement of Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities
2018 2019

Program Revenues

Operating Grants & Contributions $ 129,955 $ 163,838
General Revenues

Taxes Levied 1,085,210 1,124,419

Federal & State Aid 61,830 63,250

Interest & Investment Earnings 6,279 11,742

Transfers 0 2,337

Miscellaneous 3,304 1,495
Total Revenues 1,286,578 1,367,081
Expenses

Instruction 514,110 548,007

Instruction-Related Services 197,623 227,337

Pupil Services 68,172 68,998

General Administration 73,598 93,230

Plant Services 104,967 135,424

Interest on Long-Term Debt 68,446 62,068

Other Outgo 98,021 97,474
Total Expenses 1,124,937 1,232,538
Changes in Net Position $ 161,641 3 134,543

Table includes financial data of the combined governmental funds




NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

(PREPARED BY DISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Comparative Schedule of Costs of Services

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services

2018 2019 2018 2019
Instruction $ 514110 $ 548,007 % 423,688 §$ 429,637
Instruction-Related Services 197,623 227,337 188,722 214,148
Pupil Services 68,172 68,998 53,002 53,268
General Administration 73,598 93,230 72,656 91,377
Plant Services 104,967 135,424 100,584 133,196
Interest on Long-Term Debt 68,446 62,068 68,446 62,068
Other Qutgo 98,021 97,474 87,884 85,006

Totals $ 1,124,937 $ 1232538 § 994982 $ 1,068,700

Table includes financial data of the combined governmental funds

The table above presents the cost of major District activities. The table also shows each activity's
net cost (total cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid provided for
specific programs). The $1,068,700 total net cost represents the financial burden that was placed
on the District’s general revenues for providing the services listed.

100.0% —_—
90.0% _884% . 86.7%

80.0% :

700% e
' [ 4a1 # Program

60.0% . i Revenues

50.0% | (2433 J' '

40.0% | § —

| o2 e © General
118 It :
30.0% | ‘|- I
| )
|

Revenues

20.0%

0.0% = e

For fiscal year 2018-19, program revenues financed 13.3% of the total cost of providing the
services listed above, while the remaining 86.7% was financed by the general revenues of the
District.



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

(PREPARED BY DISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Summary of Revenues For Governmental Functions

2018 2019

FYE 2018 Percent of FYE 2019 Percent of
Amount Total Amount Total
Program Revenues
Operating Grants & Contributions § 129,955 10.10% % 163,838 11.98%
General Revenues
Taxes Levied 1,085,210 84.35% 1,124,419 82.25%
Federal & State Aid 61,830 4.81% 63,250 4.63%
Other Revenues 9,583 0.74% 15,5674 1.14%
Total Revenues $ 1,286,578 100.00% $ 1,367,081 100.00%
Comparative Revenues
$1,200,000 ——
$1,000,000 e
7 B Operating Grants &
$800000 | | | 1 Contributions
A l B Taxes Levied
$600,000 o #
£ l o B Federal & State Aid
$400,000 b |
| = 0O Other Revenues
$200,000 s e
$_ __.la:_ A-Q__.:' -:_-=|_




NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

(PREPARED BY DISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Summary of Expenses For Governmental Functions

FYE 2018 Percent of FYE 2019 Percent of
Amount Total Amount Total
Expenses
Instruction 3 514,110 4570% $ 548,007 44.46%
Instruction-Related Services 197,623 17.57% 227,337 18.44%
Pupil Services 68,172 6.06% 68,998 5.60%
General Administration 73,598 6.54% 93,230 7.56%
Plant Services 104,967 9.33% 135,424 10.99%
Other Expenses 166,467 14.80% 159,542 12.94%
Total Expenses $ 1,124,937 100.00% $ 1,232,538 100.00%
Comparative Expenses
$600,000
$500.000 ‘ B Instruction
‘ # |nstruction-Related
$400,000 | Services
| 8 Pupil Services
$300,000 |
B General
| Administration
$200,000 ‘ OPlant Services
$100,000 - —— — O0Other Expenses
3- :
2018 2019

10




NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

(PREPARED BY DISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (CONCLUDED)

Comparative Schedule of Capital Assets

Governmental Activities

Capital Assets, net

2018 2019
Land $ 53,889 § 53,889
Construction-in-Progress 4,389 4,389
Sites and Improvements 21,086 17,176
Buildings and Improvements 2,555,568 2,479,439
Furniture and Equipment 8,046 6,984

2,642,978 § 2,561,877

Capital assets, net of depreciation, decreased $81,101 due to the recognition of depreciation
expense.

Comparative Schedule of Long-Term Liabilities

Governmental Activities

2018 2019
General Obligation Bonds $ 1,560,000 $ 1,390,000
Early Retirement Incentives 25,251 18,938
Net Pension Liabilities 659,934 764,615
Totals $ 2245185 $ 2,173,553

Total long-term liabilities decreased $71,632 due primarily to the payment on the District's
outstanding general obligation bonds.

The general obligation bonds represent approximately 64.0% of the District’s total long-term
liabilites and will be financed primarily by property tax collections. The remaining long-term
liabilities will be financed by the General Fund.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial presentation and contain
more detailed information as to interest, principal, retirement amounts, and future debt retirement
dates.

11



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

(PREPARED BY DISTRICT MANAGEMENT)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF DISTRICT’S FUNDS

Comparative Schedule of Fund Balances

Fund Balances Fund Balances Increase
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019 (Decrease)
General $ 431939 $ 477136 % 45,197
Deferred Maintenance 43,390 36,327 (7,063)
Bond Interest & Redemption 226,453 241,445 14,992
Totals $ 701,782 $ 754,908 $ 53,126

The fund balance of the General Fund increased $45,197 and the combined fund balances of
the other governmental funds increased $7,929.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The District's budget is prepared in accordance with California law and is based on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Over the course of the year, the District revises its budget based on
updated financial information. The original budget, approved at the end of June for July 1, is
based on May Revise figures and updated 45 days after the State approves its final budget.

ECONOMIC FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT’S FUTURE

Employer contribution rates for CalSTRS and CalPERS will continue to increase on an annual
basis for the near future. In addition, there is an increasing risk of an economic downturn as the
current expansion cycle has exceeded most previous cycles. The Governor and Department of
Finance continue to urge the Legislation and local governments, including local education
agencies, to plan for the next recession.

Accordingly, the District's budget should continue to be managed with a great degree of
conservatism over the next few years. The District has an excellent track record in meeting this
challenge in what has proven to be a cycle of lean years and prosperous years for education
finances.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, investors, and
creditors with a general overview of the District’s finances and to show the District's accountability
for the money it receives. If you have questions regarding this report or need additional financial
information, contact the Interim Chief Financial Officer, Nicasio Elementary School District, 1111
Las Gallinas Avenue, San Rafael, CA 94913.

12



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2019

Assets

Deposits and Investments (Note 2)

Receivables (Note 3)

Capital Assets, Not Depreciated (Note 4)

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension Deferrals (Note 7)

Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities
Accrued Interest Payable
Long-Term Liabilities:
Portion Due or Payable Within One Year:
General Obligation Bonds
Early Retirement Incentives

Portion Due or Payable After One Year:
General Obligation Bonds (Note 5)
Early Retirement Incentives (Note 6)
Net Pension Liabilities (Note 7)

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension Deferrals (Note 7)

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted:

For Debt Service

For Educational Programs

For Other Purposes
Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Position

Governmental
Activities

$ 815,775
17,404

58,278

2,503,599

3,395,056

255,854

78,271
24115

185,000
6,313

1,205,000
12,625
764,615

2,275,939

198,860

1,171,877

217,330

32,428

1,000
(246,524)

$ 1,176,111

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE STATEMENTS

14



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in
Program Revenues Net Position
Operating Capital
Grants Grants
Charges for and and Governmental
Functions Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities
Governmental Activities
Instruction $ 548,007 $ 118,370 $  (429,637)
Instruction-Related Services:
Supervision of Instruction 1,837 177 (1,660)
School Site Administration 225,500 13,012 (212,488)
Pupil Services:
Home-to-School Transportation 28,255 3,614 (24,641)
Other Pupil Services 40,743 12,116 (28,627)
General Administration:
Data Processing Services 2,165 (2,165)
Other General Administration 91,065 1,853 (89,212)
Plant Services 135,424 2,228 (133,196)
Interest on Long-Term Debt 62,068 (62,068)
Other Outgo 97,474 12,468 (85,006)
Total Governmental Activities $ 1232538 § 0 $ 163,838 0 (1,068,700)
General Revenues
Taxes Levied for General Purposes 682,698
Taxes Levied for Debt Service 245,589
Taxes Levied for Specific Purposes 196,132
Federal and State Aid - Unrestricted 63,250
Interest and Investment Earnings 11,742
Transfers from Other Agencies 2,337
Miscellaneous 1,495
Total General Revenues 1,203,243
Change in Net Position 134,543
Net Position - July 1, 2018 1,041,568
Net Position - June 30, 2019 $ 1,176,111

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE STATEMENTS

15



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019
Bond
interest Total
Deferred and Governmental
General Maintenance Redemption Funds

Assets
Deposits and Investments (Note 2) $ 537,953 $ 36,377 $ 241,445 $ 815,775
Receivables (Note 3) 17,404 17,404

Total Assets $ 555,357 $ 36,377 $ 241,445 $ 833,179
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 78,221 $ 50 $ 78,271

Total Liabilities 78,221 50 78,271
Fund Balances: (Note 10)
Nonspendable 1,000 1,000
Restricted 32,428 $ 241,445 273,873
Assigned 55,655 36,327 91,982
Unassigned 388,053 388,053

Total Fund Balances 477,136 36,327 241,445 754,908
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 555,357 $ 36,377 $ 241,445 $ 833,179

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE STATEMENTS

16



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Fund $ 754,908

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different from amounts reported in governmental funds due to the following:

Capital assets: In governmental funds, only current assets are reported. In the
statement of net position, all assets are reported, including capital assets and
accumulated depreciation.

Capital Assets $ 4,118,495
Accumulated Depreciation (1,556,618)
Net 2,561,877

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions: In governmental
funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions are not
reported because they are applicable to future periods. In the statement of net
position, deferred outfiows and inflows of resources relating to pensions are

reported:
Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions 255,854
Deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions (198,860)

Long-term liabilities: In governmental funds, only current liabilities are reported.
In the statement of net position, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are
reported. Long-term liabilities relating to governmental activities consist of:

General Obligation Bonds $ 1,390,000
Early Retirement Incentives 18,938
Net Pension Liabilities 764,615
Total (2,173,553)

Unmatured interest on long-term debt: In governmental funds, interest on
long-term debt is not recognized until the period in which it matures and is paid.
In the government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized in the period that
it is incurred. The additional liability for unmatured interest owing at the end of

the period was: (24,115)
Total Net Position - Governmental Activities $ 1,176,111

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE STATEMENTS
17



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Bond
Interest Total
Deferred and Governmental
General Maintenance Redemption Funds
Revenues
LCFF Sources:
State Apportionment / Transfers $ 37,801 $ 10,000 $ 47,801
Local Taxes 682,699 682,699
Total LCFF Sources 720,500 10,000 730,500
Federal Revenue 20,397 20,397
State Revenue 85,115 $ 445 85,560
Local Revenue 282,671 669 247,284 530,624
Total Revenues 1,108,683 10,669 247,729 1,367,081
Expenditures
Current:
Instruction 473,732 473,732
Supervision of Instruction 1,843 1,843
School Site Administration 213,201 213,201
Home-To-School Transportation 28,255 28,255
Other Pupil Services 40,743 40,743
Data Processing Services 2,165 2,165
Other General Administration 86,597 86,597
Plant Services 111,033 17,732 128,765
Other Outgo 97,474 97,474
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 6,313 170,000 176,313
Interest and Issuance Costs 2,130 62,737 64,867
Total Expenditures 1,063,486 17,732 232,737 1,313,955
Net Change in Fund Balances 45,197 (7,063) 14,992 53,126
Fund Balances - July 1, 2018 431,939 43,390 226,453 701,782
Fund Balances - June 30, 2019 $ 477,136 $ 36,327 $ 241,445 $ 754,908

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE STATEMENTS

18




NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Net Change in Fund Balance - Governmental Fund

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
from amounts reported in governmental funds due to the following:

Capital outlay: In governmental funds, the costs of capital assets are reported as
expenditures in the period when the assets are acquired. In the statement of
activities, costs of capital assets are allocated over their useful lives as depreciation
expense. The difference between capital outlay expenditures and depreciation

Capital Outlay Expenditures
Depreciation Expense
Net

Debt service: In governmental funds, repayments of long-term debt are reported as
expenditures. In the government-wide statements, repayments of long-term debt
are reported as reductions of liabilities. Expenditures for repayment of the principal
portion of long-term debt were:

Pensions: In governmental funds, pension costs are recognized when employer
contributions are made. In the statement of activities, pension costs are recognized
on the accrual basis. This year, the difference between accrual basis pension costs
and actual employer contributions was:

Unmatured interest on long-term debt: In governmental funds, interest on long-term
debt is recognized in the period that it becomes due. In the government-wide
statements, it is recognized in the period that it is incurred. Unmatured interest
owing at the end of the period, less matured interest paid during the period but
owing from a prior period, was:

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

$ 0
(81,101)

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE STATEMENTS

19

$

$

53,126

(81,101)

176,313

(16,594)

2,799

134,543



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

Financial Reporting Entity

The Nicasio Elementary School District (the “District’) is a public educational agency
operating under the applicable laws and regulations of the State of California. It is governed
by a three-member Board of Education elected by registered voters of the District, which
comprises an area in Marin County. The District serves students in kindergarten through
grade eight.

The District accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with the policies and
procedures of the Department of Education's California School Accounting Manual. The
accounting policies of the District conform to generally accepted accounting principles as
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA).

The financial reporting entity consists of the following:

» The primary government

» Organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable

» Other organizations for which the primary government may determine, through
exercise of management’'s professional judgment, that the inclusion of an
organization that does not meet the financial accountability criteria is necessary in
order to prevent the reporting entity’'s financial statements from being misleading. In
such instances, the organization should be included as a component unit.

The District has reviewed criteria to determine whether other entities with activities that
benefit the District should be included within its financial reporting entity under GASB
Statement No. 14 (GASB14) as amended by GASB Statement No. 61 (GASB 61), The
Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, and has determined that there are no organizations,
with financial activities that benefit the District, which should be included within its financial
reporting entity under these criteria.

The District has also reviewed criteria to determine whether other organizations, for which
the District is not financially accountable, should be reported within its financial reporting
entity, based on the nature and significance of its relationship with the District, under GASB
Statement No. 39 (GASB 39), Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component
Units, and has determined that there are no organizations, for which the District is not
financially accountable, which should be reported within its financial reporting entity.

Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements:

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the District.
The effect of interfund activity within the governmental activities column has been removed
from these statements. Governmental activities are normally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues.

20



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B.

Basis of Presentation (Concluded)

Government-wide Financial Statements (Concluded):

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus. This is the same approach used in the preparation of proprietary fund
and fiduciary fund financial statements but differs from the manner in which governmental
fund financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements, therefore,
include reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the
government-wide statements and the statements for the governmental funds.

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct
expenses and program revenues for each function or program of the District's governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program,
or department and are therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. The District does
not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement of activities. Program revenues
include charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by a program, as well as
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of
a particular program. Revenues, which are not classified as program revenues, are presented as
general revenues of the District, with certain exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with
program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or
draws from the general revenues of the District.

Fund Financial Statements:

Fund financial statements report detailed information about the District. The focus of
governmental fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by
type. Each major governmental fund is presented in a separate column.

The accounting and financial treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus. All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities
are generally included on the balance sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances for these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other
financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current
assets.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements
are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified
accrual basis of accounting.

Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions:

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives
essentially equal value, is recorded under the accrual basis when the exchange takes place.
Under the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the
resources are measurable and become available.

21



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C.

Basis of Accounting (Concluded)

Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions (Concluded):

“Available” means the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are
expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current
fiscal year. For the District, “available” means collectible within the current period or within
45, 60, 90 days after year-end, depending on the revenue source. However, to achieve
comparability of reporting among California Districts and so as not to distort normal revenue
patterns, with specific respect to reimbursement grants and corrections to state aid
apportionments, the California Department of Education has defined available as collectible
within one year.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal
value in retum, include property taxes, grants, and entittements. Under the accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenue from grants and entittements is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which
specify the year when the resources are to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted;
matching requirements, in which the District must provide local resources to be used for a
specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the
District on a reimbursement basis. Under the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-
exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Uneamed Revenue:

Unearned revenue arises when assets are received before revenue recognition criteria have
been satisfied. Grants and entitlements received before eligibility requirements are met are
recorded as unearned revenue.

Expenses/Expenditures:

On an accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time a liability is incurred.
On the modified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are generally recognized in the
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, as under the accrual basis
of accounting. However, under the modified accrual basis of accounting, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. Allocations of cost, such as
depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds. When both
restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Fund Accounting

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered
to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity
or retained earnings, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. District
resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for
which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

22



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D.

Fund Accounting (Concluded)

The District maintains the following governmental fund types:

General Fund - The general fund is used to account for and report all financial resources not
accounted for and reported in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the
proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for
specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects. Other resources also may be
reported in the fund if those resources are restricted, committed, or assigned to the specified
purpose of the fund.

Debt Service Funds - Debt service funds are used to account for and report financial
resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and
interest.

The District’s accounts are organized into major funds as follows:

General Fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for and report
all financial resources not accounted for and reported in another fund.

Deferred Maintenance Fund is used for the purpose of major repair or replacement of District
property.

Bond Interest and Redemption Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for
the repayment of District bonds, interest, and related costs.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America for all governmental funds. By state law, the
District's Governing Board must adopt a final budget no later than July 1. A public hearing
must be conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. The District's Governing Board
satisfied these requirements.

These budgets are revised by the District's Governing Board and Superintendent during
the year to give consideration to unanticipated income and expenditures. The original and
final revised budget is presented for the General Fund and Deferred Maintenance Fund on
pages 47 and 48.

Formal budgetary integration was employed as a management control device during the
year for all budgeted funds. The District employs budget control by minor object and by
individual appropriation accounts. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by
major object account.

23



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

F.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable
appropriations for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for
purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments when they are written. Encumbrances
are liquidated when the commitments are paid. All encumbrances are liquidated at June 30.

Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and

Fund Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

The District is authorized to maintain cash in banks and revolving funds that are insured
to $250,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

The District is considered to be an involuntary participant in an external investment pool
as the District is required to deposit all receipts and collections of monies with their
County Treasurer (Education Code Section 41001). The County is authorized to deposit
cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code Section 53648 et seq.
The funds maintained by the County are either secured by the FDIC or are
collateralized.

The District is authorized under California Government Code to make direct investments
in local agency bonds, notes, or warrants within the State; U.S. Treasury instruments;
registered State warrants or treasury notes; securities of the U.S. Government, or its
agencies; bankers acceptances; commercial paper; certificates of deposit placed with
commercial banks and/or savings and loan companies; repurchase or reverse
repurchase agreements; medium term corporate notes; shares of beneficial interest
issued by diversified management companies; certificates of participation; obligations
with first priority security; and collateralized mortgage obligations.

Investments with original maturities greater than one year are stated at fair value. Fair
value is estimated based on quoted market prices at year-end. All investments not
required to be reported at fair value are stated at cost or amortized cost.

2. Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are
reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported
at fair market value as of the date received. Additions, improvements, and other capital
outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. The costs of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially
extend the asset’s lives are not capitalized, but are expensed as incurred.

24



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

H.

Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and

Fund Equity (Continued)

2. Capital Assets (Concluded)

Depreciation on all capital assets is computed using a straight-line basis over the
following estimated useful lives:

Asset Class Years
Sites and Improvements 20
Buildings and Improvements 11-50
Furniture and Equipment 5-20

3. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the District will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and
so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the District will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so
will not be recognized as an inflow of resources until that time.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information
about the fiduciary net position of the California State Teachers’ Retirement System
(CalSTRS) and California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), and
additions to/deductions from the CalSTRS’ and CalPERS’ fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalSTRS and CalPERS.
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments
are reported at fair value.

Long-term Liabilities

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Premiums and discounts are deferred and
amortized over the life of the obligation, when material. Liabilities are reported net of
applicable premiums and discounts.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize premiums and discounts

when the debt is issued. The face amount of the debt issued, premiums and discounts
are reported as other financing sources or uses.

25



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

H. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and
Fund Equity (Continued)

6. Fund Balances

Governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications
that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the District is
bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective
governmental funds can be spent. The five classifications used in governmental fund
financial statements are as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance includes amounts that are not expected to be converted to
cash, such as inventory, prepaid items, and other resources that are not in a spendable
form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted Fund Balance includes amounts constrained to specific purposes by their
providers or by law.

Committed Fund Balance includes amounts constrained to specific purposes by the
District’s highest level of decision making authority (Governing Board). Formal action by
resolution must be taken prior to the end of the fiscal year. The same formal action must
be taken to remove or change the limitations placed on the funds.

Assigned Fund Balance includes amounts that the Governing Board or its designee
intends to use for a specific purpose, but are neither restricted nor committed, should be
reported as assigned fund balance. The Governing Board delegates the authority to
assign amounts to be used for specific purposes to the Superintendent or his/her
designee for the purpose of reporting these amounts in the annual financial statements.

Unassigned Fund Balance includes amounts that are available for any purpose. They
are residual positive net resources of the general fund in excess of what can properly be
classified in one of the other four categories. The District has adopted a policy to achieve
and maintain an economic uncertainty reserve that is no less than the state
recommended minimum reserve.

The District considers restricted fund balances to have been spent first when an
expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund
balance is available. Similarly, when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which
amounts in any of the unrestricted classifications of fund balance could be used, the
District considers committed amounts to be reduced first, followed by assigned amounts
and then unassigned amounts.

7. Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF /Property Tax)

The formula for determining the level of funding per student is the “Local Control
Funding Formula® (LCFF). District funding under the LCFF is generally provided by a
mix of state aid and local property taxes.

26



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONCLUDED)

H. Assets, Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and
Fund Equity (Concluded)

7. Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF /Property Tax) (Concluded)

The County of Marin is responsible for assessing, collecting and apportioning property
taxes to the District. Taxes are levied for each fiscal year on taxable real and personal
property in the county. The levy is based on the assessed values as of the
preceding January 1, which is also the lien date. Property taxes on the secured roll are
due on November 1 and February 1, and taxes become delinquent after December 10
and April 10, respectively. Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due on the lien date
(January 1), and become delinquent if unpaid by August 31.

Secured property taxes are recorded as revenue when apportioned, in the fiscal year of
the levy. The county apportions secured property tax revenue in accordance with the
alternative method of distribution prescribed by Section 4705 of the California Revenue
and Taxation Code. This alternate method provides for crediting each applicable fund
with its total secured taxes upon completion of the secured tax roll, approximately
October 1 of each year.

The County Auditor reports the amount of the District’s allocated property tax revenue to
the California Department of Education. Property taxes are recorded as local LCFF
sources by the District. The California Department of Education reduces the District's
LCFF entitlement by the District's local property tax revenue. Any balance remaining is
paid from the State General Fund, and is known as LCFF State Aid.

Since the amount of property taxes received by the District exceeds the amount of the
LCFF transition entitlement, the District is considered to be a “basic aid” school district,
and is permitted to keep all of its property tax revenue. In addition, as guaranteed by the
California Constitution, the State must apportion $120 per pupil to the District. However,
the categorical aid that the District receives counts toward this requirement.

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Summary of Deposits and Investments

Deposits and investments as of June 30, 2019, consist of the following:

Governmental

Activities
Cash in Revolving Fund $ 1,000
County Pool Investments 814,775
Total $ 815,775

27



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Cash in Revolving Fund

Cash in revolving fund consists of all cash maintained in commercial bank accounts that are
used as revolving funds.

County Pool Investments

County pool investments consists of District cash held by the Marin County Treasury that is
invested in the county investment pool. The fair value of the District’s investment in the pool
is reported in the financial statements at amounts that are based upon the District’s pro-rata
share of the fair value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio
(in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is
based on the accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on
the amortized cost basis.

General Authorization

Limitations as they relate to interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk are
indicated in the schedule below:

Maximum Maximum Maximum
Authorized Remaining Percentage Investment
Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer

Local Agency Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
Registered State Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Banker's Acceptance 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base None
Medium-Term Notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds/ N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
Joint Powers Authority Pools N/A None None

28



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The District does not have a
formal investment policy that limits investment maturites as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The District manages its
exposure to interest rate risk by investing in the Marin County Investment pool.

Weighted Average Maturity

The District monitors the interest rate risk inherent in its portfolio by measuring the weighted
average maturity of its portfolio. Information about the weighted average maturity of the
District’s portfolio is presented in the following schedule:

Carrying Fair Weighted Average
Investment Type Value Value Days to Maturity
County Pool Investments $ 814,775 $ 820,395 218

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fuffill its obligation to the holder
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization. Investments in the County Treasury are not required to be
rated.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may not be returned
to it. The District does not have a policy for custodial credit risk for deposits. However, the
Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local
governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository
regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value
of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent of the
total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions
to secure public deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of
150 percent of the secured public deposits and letters of credit issued by the Federal Home
Loan Bank of San Francisco having a value of 105 percent of the secured deposits. As of
June 30, 2019, the District’s bank balance was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Fair Value Measurements

The District categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy,
which has three levels, is based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset's fair
value. The following provides a summary of the hierarchy used to measure fair value:

29



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONCLUDED)

Fair Value Measurements (Concluded)

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets that the District has the ability
to access at the measurement date. Level 1 assets may include debt and equity securities
that are traded in an active exchange market and that are highly liquid and are actively
traded in over-the-counter markets.

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar
assets in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not
active, or other inputs that are observable, such as interest rates and curves observable at
commonly quoted intervals, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. For financial reporting
purposes, if an asset has a specific term, a Level 2 input is required to be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs should be developed using the best information available
under the circumstances, which might include the District’'s own data. The District should
adjust that data if reasonable available information indicates that other market participants
would use different data or certain circumstances specific to the District are not available to
other market participants.

Uncategorized - Investments in the Marin County Treasury Investment Pool are not
measured using the input levels above because the District’s transactions are based on a
stable net asset value per share. All contributions and redemptions are transacted at $1.00
net asset value per share.

The District’s fair value measurements are as follows at June 30, 2019:

Fair
Investment Type Value Uncategorized
County Pool Investments $ 820,395 $ 820,395

All assets have been valued using a market approach, with quoted market prices.
NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2019 consist of the following:

General
Fund
Federal Government $ 3,232
State Government 4706
Local Governments 9,466
Total $ 17,404

30



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows:

Balances Balances
July 1, 2018 Additions Deletions June 30, 2019
Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated:
Land $ 53,889 $ 53,889
Construction-in-Progress 4,389 4,389
Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated 58278 § c 3 0 58,278
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Sites and Improvements 264,425 264,425
Buildings and Improvements 3,761,014 3,761,014
Furniture and Equipment 34,778 34,778
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 4,060,217 0 0 4,060,217
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Sites and Improvements 243,339 3,910 247,249
Buildings and Improvements 1,205,446 76,129 1,281,575
Furniture and Equipment 26,732 1,062 27,794
Total Accumulated Depreciation 1,475,517 81,101 0 1,556,618
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated, Net 2,584,700 (81,101) 0 2,503,599
Capital Assets, Net $ 2642978 $ (81,101) § 0 $ 2,561,877

Depreciation expense for governmental activities was charged as follows:

Instruction $ 76,216
Instruction-Related Services 3,782
General Administration 613
Plant Services 490

Total $ 81,101

NOTE 5 - GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

On December 7, 2010, the Nicasio Elementary School District issued $2,440,000 of 2010
General Obligation Refunding Bonds for the purpose of refunding certain outstanding
general obligation bonds that were originally issued to fund improvements to school
buildings and grounds, including renovation of aging school facilities.

The general obligation bonds are secured by the full faith and credit of the District. In order
to provide sufficient funds for the repayment of principal and interest on the bonds when due,
the Board of Supervisors of Marin County is empowered and obligated to annually levy ad
valorem taxes upon all property subject to taxation in the District.

31



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 5 - GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (CONCLUDED)

The District’s outstanding general obligation bonded debt at June 30, 2019 is:

Year Date Amount of Issued Redeemed

of Interest of Original Outstanding Current Current Outstanding
Issue Rate % Maturity Issue July 1, 2018 Year Year June 30, 2019
2010 2.00-4.50 8/1/24 $ 2440000 $ 1,560,000 $ 0 §$ 170,000 $ 1,390,000

The annual requirements to amortize the general obligation bonds, as of June 30, 2019, are

as follows:
Year Ended
June 30 Principal Interest Totals

2020 $ 185,000 § 54,888 $ 239,888
2021 205,000 47,087 252,087
2022 220,000 38,587 258,587
2023 235,000 29,194 264,194
2024 260,000 18,513 278,513
2025-2029 285,000 6,412 291,412

Totals $ 1,390,000 $ 194,681 $ 1,584,681

NOTE 6 - EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVES

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 7, the District adopted an early
retirement incentive program, pursuant to Education Code Sections 22714 and 44929,
whereby the service credit to an eligible certificated employee was increased by two years.
Future payments under this early retirement incentive agreement will be made through fiscal
year 2021-22 as follows:

Year Ended STRS Golden
June 30 Handshake
2020 $ 7,530
2021 7,124
2022 6,719
Total payments 21,373
Less amounts representing interest (2,435)
Total principal payments $ 18,938

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS

Qualified employees are covered under retirement plans maintained by agencies of the
State of California. Certificated employees are eligible to participate under the multiple-
employer, cost-sharing defined benefit plan administered by the California State Teachers'
Retirement System (CalSTRS) and classified employees are eligible to participate under the
multiple-employer, cost-sharing defined benefit plan administered by the California Public
Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS).

32



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

The District reported net pension liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows
of resources, and pension expense in the accompanying government-wide financial
statements as follows:

Net Deferred Deferred
Pension Outflows of Inflows of Pension
Pension Plan Liabilities Resources Resources Expense
CalSTRS $ 561,986 $ 196,555 $ 179,900 $ 100,829
CalPERS 202,629 59,299 18,960 44,132
Totals $ 764,615 $ 255,854 $ 198,860 $ 144,961

A. California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS)

Plan Description

The California State Teachers Retirement System (CalSTRS) provides pension benefits,
including disability and survivor benefits, to California full-time and part-time public school
teachers and certain other employees of the public school system. The Teachers’
Retirement Law (Califomnmia Education Code Section 22000 et seq.), as enacted and
amended by the California Legislature and Governor, established the plan and CalSTRS as
the administrator. The terms of the plan may be amended through legislation. CalSTRS
issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plan that can be
found on the CalSTRS website.

Benefits Provided

The State Teachers’ Retirement Plan (STRP) is a multiple-employer, cost-sharing defined
benefit plan. The STRP holds assets for the exclusive purpose of providing benefits to
members and beneficiaries of these programs and to defray reasonable expenses for
administering the STRP. Although CalSTRS is the administrator of the STRP, the State of
California is the sponsor of the STRP and obligor of the trust. In addition, the State is both
an employer and nonemployer contributing entity to the STRP.

The STRP Defined Benefit Program has two benefit formulas:

o CalSTRS 2% at 60: Members first hired on or before December 31, 2012, to perform
services that could be creditable to CalSTRS.

e CalSTRS 2% at 62: Members first hired on or after January 1, 2013, to perform services
that could be creditable to CalSTRS.

The Defined Benefit Program provides retirement benefits based on members’ final
compensation, age and years of service credit. In addition, the retirement program provides
benefits to members upon disability and to their survivors or beneficiaries upon the death of
eligible members. There are several differences between the two benefit formulas and
some of the differences are noted below.

33



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

A.

California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS) (Continued)

Benefits Provided (Concluded)

CalSTRS 2% at 60

CalSTRS 2% at 60 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 60, with a minimum of
five years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0% of final
compensation multiplied by the number of years of credited service. Early retirement options
are available at age 55 with five years of credited service or as early as age 50 with 30 years
of credited service. The age factor for retirements after age 60 increases with each quarter
year of age to a maximum of 2.4% at age 63 or older. Members who have 30 years or more
of credited service receive an additional increase of up to 0.2% to the age factor, up to the
2.4% maximum.

CalSTRS calculates retirement benefits based on one-year final compensation for members
with 25 or more years of credited service, or for classroom teachers with fewer than 25 years
of credited service if the employer entered into, extended, renewed, or amended an
agreement prior to January 1, 2014, to elect to pay the additional benefit cost for all of its
classroom teachers. One year final compensation means a member's highest average
annual compensation earnable for 12 consecutive months based on the creditable
compensation that a member could earn in a school year while employed on a full-time
basis. For most members with fewer than 25 years of credited service, final compensation is
the highest average annual compensation earnable for any 36 consecutive months based on
the creditable compensation that a member could earn in a school year while employed on a
full-time basis.

CalSTRS 2% at 62

CalSTRS 2% at 62 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 62, with a minimum of
five years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0% of final
compensation multiplied by the number of years of credited service. An early retirement
option is available at age 565. The age factor for retirement after age 62 increases with each
quarter year of age to 2.4% at age 65 or older.

All CalSTRS 2% at 62 members have their final compensation based on their highest
average annual compensation earnable for 36 consecutive months based on the creditable
compensation that a member could earn in a school year while employed on a full-time
basis.

Contributions
Required member, employer and state contribution rates are set by the California Legislature
and Governor and are detailed in the Teachers’ Retirement Law. A summary of statutory

contribution rates and other sources of contributions to the Defined Benefit Program are as
follows:

34



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

A

California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS) (Continued)

Contributions (Concluded)

Members: Pursuant to AB 1469, the CalSTRS member contribution rates were as follows:
Under CalSTRS 2% at 60, the member contribution rate was 10.25% of applicable member
earnings for fiscal year 2018-19. Under CalSTRS 2% at 62, the member contribution rate
was 10.205% of applicable member earnings for fiscal year 2018-19.

Employers: Pursuant to AB 1469, the employer contribution rate was 16.28% of applicable
member earnings for fiscal year 2018-19. The District contributed $51,939 to the plan for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

State: The contribution was 2.017% of the members’ creditable earnings from the fiscal year
ending in the prior calendar year. Also, as a result of AB 1469, the additional state
appropriation required to fully fund the benefits in effect as of 1990 by 2046 is specified in
Education Code Section 22955.1(b). The additional state contribution for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2019 was 5.311%. Including a 2.50% contribution for SBMA funding, the
total state appropriation to the defined benefit program was 9.828% for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019.

Payable for Benefit Enhancement

The District provides, at their cost, an additional two years of service credit to increase the
amount of participating members’ monthly retirement benefits. The cost to the District will
be paid in installments not to exceed eight years, with interest charged on the unpaid
balance at the actuarially assumed rate of return on investments for the Defined Benefit
Program. As of June 30, 2018, the outstanding balance of these payments to CalSTRS was
$18,938 (see Note 6).

District’'s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability. Pension Expense. Deferred
QOutflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2019, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability that reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The
amount recognized by the District as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the
related State support, and the total portion of the net pension liability associated with the
District was as follows:

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 561,986
State's proportionate share of the net pension liability

associated with the District 321,763
Total net pension liability attributed to District $ 883,749

35



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

A.

California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS) (Continued)

District’'s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, Pension Expense, Deferred
Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued)

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
June 30, 2017. The District's proportion of the net pension liabilty was based on the
District's share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all
participating employers and the State.

The District's proportionate share of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2018 and
June 30, 2017 was as follows:

Proportion - June 30, 2018 0.0006%
Proportion - June 30, 2017 0.0005%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.0001%

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized pension expense of
$100,829, which includes $51,317 of support provided by the State. At June 30, 2019, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date $ 51,939
Differences between expected and actual experience 1,445 $ 9,724
Changes of assumptions 72,395
Changes in employer's proportion and differences between the
employer's contributions and the employer's proportionate
share of contributions 70,776 162,123
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on
plan investments 8,053
Totals $ 196,555 $ 179,900

The deferred outflows of resources related to District contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:

36



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

A

California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS) (Continued)

District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, Pension Expense. Deferred
Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Concluded)

Year Ended
June 30
2020 $ (1,841)
2021 (12,116)
2022 (29,144)
2023 (8,483)
2024 4 586
2025 11,714

Differences between expected and actual experience, changes of assumptions, and
changes in employer’s proportion and differences between the employer's contributions and
the employer’s proportionate share of contributions are amortized over a closed period equal
to the average remaining service life of plan members, which is 7 years as of June 30, 2018.
Deferred outflows and inflows related to differences between projected and actual earnings
on plan investments are netted and amortized over a closed 5-year period.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The total pension liability for the STRP was determined by applying update procedures to a
financial reporting actuarial vaiuation as of June 30, 2017, and rolling forward the total
pension liability to June 30, 2018. In determining the total pension liability, the financial
reporting actuarial valuation used the following methods and assumptions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2017

Experience Study July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2015
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Investment Rate of Return ' 7.10%

Consumer Price Inflation 2.75%

Wage Growth 3.50%

Post-retirement Benefit Increases 2.00% simple for DB (Annually)

Maintain 85% purchasing power level for DB

! Net of investment expenses, but gross of administrative expenses.

CalSTRS uses a generational mortality assumption, which involves the use of a base
morality table and projection scales to reflect expected annual reductions in mortality rates at
each age, resulting in increases of life expectancies each year into the future. The base
mortality tables are CalSTRS custom tables derived to best fit the patterns of mortality
among its members. The projection scale was set equal to 110% of the ultimate
improvement factor from the Mortality Improvement Scale (MP-2016) table, issued by the
Society of Actuaries.

37



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

A

California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS) (Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (Concluded)

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for
each major asset class. The best-estimate ranges were developed using capital market
assumptions from CalSTRS general investment consultant (Pension Consulting Alliance -
PCA) as an input to the process. The actuarial investment rate of return assumption was
adopted by the board in February 2017 in conjunction with the most recent experience
study. For each future valuation, CalSTRS consulting actuary (Milliman) reviews the return
assumption for reasonableness based on the most current capital market assumptions.

Best estimates of 20-year geometrically-linked real rates of return and the assumed asset
allocation for each major asset class for the year ended June 30, 2018, are summarized in
the following table:

Assumed Long-Term

Asset Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return*
Global Equity 47% 6.30%
Fixed Income 12% 0.30%
Real Estate 13% 5.20%
Private Equity 13% 9.30%
Risk Mitigating Strategies 9% 2.90%
Inflation Sensitive 4% 3.80%
Cash / Liquidity 2% -1.00%

Total 100%

* 20-year average
Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members and employers are made at statutory contribution rates as previously described.
Projected inflows from investment earnings were calculated using the long-term assumed
investment rate of return (7.10%) and assuming that contributions, benefit payments, and
administrative expenses occur midyear. Based on those assumptions, the STRP’s fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term assumed investment rate of return was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

38



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

A

California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS) (Concluded)

Sensitivity of the District’'s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following table presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as of
the measurement date, calculated using the current discount rate of 7.10%, as well as what
the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.10%) or one percentage point
higher (8.10%) than the current rate:

Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase
6.10% 7.10% 8.10%
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 823,244 § 561,986 $ 345,378

Pension Plan’s Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued CalSTRS financial report.

California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS)

Plan Description, Benefits Provided, and Employvees Covered

The District contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement
system defined benefit pension plan administered by the CalPERS. All employees who
work at least half time or are appointed to a job that will last at least six months and one day
are eligible for CalPERS. Benefits vest after five years. Employees are eligible to retire at or
after age 50 having attained five years of credited service and are entitled to an annual
retirement benefit, payable monthly for life. Employees hired after January 1, 2013 with five
years of credit service must be at least age 52 to retire.

The Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits, and annual cost-of-living
adjustments to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by State
statutes, as legislatively amended, within the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. CalPERS
issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding
benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the
CalPERS website.

39



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

B.

California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) (Continued)

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total
plan contributions are determined through CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation process.
The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any
unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the
actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. Active plan members
who entered into the plan prior to January 1, 2013 are required to contribute 7.0% of their
salary, and new members entering into the plan on or after January 1, 2013 are required to
contribute the higher of 50% of the total normal cost rate for their defined benefit plan or
7.0% of their salary.

The District’s contractually required contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019
was 18.062% of annual payroll. The District's contribution to CalPERS for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2019 was $18,241.

District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, Pension Expense, Deferred
Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

As of June 30, 2019, the District reported a liability of $202,629 for its proportionate share of
the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and
the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 rolled forward to June 30, 2018 using standard
update procedures. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a
projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.

The District's proportionate share of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2018 and
June 30, 2017 was as follows:

Proportion - June 30, 2018 0.0008%
Proportion - June 30, 2017 0.0008%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.0000%

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized pension expense of
$44,132, which includes $6,870 of support provided by the State. At June 30, 2019, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

40



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

B. California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) (Continued)

District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, Pension Expense. Deferred
Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Concluded)

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date $ 18,241
Differences between expected and actual experience 13,450
Changes of assumptions 21,163
Changes in employer's proportion and differences between the
employer's contributions and the employer's proportionate
share of contributions 3,168 $ 18,960
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on
plan investments 3,277
Totals $ 59,299 $ 18,960

The deferred outflows of resources related to District contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as

follows:
Year Ended
June 30
2020 $ 9,940
2021 15,696
2022 (2,342)
2023 (1,196)

Differences between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions, and
changes in employer's proportion and differences in employer's contributions and
employer's proportionate share of contributions are amortized over a closed period equal to
the average remaining service life of plan members, which is 4 years as of June 30, 2018.
The net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments is
amortized over a 5-year period on a straight-line basis.

41



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

B.

California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) (Continued)

Acluarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuations were determined using
the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2017
Measurement Date June 30, 2018
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.15%
Inflation 2.50%
Wage Growth Varies
Investment Rate of Return 7.15%

Post Retirement Benefit Increase (1)

(1) 2.00% until Purchasing Power Protection Allowance Floor
on Purchasing Power applies, 2.50% thereafter

The mortality rate table used was developed based on CalPERS specific data. The table
includes 15 years of mortality improvements using the Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of
scale MP 2016.

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study from 1997 to 2015. Further details of the experience
study can be found on the CalPERS website.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from
employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those
assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on plan investments were applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-
term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash
flows. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound
(geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term
(11+ years) using a building-block approach.

42



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

B.

California Public Emplovees' Retirement System (CalPERS) (Continued)

Discount Rate (Concluded)

Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of
benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the
rounded single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits
for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The
expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and
adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.

The table below reflects expected real rates of return by asset class. The rates of return
were calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate.

Assumed Asset Real Return Real Return

Asset Class ' Allocation Years 1-10° Years 11+ °
Global Equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed Income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation Assets 0.0% 0.77% 1.81%
Private Equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23%
Real Assets 13.0% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.0% 0.00% -0.92%

Total 100.0%

! In the CalPERS CAFR, fixed income is included in global debt securities; liquidity is included in short-terrr
investments; inflation assets are included in both global equity securities and global debt securities.

2 An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period.
3 An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.15%, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage
point lower (6.15%) or one percentage point higher (8.15%) than the current rate:

Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase
6.15% 7.15% 8.15%
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 295,018 $ 202,629 $ 125,979

43



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (CONCLUDED)

B. California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) (Concluded)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued CalPERS financial report.

C. Social Security

As established by Federal law, all public sector employees who are not members of their
employer’s existing retirement system (CalSTRS or CalPERS) must be covered by social
security or an alternative plan. The District has elected to use Social Security as its

alternative plan.

Contributions made by the District and participating employees vest

immediately. Both the District and participating employees were required to contribute 6.2%
of an employee’s gross earnings, up to the annual limit.

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

A schedule of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2019, is shown

below:
Balances Balances Due within
July 1, 2018 Additions Deductions  June 30,2019  One Year
Long-Term Debt:
General Obligation Bonds  $ 1,560,000 $ 170,000 $ 1,390,000 $ 185,000
Early Retirement Incentives 25,251 6,313 18,938 6,313
Other Long-Term Liabilities:
Net Pension Liabilities 659,934 $ 104,681 764,615
Totals $2245185 $ 104,681 $ 176,313 $ 2,173,553 $ 191,313

The general obligation bonds are obligations of the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund,
which is financed primarily by property tax collections. All other long-term liabilities will be

financed by the General Fund.

NOTE 9 - ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS MADE BY THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

The District was the recipient of on-behalf payments made by the State of California to the
State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) and California Public Employees’ Retirement
System (CalPERS) for K-12 Education. These payments consist of state general fund
contributions of $51,317 to CalSTRS and $6,870 to CalPERS.

44



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 10 - FUND BALANCES

The District’s fund balances at June 30, 2019 consisted of the following:

Bond Interest

Deferred and
General Maintenance Redemption
Fund Fund Fund Totals
Nonspendabile:
Revolving Cash $ 1,000 $ 1,000
Total Nonspendable 1,000 1,000
Restricted:
Categorical Programs 32,428 32,428
Debt Service $ 241,445 241,445
Total Restricted 32,428 241,445 273,873
Assigned:
Special Education 45,000 45,000
Deferred Maintenance $ 36,327 36,327
Other Assignments 10,655 10,655
Total Assigned 55,655 36,327 0 91,982
Unassigned:
Economic Uncertainties 201,219 201,219
Remaining Unassigned Balances 186,834 186,834
Total Unassigned 388,053 0 0 388,053
Total Fund Balances $ 477,136 $ 36,327 $ 241,445 $ 754,908

NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During fiscal
year 2018-19, the District participated in one joint powers authority (JPA) for purposes of
pooling for risk. There were no significant reductions in coverage during the year.
Settlements have not exceeded coverage for each of the past three years.

NOTE 12 - JOINT VENTURE

The District participates in one joint venture under a joint powers agreement (JPA) with the
Marin Schools Insurance Authority (MSIA) for property, liability and workers' compensation
insurance coverage. The relationship between the District and the JPA is such that the JPA
is not a component unit of the District for financial reporting purposes.

The JPA arranges for and/or provides coverage for its members. The JPA is governed by a
board consisting of a representative from each member district. The board controls the
operations of their JPA, including selection of management and approval of operating
budgets independent of any influence by the member districts beyond their representation
on the Board. Each member district pays a premium commensurate with the level of
coverage requested and shares surpluses and deficits proportionately to their participation in
the JPA.

45



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 12 - JOINT VENTURE (CONCLUDED)

The JPA is audited on an annual basis. Financial information can be obtained by contacting
the JPA’s management.

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A

State and Federal Allowances, Awards and Grants

The District has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to
review and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure
disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursements will
not be material.

Litigation
The District is subject to various legal proceedings and claims. In the opinion of

management, the ultimate liability with respect to these actions will not materially affect the
financial position or results of operations of the District.

NOTE 14 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

During fiscal year 2018-19, the District received $196,132 of parcel tax revenue that is
subject to voter approval. The District also received $44,400 from the Nicasio Schools
Foundation, a non-profit, public benefit corporation that is subject to voluntary public
contributions to the organization.

NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District's management has evaluated events or transactions that occurred for possible
recognition or disclosure in the financial statements from the balance sheet date through
December 6, 2019, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
Management has determined that there were no subsequent events or transactions that
require disclosure in or adjustment to the current year financial statements.

46



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION






NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
LCFF Sources:
State Apportionment / Transfers $ 37,771 $ 37,771 $ 37,801 $ 30
Local Sources 662,601 672,120 682,699 10,579
Total LCFF Sources 700,372 709,891 720,500 10,609
Federal Revenue 20,674 20,347 20,397 50
Other State Revenue 42,798 82,363 85,115 2,752
Other Local Revenue 277,247 290,227 282,671 (7,556)
Total Revenues 1,041,091 1,102,828 1,108,683 5,855
Expenditures
Current:
Certificated Salaries 295,075 293,330 293,684 (354)
Classified Salaries 172,959 173,863 173,995 (132)
Employee Benefits 160,483 188,122 190,673 (2,551)
Books and Supplies 26,876 46,992 34,512 12,480
Services and Other
Operating Expenditures 282,558 291,888 264,705 27,183
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 4,893 4,893 6,313 (1,420)
Interest and Fiscal Charges 3,225 3,225 2,130 1,085
Other Expenditures 122,858 105,092 97,474 7,618
Total Expenditures 1,068,927 1,107,405 1,063,486 43,919
Net Change in Fund Balances (27,836) (4,577) 45,197 $ 49,774
Fund Balances - July 1, 2018 431,939 431,939 431,939
Fund Balances - June 30, 2019 $ 404,103 $ 427,362 $ 477,136

SEE NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

47



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - DEFERRED MAINTENANCE FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
LCFF Sources:
State Apportionment / Transfers $ 10,000 10,000 $ 10,000
Other Local Revenue 200 600 669 $ 69
Total Revenues 10,200 10,600 10,669 69
Expenditures
Current:
Books and Supplies 3,500
Services and Other
Operating Expenditures 6,200 17,733 17,732 1
Total Expenditures 9,700 17,733 17,732 1
Net Change in Fund Balances 500 (7,133) (7,063) $ 70
Fund Balances - July 1, 2018 43,390 43,390 43,390
Fund Balances - June 30, 2019 $ 43,890 36,257 $ 36,327

SEE NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

48



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY - CALSTRS *

JUNE 30, 2019

Plan
State's District's Fiduciary
Proportionate Proportionate Net Position
District's Share Share of the As a % of
Year District's Proportionate of the NPL Total NPL District's NPL as a % of Total
Ended Proportion Share Associated Attributed Covered Covered Pension
June 30  of the NPL of the NPL to District to District Payroll Payroll Liability
2019 0.0006% $ 561986 $§ 321,763 $ 883,749 $ 325,495 172.66% 70.99%
2018 0.0005% 468,939 277,420 746,359 268,744 174.49% 69.46%
2017 0.0007% 571,042 280,594 851,636 351,864 162.29% 70.04%
2016 0.0008% 521,702 338,254 859,956 359,673 145.05% 74.02%
2015 0.0008% 496,128 279,456 775,584 378,145 131.20% 76.52%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined based on a measurement date that was one year prior to the
year-end date. This is a 10-year schedule, however the information in this schedule is not required to be presented
retroactively. Additional years will be added to this schedule as information becomes available until 10 years are presented.

SEE NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
49



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY - CALPERS *

JUNE 30, 2019

Plan
District's Fiduciary
Proportionate Net Position
District's Share of the As a % of
Year District's Proportionate District's NPL as a % of Total
Ended Proportion Share Covered Covered Pension
June 30 of the NPL of the NPL Payroll Payroll Liability
2019 0.0008% $ 202,629 $ 100,238 202.15% 70.85%
2018 0.0008% 190,995 102,023 187.21% 71.87%
2017 0.0008% 150,395 91,356 164.62% 73.90%
2016 0.0011% 163,976 123,159 133.14% 79.43%
2015 0.0008% 90,460 83,648 108.14% 83.38%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined based on a measurement date that was one year prior to
the year-end date. This is a 10-year schedule, however the information in this schedule is not required to be
presented retroactively. Additional years will be added to this schedule as information becomes available until 10
years are presented.

SEE NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
50



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - CALSTRS *

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Contributions

In Relation to Contributions
Year Actuarially Contractually Contribution District's As a % of
Ended Determined Required Deficiency/ Covered Covered

June 30 Contributions Contributions (Excess) Payroll Payroll

2019 $ 51,939 $ 51,939 $ - $ 319,036 16.28%
2018 46,976 46,976 - 325,544 14.43%
2017 32,588 32,588 - 259,046 12.58%
2016 39,154 39,154 - 364,902 10.73%
2015 29,101 29,101 - 327,714 8.88%

* This is a 10-year schedule, however the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retroactively.
Additional years will be added to this schedule as information becomes available until 10 years are presented.

SEE NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
51



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - CALPERS *

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Contributions

In Relation to Contributions
Year Actuarially Contractually Contribution District's As a % of
Ended Determined Required Deficiency/ Covered Covered

June 30 Contributions Contributions (Excess) Payroll Payroll

2019 $ 18,241 $ 18,241 $ - $ 100,991 18.062%
2018 15,568 15,568 - 100,238 15.531%
2017 14,169 14,169 - 102,023 13.888%
2016 11,543 11,543 - 97,434 11.847%
2015 14,497 14,497 - 123,159 11.771%

= This is a 10-year schedule, however the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retroactively.
Additional years will be added to this schedule as information becomes available until 10 years are presented.

SEE NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
52



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

A

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34,
the District is required to present a Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance budgetary comparison for the General Fund and each Major Special
Revenue Fund that has an adopted budget. These schedules present the original adopted
budget, final adopted budget, and the actual revenues and expenditures of each of these
funds by object. The basis of budgeting is the same as Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). There was no excess expenditures over appropriations in the Deferred
Maintenance Fund as of June 30, 2019.

Excess of expenditures over appropriations as of June 30, 2019 were as foliows:

Excess
General Fund Expenditures
Certificated Salaries $ 354
Classified Salaries 132
Employee Benefits 2,551
Debt Service: Principal Retirement 1,420

The District incurred unanticipated expenditures in excess of appropriations in the above
expenditure classifications for which the budget was not revised.

Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68, the
District is required to present separately for each cost-sharing pension plan through which
pensions are provided a 10-year schedule presenting certain information. The information
required to be presented includes the District's proportion and proportionate share of the
collective net pension liability, the portion of the nonemployer contributing entities’ total
proportionate share of the collective net pension liability associated with the District, if
applicable, the District's covered payroll, the District's proportionate share of the collective
net pension liability as a percentage of the District's covered payroll, and the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability.

Schedule of Contributions

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68, the
District is required to present separately for each cost-sharing pension plan through which
pensions are provided a 10-year schedule presenting certain information. The information
required to be presented includes the statutorily or contracted required District contribution,
the amount of contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the required
District contribution, the difference between the required District contribution and the
amount recognized by the pension plan, the District's covered payroll, and the amount of
contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation of the District as a percentage of
the District's covered payroll.

53



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF CHANGES FOR CALSTRS AND CALPERS

Benefit Changes

There were no changes to benefit terms since the previous valuation for either the State
Teachers’ Retirement Plan (CalSTRS) or the Public Employer's Retirement Fund B
(CalPERS).

Changes of Assumptions

During fiscal year 2017-18, demographic assumptions and inflation rate were changed in
accordance with the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions
December 2017.

As a result of the study, CalPERS changed the following assumption used in determining
the NPL as follows:

Assumption As of June 30, 2018 As of June 30, 2017
Inflation 2.50% 2.75%

There were no changes in assumptions since the previous valuation for CalSTRS.

54



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION






NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
ORGANIZATION/BOARD OF EDUCATION/ADMINISTRATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

ORGANIZATION

The Nicasio Elementary School District was established in 1866 and comprises an area located in
Marin County. There were no changes in the boundaries of the District during the current year.
The District currently operates one elementary school.

BOARD OF EDUCATION
Name Office Term Expires
Michelle Rutledge President November 2020
Mark Burton Clerk November 2022
Elaine Doss Trustee November 2022

ADMINISTRATION

Nancy Neu
Superintendent

Barbara Snekkevik
Principal

Margie Bonardi
Interim Chief Financial Officer

55



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

P-2 Report
TK/K-3 4-6 7-8 Total
Regular ADA 19.31 13.73 4.80 37.84
Annual Report
TK/K-3 4-6 7-8 Total
Regular ADA 19.22 13.68 4.77 37.67

SEE NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
56



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME

Grade Level

Kindergarten

Grade
Grade
Grade
Grade
Grade
Grade
Grade

Grade

1

2

2018-19
Minutes Actual

Required Minutes
36,000 36,000
50,400 54,600
50,400 54,600
50,400 54,600
54,000 54,600
54,000 54,600
54,000 54,600
54,000 54,600
54,000 54,600

Number
of Days
Traditional
Calendar

180
180
180
180
180
180
180
180
180

Number
of Days
Multitrack
Calendar

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

SEE NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

57

Status
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance
In Compliance

In Compliance



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET REPORT
WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

The audited financial statements of all funds were in agreement with the Annual Financial and
Budget Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

SEE NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
58



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Revenues and Other Financial Sources

Expenditures

Other Uses and Transfers Out

Total Qutgo

Change in Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

Available Reserves

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties *

Available Reserves as a Percentage
of Total Outgo

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Average Daily Attendance at P-2

GENERAL FUND

(Budget)

2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17
$ 1,074,801 $ 1,108,683 $ 1038793 § 1,028,216
1,047,238 1,063,486 1,039,696 1,040,511

0 0 0 0
1,047,238 1,063,486 1,039,696 1,040,511
27,563 45,197 (903) (12,295)

$ 504699 $§ 477,136 $ 431939 § 432,842
$ 430,247 $ 388,053 $ 341,459 $ 321,875
$ 201219 $ 201,219 $ 201,219 $§ 201,219
41.1% 36.5% 32.8% 30.9%

$ 1982240 $ 2,173,553 $ 2245185 § 2,468,000
38 38 40 42

* Reported balances are a component of available reserves.

The fund balance of the General Fund increased $44,294 (10.2%) over the past two years. The fiscal year 2019-20
budget projects an increase of $27,563 (5.8%). For a district this size, the state recommends minimum reserves of at

least $67,000.

The District produced an operating surplus of $45,197 during fiscal year 2018-19, and incurred operating deficits of
$903 and $12,295 during fiscal years 2017-18 and 2016-17, respectively.

Average daily attendance (ADA) decreased 4 ADA over the past two years. The District projects no change in ADA

during fiscal year 2019-20.

Total long-term liabilities decreased $294,447 over the past two years due primarily to the payments on the outstanding

general obligation bonds.

SEE NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

59



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

A

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance

Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the
District. The purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the
basis on which apportionments of state funds are made to school districts. This schedule
provides information regarding the attendance of students at various grade levels and in
different programs.

Schedule of Instructional Time

The District participated in the Longer Day incentive funding program for the current
fiscal year, but did not meet or exceed its LCFF funding target. This schedule presents
information on the instructional days provided and the amount of instructional time offered by
the District and whether the District complied with Article 8 (commencing with Section
46200) of Chapter 2 of Part 26 of the Education Code.

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balances of all funds
as reported in the Annual Financial and Budget Report to the audited financial statements.

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis

This schedule discloses the District’s financial trends by displaying past years’ data along
with current year budget information. These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate
the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

60



OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTS SECTION






STEPHEN ROATCH ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

Board of Education
Nicasio Elementary School District
Nicasio, California

Report on State Compliance

We have audited Nicasio Elementary School District's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 2018-19 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Educational
Agencies and State Compliance Reporting that could have a direct and material effect on each
of the District's state programs identified on the following page for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of state laws and regulations
applicable to its state programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District's state programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the 2078-19 Guide for
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Educational Agencies and State Compliance Reporting (Audit Guide),
prescribed in the California Code of Regulations, Title 5, section 19810 and following. Those
standards and the Audit Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on the District’s state programs occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Nicasio Elementary School District's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with state
laws and regulations. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Nicasio Elementary
School District's compliance with those requirements.

In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to
determine Nicasio Elementary School District's compliance with state laws and regulations
applicable to the following items:

61
P.O. Box 2196 / Folsom, CA 95763/ Phone (916) 966-3883 / Fax (916) 966-3815




Board of Education
Nicasio Elementary School District
Page Two

Description

Local Education Agencies Other Than Charter Schools:
Attendance
Teacher Certification and Misassignments
Kindergarten Continuance
Independent Study
Continuation Education
Instructional Time
Instructional Materials
Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers
Classroom Teacher Salaries
Early Retirement Incentive
Gann Limit Calculation
School Accountability Report Card
Juvenile Court Schools
Middle or Early College High Schools
K-3 Grade Span Adjustment
Transportation Maintenance of Effort
Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction
Comprehensive School Safety Plan
District of Choice

School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Charter Schools:
California Clean Energy Jobs Act
After/Before School Education and Safety Program
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts
Local Control and Accountability Plan
Independent Study-Course Based

Charter Schools:
Attendance
Mode of Instruction
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction
Annual Instructional Minutes - Classroom Based
Charter School Facility Grant Program

Opinion on State Compliance

In our opinion, Nicasio Elementary School District complied, in all material respects, with the types

of compliance requirements referred to above for the year ended June 30, 2019.

62

Procedures
Performed

Yes
Yes
Yes
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Yes
Yes
Yes
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Yes
Yes
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Yes
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Yes
Not Applicable

Yes
Not Applicable
Yes
Yes
Yes
Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable



Board of Education
Nicasio Elementary School District
Page Three

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 2018-19 Guide for
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Educational Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Accordingly,
this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

STEPHEN ROATCH ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION
Certified Public Accountants

December 6, 2019

63



64



STEPHEN ROATCH ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Education
Nicasio Elementary School District
Nicasio, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Nicasio Elementary School
District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated December 6, 2019.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs that we consider to be a significant deficiency, as noted in
Finding 2019-001.

65
P.O. Box 2196 / Folsom, CA 95763 / Phone (916) 966-3883 / Fax (916) 966-3815




Board of Education
Nicasio Elementary School District
Page Two

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

District's Response to Finding

The District's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. The District's response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

STEPHEN ROATCH ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION
Certified Public Accountants

December 6, 2019

66



FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS SECTION






NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
State Awards

Any audit findings required to be reported in accordance
with the 2018-19 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local
Educational Agencies and State Compliance Reporting ?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
state programs:

67

Unmodified
Yes X
X  Yes
____ Yes X
___ Yes X
Unmodified

No

None reported

No

No



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

SECTION i - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

2019 - 001/ 30000
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

CASH DISBURSEMENTS

Criteria:

Condition:

Questioned Costs:

Context:

Effect:

Cause:

Recommendation:

District Response:

Maintaining a strong system of internal controls over cash
disbursement transactions requires a second employee, preferably
at a management level, review the cash disbursement prelist to
ensure amounts agree to supporting documentation prior to
approving a warrant batch for payment.

Reimbursements paid to employees did not agree to the supporting
receipts and/or invoices.

One employee was overpaid $18.96 and one employee was
underpaid $100.00.

The condition was noted during our testing of cash disbursement
transactions.

Errors and/or improprieties are more likely to occur and not be
detected or corrected in a timely manner.

The reviewing employee did not always have the final prelist or did
not have all supporting documentation to ensure a complete and
accurate review prior to processing the warrant batch for payment.

The District should ensure that the employee responsible for
reviewing cash disbursement batches has the final prelist report
and all supporting documentation. The District should also correct
the reimbursement errors noted above.

The District will have two employees verify the accuracy of cash
disbursement payments; one employee will verify the prelist agrees
to the supporting invoices and/or receipts and the other employee
will verify the prelist agrees to the individual warrants. The District
has corrected the two employee reimbursements noted during the
audit.

68



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

SECTION Il - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

There are no matters to report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

69



NICASIO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

There were no matters reported in the prior year audit.

70



DRAFT Feb 6, 2020

Nicasio School District

Annual Calendar for 2020-21 Agenda item #’é )

M T w Th F Days
AUGUST 3 4 5 6 7 _
| 10 11 12 13 14 8/17 Staff Professional Dev. Day {(No Classes)
_A 18 @ 19 20 21 8/18 Teacher Work Day (No Classes)
24 25 27 27 28 8/19 FIRST DAY OF SCHOOL ¥
31 9
SEPTEMBER 1 2 3 4
® 8 O B 9/7 Labor Day Holiday
14 15 16 17 18 9/10 BACK-TO-SCHOOL NIGHT
21 22 23 24 25 9/11 Early Release for Students (S/B)
28 29 30 21
OCTOBER 1 ﬁ 10/2 |Mid-Trimester/Early Release/Teacher PD (l)
5 6 7 8 9 _
_ 13 14 15 16 10/12 Staff Professional Dev. Day {No Classes)
19 20 21 22 23
26 27 28 29 30 21
NOVEMBER 2 3 4 5 6
9 10 O 11, 12“ 11/11 Veteran's Day Holiday
16 17 8 19 20 _ 11/13 End of 1st Trimester/Early Release (I)
23 24 25C) 26 27 |11/23-11/27 Thanksgiving Holiday & Recess {No School)
30 15
DECEMBER B ¢ ¢ BB 12/2/12/4 NOON DISMISSAL/Parent & Teacher Conferences
7 8 9 10 11 12/17 WINTER HOLIDAY PROGRAM
14 15 16 © Lol 12/18 NOON DISMISSAL (/B)
2i PO 7B 24 25 14 12/21-1/1 Winter Recess (No School)
JANUARY 28 29 5 30 31 1 1/4 Teacher Work Day (No Classes)
AN 5 7 8 1/5 Students Return to School
11 12 13 14 1/15 Mid-Trimester/Early Release/Teacher PD (I)
O 18 19 20 21 22 1/18 Martin Luther King Jr. Holiday
25 26 27 28 29 18
FEBRUARY 1 2| 3 4 5
8 5 10 1 1
o - 16 17 18 19 2/15-2/19 Mid-Winter Recess {No School)
22 23 24 25 26 15
MARCH 1 2 3 Tﬁ 3/5 End of 2nd Trimester/Early Release ( 1)
_ 9 10 11 12 3/8 Staff Professional Dev. Day (No Classes)
15 16 17 18 19
22 23 24 25 26 _
29 30 31 22
APRIL <1 4/1 OPEN HOUSE (6pm)
L 6 7 8 9 4/2 Early Release (S/B)
12 13 14 15 16 4/5-4/9 Spring Recess (No School)
19 20 21 sz 4/23 Mid-Trimester/Early Release/Teacher PD (I}
26 27 28 29 30 17 |
MAY 3] 4 5 6 7 5/4-5/6 State Testing Grades 3-8
10 11 12 13 14 5/11-5/13 State Testing Grades 3-8
17 18 19 20 21
24 25 26 27 28
O 31, ' 20 5/31 Memorial Day Holiday
JUNE 1 7] 3 4 _
7| K ] A k- VAN 6/10 NOON DISMISSAL (S/B)/GRADUATION
14 15 16 17 18 6/11 Teacher Work Day (No Classes) OR * School Closure Makeup Day
21 22 23 24 25 8 *if needed
No School Total 180 Student Days
Legal holiday (no classes) Total 186 Certificated Teacher Work Days

. Noon Dismissal

Teacher work day (no classes)
Staff Development day (no classes)
Early Release, 1:30 pm dismissal

State Testing (CAASPP/CAST) |

Parent/Teacher conferences, noon dismissal
School-Wide Event

3 Staff Professional Development Days
3 Teacher Work Days
12 Minimum Days
* 3 parent/teacher conferences days
* 5 individual days (1)
* 4 site/building days (5/8)

G:\Calendars\ Annual School Calendars\20-21 DRAFT Annual Calendar



MARIN ~ COUNTYeerdatem # Ta_
OFFICE OF EDUCATION

RAC
|

1111 LAS GALLINAS AVENUE/P.O. BOX 4925 MARY JANE BURKE (415) 472-4110
SAN RAFAEL, CA 94913-4925 MARIN COUNTY FAX (415) 491-6625
marincoe@marinschools.org SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

January 14, 2020

Ms. Michelle Rutledge, President
Nicasio School District

POBox 513

Nicasio CA 94946

Dear Ms. Rutledge,

Our office has completed its review of the Nicasio School District’s first interim budget report for 2019-20 in
compliance with the provisions of Education Code 42131(a)(2). The Governing Board approved the budget with
a positive certification that the District will be able to meet its financial obligations for the current and
subsequent two (2) years.

The Code requires the County Superintendent to approve or change interim report certifications after
examining the report to determine if it complies with the standards and criteria established pursuant to
Education Code 33127 and to determine if the first interim budget will allow the district to meet its financial
obligations during the current fiscal year and is consistent with a financial plan that will enable the district to
satisfy its multi-year financial commitments.

Based upon our review, the Board’s POSITIVE certification of the first interim budget report has been
approved.

2020-21 GOVERNOR'’S BUDGET PROPOSAL

On January 10", the Governor released his 2020-21 Budget Proposal with an increase of $3.8 billion in
Proposition 98 funding for schools for a total of $84 billion, an all-time high for Proposition 98 funding. The
current economic expansion is now in its eleventh year, and marks the longest period of sustained growth
since World War lI, however, the Governor notes this expansion is occurring in the context of slowing global
growth and growing uncertainty regarding the political climate and federal policies. State revenue growth is
predicted to be slower in each of the next four years compared to 2019-20, constraining new spending
commitments. The majority of the projected surplus in the Governor’s proposed budget is devoted to one-
time spending. This approach enables the state to make significant investments in critical areas while also
maintaining reserves.

The Governor’s Budget proposes a 2.29% cost of living adjustment (COLA) to the Local Control Funding
Formula (LCFF) for 2020-21 and some changes to improve fiscal accountability regarding the use of LCFF
funds. Outside of the LCFF, the Governor's Budget for K-12 Education propaoses an investment of
approximately $900 million in teacher training and an increase of almost $900 million for special education to
continue building on the multi-year effort to reform the special education system that began in 2019. In
addition, the Governor’s Budget proposal includes $300 million for expanded supports and services to the

1
Nicasio School District
2019-20 First Interim Review



state’s neediest schools, $300 million for the development of innovative community school models that
support student mental health, and $70 million to improve and strengthen school meal programs. The
Governor’s Budget proposal builds on the commitment made in 2019 regarding universal pre-school by
continuing development of a Master Plan for Early Learning and Care, funding for 10,000 additional
full-day/full year preschool slots, and the establishment of a new Department of Early Childhood
Development under the Health and Human Services Agency effective July 1, 2021.

BUDGETARY POSITION FOR NICASIO SCHOOL DISTRICT

The District’s first interim budget and multi-year projection reflects a deterioration in budgetary position
when compared to the adopted budget. The following graph depicts the District’s estimated ending balance
in the first interim budget and multi-year projection for the unrestricted general fund with both the state
required minimum reserve and the District’s actual reserve as a percentage of total general fund
expenditures. The District’s ending balance meets the minimum required reserve requirement for the current

and both subsequent years.

Actual/Estimated* Ending Fund Balance
Unrestricted General Fund

500,000 Gl

00,000 | | |
200,200

100,000 | | |

200537 201718 TR 1Y 201600 2000:21 2122

OPERATING DEFICITS
The District’s first interim budget and multi-year projection reflects operating deficits in the unrestricted

general fund as displayed in the chart below.

—

Deficit Spending
Unrestricted General Fund

| 58249 :

| — ==
| 47358 | ey (12,09%)

(41,761)
2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 3020-21° 202122

The cumulative impact of this projected deficit spending is a 12% decline in fund balance over the current
plus two subsequent years, leaving the District with reserves of $0.4 million or 34% of general fund
expenditures at June 30, 2022. While some deficit spending may be a result of one-time costs from prior year
funding sources, ongoing deficits threaten a school district's future educational programs. Districts that wait
too long to address and correct structural deficits are forced to make dramatic corrections all at once. In
contrast, carefully planned and phased-in structural corrections lessen the impact on children.
2
Nicasio School District
2019-20 First Interim Review



LOCAL CONTROL FUNDING FORMULA (LCFF) AND LOCAL CONTROL & ACCOUNTARBILITY PLAN (LCAP)

The first period report of property taxes reflected an increase in the secured tax growth rate in comparison
to the estimates used for budget adoption. As a result, the District’s first interim budget and multi-year
projection reflects an increase of almost $8 thousand in property taxes (LCFF revenue sources) in the current

year.

The bills enacting the state budget included a change in the way in which state-board approved charter
schools LCFF entitlement is funded, requiring basic aid districts with students attending such charter schools
to transfer an amount of revenue in lieu-of property taxes. As a result, the District will be responsible to
transfer approximately $7,500 to the Ross Valley Charter school. The actual amount due will be published by
the California Department of Education (CDE) with each certification period.

OTHER STATE FUNDING
The State budget has provided substantial one-time revenues to all school districts over the course of the last

several years. However, in 2019-20 one-time revenue was limited to those districts with pre-school age
students identified for special education. The Governor’s budget proposal for 2020-21 provides an additional
year of funding for the special education preschool grant.

FEDERAL BUDGET
The Administration signed the appropriation measures to fund the federal government for Fiscal Year

(FY) 2020 on December 20, 2019, almost three (3) months into the fiscal year. While the initial budget
proposals included a 12% cut to Education funding and the elimination of a number of federal education
programs, the final budget provides $72.8 billion in discretionary funding for the Department of Education,
an increase of $1.3 billion. The approved budget includes an additional $400 million in Title | grants to school
districts, $410 million increase in Special Education, $76 million increase to Title i professional development
grants, and 540 million increase to Title IV Student support and academic enrichment grants. Most federal
funding for school districts is passed through the State with FY2020 federal funding allocated in the state

budget for 2020-21.

The bills to enact the FY2020 budget also included a repeal of the ‘Cadillac Tax’ on high cost employer health
insurance plans that, although deferred, remained in law and could have proven very costly to school

districts.

SALARY SETTLEMENTS

School districts are in the "people business" and as a result the budget is largely driven by salaries and
benefits. The first interim budget includes the cost of the recent contract negotiations with all bargaining
units for 2019-20. We thank the District for the timely submission of the Public Disclosure of Collective
Bargaining Agreement and multi-year projection.

RESERVES
The District maintains the state-required minimum reserve for economic uncertainty of $69,000 in the

current and two (2) subsequent years. In addition, we note the District maintains a Board reserve for
economic uncertainty of $180,219 for a total reserve of $249,219 in all three (3) years of the budget and

multi-year projection.

3
Nicasio School District
2019-20 First interim Review



All school districts, whether state aid or community funded, are well advised to establish higher than
minimum reserves in order to provide for the financial flexibility to absorb unanticipated expenditures
without significant disruption to educational programs, cash flow deferrals and general economic
uncertainties. Higher than minimum reserves allows the District to better ensure a consistent and stable

program offering for students.

CONCLUSION
We thank Margaret Bonardi for her timely submission of the first interim budget using the statutorily
required forms. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 415-499-5822.

We appreciate your dedication and service to the children of Marin County. Due to your good fiscal
stewardship, the children of Marin County will continue to experience quality education now and in the

future.
Sincerely,

MARY JANE BURKE
Marin County Superintendent of Schools

/)

KATE LANE
Assistant Superintendent

cc: Dr. Nancy Neu, interim Superintendent
Margaret Bonardi, Interim Chief Business Official

4
Nicasio School District
2019-20 First Interim Review



MARIN CYCLISTS Agenda ttem #

PO Box 2611 CLUB WAS FOUNDED IN 1963 BY A SMALL GROUP OF MARINCYCLISTS.COM
SAN RAFAEL, CA 94912 CYCLING ENTHUSIASTS (415) 823-5047 TEL

December 12, 2019

Nicasio Elementary School
5555 Nicasio Valley Road
Nicasio, CA 94946

Dear Nicasio Elementary School:

The Marin Century Bike Ride dates back to 1963 when a group of hardy Marin County
bicyclists attempted the novel idea of organizing a 100-mile bike ride through the hills of
Marin County.

In 2005, due to its growing popularity, the ride collected more in registration fees than was
needed to pay the bills. That is when the volunteers decided to use surplus funds to support
our community. Since that time the Marin Cyclists have given over $450,000 to local youth,
cycling, and other non-profit organizations that serve our community.

The Marin Century is organized, managed, and run entirely by volunteers. In its 57-year
history, over 40,000 bike riders have enjoyed the scenery, camaraderie, food, and challenge
of the group rides.

As a result of the success of the 2019 Marin Century Rides, we are pleased and proud to
deliver to you the enclosed check for $500 to support the work of Nicasio Elementary
School. We hope this will aid you in your mission and to support youth cycling in Marin
County.

In return, please let us know how you will use these funds so we can share this information
with our members and volunteers who love to hear how their contributions make a
difference in our community. We would also appreciate vour help for the 2020 Marin
Century by sharing information about the ride to your program members and/or email lists.
We will provide a template in advance. As more riders sign up year after year, our donations
will continue to increase to all our community members. Look at our website for volunteer
opportunites in the 2020 Marin Century as well! Together we can make it happen.

Congratulations on the success of your program. Best wishes for your continued progress in
2020.

Sincerely,

MARIN CYCLISTS

l Marin Cyclists is a 501(c)(4) non-profit entity



Marin Cyclists Bank of Marin

2655 Bridgeway
PO BOX 2611 lito, CA 94965
SAN RAFAEL, CA 94912 o F AT e

Founded 1963 501(c)4 Not for Profit
. 12/10/2019

_u><.~.0._.Im . m
ORDER OF

Nicasio Elementary School **500.00

H s.&.*#’..)..b.*******.k***.».*****l.*#**#****.k%*****.».&.********#*.h.*ﬁu—..b****t******&*t**********&*###****ﬁ*
Five hundred and 00/100

Nicasio Elementary School

e . e v ey -

ATTHORIZED SKANATURE

MEMO

®00S5230 idkiLATTIE L0 309573

g LRy T =3 LAY uf T ety Wt AR B 5 BN AT NSRS TN W T
Marin Cyclists 5230
12/10/2019 Nicasio Elementary School
Date Type Reference Original Amount Balance Due Payment
12/08/2019 Bill 2019 Contribution 500.00 500.00 500.00
Check Amount 500.00

BoM CHECKING 957: 500.00



